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1.2 laist of

Abbreviations/Acronyms

Aeronyms | Full Definition

Auditor-General

APP Annual Performance Plan

BDF Business Development Forum

B2B Back to Basics Programme

Cooperative Governance Human
CREHET Settlements and Traditional Affairs

COO Chief Operating Officer

osm Doy Soeniboemanctel
CWP Community Work Programme

(DBSA Development Bank of Southem Afica
DCOG Department of Cooperative Governance

DG DrectrGene
DGRV gggr%%ré r(é)é)i;)c;perative and Raiffeisen

DM DisasterManagement
DM District Municipality

owe e
DoRA Division of Revenue Act

oo e o
DPME E\?aplﬁgtrir(])im of Planning, Monitoring and

oA e eseRae
DRC Democratic Republic of Congo

DTA Departmentof Tiadiional Afiars
DTI Department of Trade and Industry

EC EssemCape
ENE Estimates of National Expenditure

Aeronyms | Full Definition

FBS Free Basic Services
Governance and Intergovernmental
el Relations
GIS Geographic Information System
HCM Human Capital Management
HR Human Resources
International Day for Disaster Risk
DR Reduction
IEC Independent Electoral Commission
IMC Inter-ministerial Committee
IUDF Integrated Urban Development
Framework
KPA Key Performance Area
LED Local Economic Development

Local Government Sector Education and

LERED Training Authority

(LGTAS  Local Government Turnaround Strategy
M&E Monitoring and Evaluation

MDB Municipal Demarcation Board
MEC Member of Executive Committee

(MIE Ministeril Implementaton Foum
MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant
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Acronyms
MINEXCO

MIinMEC

MIPMIS

MISA
MoU
MPAC

MPAT

MPRA
MSA

MTEF
MTSF

NCBCF

NCC
NCOP
NDMC
NDP

NDRMET

NFSF
NGO
NHTL

NRCS

NT
NW
NYDA
ODG
PAAP
PAJA
PCC
PFMA

PMGS

Full Definition

Minister and Executive Committee.

Minister and Member of Executive
Council

Municipal Infrastructure Performance
Management Information System

Municipal Infrastructure Support Agency
Memorandum of Understanding

Municipal Public Accounts Committee

Management Performance Assessment
Tool

Municipal Property Rates Act
Municipal Systems Act
Medium Term Expenditure Framework

Medium Term Strategic Framework

National Capacity Building Coordinating
Forum

National Consumer Commission
National Council of Provinces
National Disaster Management Centre

National Development Plan

National Disaster Risk Management
Education and Training

National Fire Services Framework
Non-Government Organisation

National House of Traditional Leaders

National Regulator of Compulsory
Specifications

National Treasury

North West

National Youth Development Agency
Office of the Director-General

Post Audit Action Plan

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act
Presidential Coordinating Council

Public Finance Management Act

Provincial and Municipal Government
Support

Acronyms
PMO

PMU

POA

PPP

PR

SA

SAB

SACN

SADC

SALGA
SANBS
SANCO
SARS

SASRIA

SCM
SDF

SDIP
SIU

SMART

SMS
STR
TLGFA
TOR
UCLG
UCLGA
UIF

UN
USAR

VAT
WC

Full Definition

Programme Management Office

Project Management Unit
Programme of Action
Public Private Partnership
Public Relations

South Africa

South African Breweries

South African Cities Network

Southern African Development
Community

South African Local Government
Association

South African National Blood Services

South African National Civic
Organisation

South African Revenue Services

South African Special Risks Insurance
Association

Supply Chain Management
Spatial Development Framework
Service Delivery Improvement Plan

Special Investigation Unit

Specific, Measurable, Attainable,
Realistic, Timely

Senior Management Service

Small Town Regeneration

Traditional Leadership Governance
Framework Act

Terms of Reference

United Cities and Local Governments

United Cities and Local Governments of
Africa

Unemployment Insurance Fund
United Nations

Urban Search and Rescue
Value Added Tax

Western Cape
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MR DES VAN ROOYEN, MP
Minister for Cooperative Governance
and Traditional Affairs

Foreword
by the Minister

The 2015/ 16 Annual Report comes out at a momentous time in our country’s histor)/. On the 5th QfDecember

2015 we marked 15 years qf democratic local government in South Afn’ca. This period also marks the end (f

the third administration of democratic local government. The report is also released with South Africa having

hosted yet another successful, free and fair local government elections.

The report allows us to celebrate the tremendous pro-
gress we have made in the local government sector in
delivering a better life for our citizens. It notes the steady
progress we have made in turning around the fortunes
of the local government sector. It occurs as we assess
the implementation of our Back to Basics programme
that aims to revitalise the local government sector. Im-
portantly, this annual report allows us to take note of the
road we have travelled, as well as plan and prepare for
the journey ahead.

During the past 15 years we have sought to turn the lo-
cal government sector into one that truly responds to
the needs of our people. While the apartheid legacy
continues to pose a challenge, we believe that we have
turned the corner. Numerous reports from the likes of
the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) to Stats SA
are testimony to our progress.

The past year has seen us deal with a number of chal-
lenges, from a crippling drought to ensuring that prepa-

rations for the elections are on course. Through the Na-
tional Disaster Management Centre we have weathered
the drought by ensuring a co-ordinated effort involving
all role-players.

The Municipal Demarcation Board has played a vital
role in the determination and redetermination of the
boundaries for various municipalities, to improve their
financial viability. This has resulted in a reduction of the
number of municipalities from 278 to 257. The Depart-
ment played a critical role in overseeing the amalgama-
tion of the affected municipalities. It once again reflects
our determination to change the face of local govern-
ment for the better.

Maintaining current municipal infrastructure and improv-
ing infrastructure delivery remains a core challenge. We
are addressing this through the efforts of the Municipal
Infrastructure Support Agent and through improved
spending of the Municipal Infrastructure Grant.

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - 2015 | 2016



The Department continues playing a role in the inter-
national sphere, most notably by providing support
to our African counterparts. The Tri-partite Mecha-
nism on Dialogue and Cooperation with Angola and
the Democratic Republic of Congo supports post—
war reconstruction and development in the latter. The
Africities Summit, hosted by the South African Local
Government Association, in Johannesburg was fur-
ther evidence of the leadership role that we play on
the continent.

The Back to Basics programme is the cornerstone
upon which the Department’s interventions rest. The
development and implementation of the B2B 10-Point
has arisen out of our efforts over the last year and will
guide us as we move forward.

While we believe we have changed the face of local
government over the last 15 years, we firmly believe
that the role of the local government sphere will be
further enhanced in the forthcoming years. The United

cHAPTER 1

Nations Sustainable Development Goal 11, “Making cit-
ies and human settlements inclusive, safe, resilient and
sustainable,” acknowledges the increasing importance
of the municipal sphere. It also ties in with our goals, as
outlined in Outcome 9, of creating cohesive, integrated
and sustainable human settlements. Our efforts over the
last year have occurred with this in mind and we believe
that we have laid the basis to address the challenges
that this future holds.

MR DES VAN ROOYEN, MP
Executive Authority
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1.4 Deputy Minister’s

Statement

MR ANDRIES NEL, MP
Deputy Minister for

Coopemtive Governance

The constitutional basisfor the South African government system is human di(qm’t)/, equa]it)/ andfreedom.

As we look back on the past decade and a halqudemocratic local government, we should be reminded Qf

the apartheid system, which systematically stripped people Qf their rights and fz’eedoms. In contrast to our

oppressive past, the current South African system Qf developmental local government is based on democracy,

accountability, community involvement and sustainable service provision. It also further recognises the

responsibi]it)/ qf municipa]jties to promote social and economic deve]opment qf the community.

The Community Work Programme (CWP) is an impor-
tant intervention to deal with the challenges of poverty,
unemployment and inequality that is facing many South
Africans. DCoG has an important role to play in the im-
plementation of this programme and ensuring that CWP
continues to expand to create more work opportunities
in all municipalities in the country.

CWP participants contribute by doing useful work iden-
tified by the community; but more than that, the pro-
gramme provides opportunities for the previously unem-
ployed and unskilled to gain valuable exposure to work.
Through providing these life-changing experiences to
community members who would previously have been
excluded from developing skills, the CWP has a real im-
pact on the lives of people and the communities in which
they live.

The impact of CWP in Gauteng, for example, can be
measured by a number of interventions by CWP partic-
ipants, namely cleaning almost 300,000 square meters
of public spaces, rivers and canals; clearing 1,051 illegal
dumping sites; maintaining 2,076 community gardens;

cleaning 81,000 square meters of cemeteries; benefit-
ing 10,800 children at créches; refurbishing 2,058 desks
and benefiting 34,000 learners with school patrols.

The CWP has expanded from 45 municipalities in 2010/11
to 196 municipalities in 2015/16, while the participation
rate has also increased from less than 100,000 to more
than 200,000. By the end of the 2015/2016, 223,315 par-
ticipants have benefited from the programme. In Gaut-
eng, Limpopo and Mpumalanga all municipalities had a
CWP site by the end of March 2016.

In furthering the task of local economic development,
DCoG supported and facilitated the development of Cat-
alytic Business Ventures in municipalities in terms of un-
blocking the red tape within National and Provincial Sec-
tor Departments. It also entered into partnership with the
German Co-operative Raiffeisen Confederation (DGRV)
to provide municipalities with skills for implementing
co-operative programmes and to provide capacity build-
ing to cooperatives. Through this partnership, 46 Local
Economic Development (LED) officials were trained re-
garding cooperatives from 23 municipalities.
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According to the United Nations (UN), Africa is ex-
pected to be the fastest urbanising region between
2020 and 2050. In South Africa, 63% of the population
already lives in urban areas. This will rise to 71% by
2030 and 80% by 2050. We therefore need to guide the
growth and management of urban areas in ways that
will ensure that their full potential is reached and in the
process also reverse the legacy of apartheid spatial
injustice.

During this past year, DCoG has continued with the

process of coordinating the formulation of the Integrat-

ed Urban Development Framework (IUDF), to promote

urban restructuring as envisaged by the National De-

velopment Plan (NDP). The obijective is to transform

urban spaces by:

= reducing travel costs and distances;

= preventing further development of housing in mar-
ginal places;

= increasing urban densities to reduce sprawl;

= improving public transport and the coordination be-
tween transport modes; and

= shifting jobs and investments towards dense pe-
ripheral townships.

The IUDF will steer urban growth towards a sustainable
model of compact, connected and coordinated towns
and cities. In the process, we will also strengthen ru-
ral-urban linkages, promote urban resilience, create
safe urban spaces and ensure that the needs of the
most vulnerable groups are addressed.

Achieving such spatial transformation will require the
concerted effort of all spheres of government, the pri-
vate sector, labour and civil society, and the communi-
ties in our municipalities.

The process to adopt the IUDF by government is al-
ready far advanced, and we are thankful for the sterling
contributions in this process by the IUDF Political Over-
sight Committee, the SA Cities Network, South African
Local Government Association (SALGA), internation-
al partners Deutsche Gesellschaft fur Internationale

cHAPTER 1

Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) and the European Union (EU),
as well as the IUDF Panel of Experts.

DCoG is not the only player when it comes to deliver-
ing on the mandate of developmental government and
we are privileged to have partners that add value to the
local government portfolio. The South African Cities Net-
work continues to provide well researched reports that
build our understanding on the performance of cities
across different variables. SALGA is discharging its con-
stitutional mandate of representing organised local gov-
ernment, but is also at the forefront of implementing the
Back to Basics Programme and building the capacity of
local government through various training programmes.
The Municipal Demarcation Board continues to play an
excellent and crucial role in demarcation, which remains
an issue that elicits varying opinions and requires care-
ful consideration in the future.

Local government is in our hands and we remain com-
mitted to ensure that people’s lives improve as we move
forward.

MR A NEL, MP
Deputy Minister

CHAPTER 1 « GENERAL INFORMATION
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1.5 Report

of the Accounting Officer

MR KTM SIGIDI

Acting Director-General

151

OVERVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT

It gives me great p]easure to present the 2015/16 Annual Report for the Department gf Cooperative

Governance. The report indicates that during the reporting period the Department has achieved 36 (65%)

out gfthe planned 55 annual targets set in the 2015 /16 Annual Pe{formance Plan. This level que{fbrmance

is attributed to the internal rea]ignment exercise which resulted in movement gf key personnel across

various progmmmes.

Improved internal capacity and
capability

Following the concurrency by DPSA to the proposed
realignment of the organisational structure and ap-
proval of the budget programme structure by Nation-
al Treasury in the 2" quarter of the financial year, there
was a need to immediately implement the realigned
arrangements in order to beef up coordination and
execution of the 2™ phase of the B2B Programme.
Key personnel were deployed to various provinces to
drive the B2B through provincial task teams, resulting
in halting some of the projects planned for delivery
and impacting on the overall achievement status for
the year. Midway through the 3rd quarter, there were
changes to the configuration of the National Execu-
tive and to the CoGTA Executive Authority, in particu-
lar. We have had successes and acknowledge the
challenges that face us and highlight the approval of
the Organisational Structure by the Minister as a sig-
nificant milestone for the year.

We are also transforming our processes to reducing our
working capital requirements, including a significant re-
duction in expenditure on Goods and Services. Our cost
reduction programme is aimed specifically at reducing
overhead and support costs.

Improved Coordination of the B2B

Programme

Since the introduction of the B2B Programme, there

have been significant improvements in the ability of mu-

nicipalities to discharge their basic responsibilities. The

following are examples of a growing list of successes:

= All provinces have established the Back to Basics
Provincial Task Teams, which include national and
provincial sector departments;

= Support plans have been developed for identified
municipalities and integrated into (IDPs) Integrated
Development Plans; and

= Monthly Reporting by municipalities on Back to
Basics Performance Indicators has increased at a
steady rate. Almost 60% of municipalities report con-
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sistently. We now have a sense of which areas need
dedicated capacity in our endeavour to have reliable
and consistent information that will enable focused

and differentiated interventions.

Putting People First in action

We believe that restoring confidence in local government
is of vital importance and knowing the main challenges
facing communities is equally important. In this regard
we conducted a Citizen Satisfaction Survey and shared
the findings with relevant stakeholders. We also man-
aged to support 13 B2B priority municipalities in the roll-
out of the Community empowerment toolkit. The toolkit
is aimed at positioning each municipality to improve its
interface with the community. Listening to concerns of
people is key in devising effective response packages
and dealing with the real issues affecting our communi-
ties. We believe this will assist in reducing service deliv-
ery related protests.

Improving infrastructure delivery
Recommendations of the Ministerial Implementation
Forum (MIF) on the establishment of a more integrated
and structured approach towards unblocking challeng-
es and achieving the targets for access to basic servic-
es by communities, are being implemented. A business
strategy has been developed by CoGTA and MISA, in
conjunction with the Department of Planning, Monitor-
ing and Evaluation (DPME). An Inter-departmental Pro-
gramme Management Office was established and work
has commenced on determining the status quo for each
sector (water, sanitation, electricity, waste management
and roads) in the 27 priority District Municipalities; this
regarding the number of households without access to
services as well as those with non-functional, unreliable
and aged infrastructure requirements.

For the year under review, 3 of 27 District Municipalities
(DM) assessments were concluded in Amathole, Umz-
inyathi and Sekhukhune Districts to determine the levels
of infrastructure backlog and identify specific interven-

tions to address the challenges. Municipalities were also
supported to develop infrastructure assets registers and
capture their infrastructure assets in the Municipal In-
frastructure Performance Management Information Sys-
tem and to develop operations and maintenance plans.

The implementation of these plans and the delivery of in-
frastructure is expedited through continuous monitoring
of municipal infrastructure expenditure. A total number
of 247 municipalities have benefited from the 2015/16
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) allocation amounting
to R14,9 billion.

Fraud and Corruption

We continue to support measures to strengthen the fight
against fraud and corruption in municipalities. We have
compiled and developed an Annual Report on cases
reported, investigated and prosecuted. The report cov-
ers progress on forensic investigations and municipal
cases being investigated by the Directorate for Priority
Crimes Investigation (DPCI) and those investigated by
the Special Investigating Unit (SIU).

Building capabilities through competency
requirements

Thirty-eight (38) senior managers were appointed in
contravention of the Systems Act and its Regulations.
Municipalities were advised by the Minister and MECs to
take corrective measures to ensure compliance.

Twenty-three (23) priority municipalities were monitored
and assisted with the filling of posts with competent
municipal managers and s56 managers. These were in
the provinces of Mpumalanga (4), KwaZulu-Natal (5),
Limpopo (4), Western Cape (1), Eastern Cape (3), Free
State (2), North West (2) and Northern Cape (2).

Support packages have been developed in consultation
with the Provincial CoGTAs.
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Community Work Programme

The CWP continues to alleviate the effects of poverty
and unemployment and to restore dignity among our
poorest citizens through community-based work oppor-
tunities that provide income support. A total of 197 542
work opportunities are being maintained. More sites are

being established and partnerships formed in anticipa-
tion of reaching the targeted 1 million work opportuni-
ties.

Local Economic Development

The World Bank has offered technical support for the
development of a toolkit for integrated spatial planning
in secondary cities and fast growing towns. Districts
were supported to develop Integrated Development

Plans (IDP) that reflect sectoral and spatial convergence
and engagements were conducted with seven districts.
These were in the Eastern Cape (Amathole), Gauteng
(Sedibeng), Northern Cape (Namakwa and John Taolo
Gaetsewe); in North West they include Dr Ruth S. Mom-
pati, Bojanala Platinum and Dr Kenneth Kaunda Dis-
tricts.

Some of the success stories are related to private sector
collaborations. These included: the signing of the Tha-
ba Chweu Local Municipality MOU with AHI; forging of
partnership between BG Bison and Elundini Municipali-
ty; Mondi Group partnership with Mkhondo Municipality;
and an increase in Santam’s partnership scope from 5
to 10 municipalities. We are busy facilitating the finalisa-
tion of a project plan for the Sasol partnership.

152 OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL RESULT OF THE DEPARTMENT

Table 1: Departmental receipts since the 2014/15 financial vear.

2015/16 2014/15

Actual
Amount
Collected

Deparimental receipts Estimate

over
(Unde)r/
Collection

Actual (over)/
Amount Under
Collected | Collection

Estimate

Tax Receipts

ﬁ]‘zﬁscg;ggfg:si?sd LD 351 158 193 176 174 2
Transfer received 244 - 244 = _ _
Fines, penalties and forfeits - - - - — -
Interest, dividends and rent on land 13 291 -278 2 1 1
Sales of capital assets - - - 60 53 7
Ij'ina'u)c_:ial transactions in assets and 540 667 107 750 1688 938
liabilities

Departmental revenue collected 1148 1116 32 988 1916 -928
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In the 2015/16 financial year, the Department budgeted
R1.148 million for departmental receipts accrued from
the collection of parking fees, recovered debt, com-

mission on insurance policy premiums, the recovery
of private telephone expenses and expenditure due
to breach of study loan contracts. The actual revenue
generated for the 2015/16 financial year decreased at
a rate of 2.8% to the value of R1.116 million. This is
mainly due to a refund made by one of the Implement-
ing Agents in the 2014/15 financial year (that was not
re-appointed on the new contract) for unspent wages
of participants.

The Department is not a revenue generating entity as
such, as there are no tariff charges for goods sold
and/or services rendered.

Programme expenditure

Below is a summary of the actual expenditure incurred
in the 2015/16 financial year in comparison to the ad-
justed appropriation amounts for both the current and
previous financial years. The financial information is
presented per programme to reflect the key reasons
for under/over expenditure with corrective actions in
order to prevent the recurrence thereof in the future.

Programme 1: Administration

The actual expenditure of Programme 1 against
the adjusted appropriation only reflects a 0.6% un-
der-spending, which is immaterial. The comparison of
the current spending indicates a 0.4% increase against
the spending for the previous financial year (2014/15).
This is mainly due to the inflation-related increases.

Programme 2: Policy, Research and Knowledge
Management

The actual expenditure of Programme 2 against the
adjusted appropriation reflects an under-spending of
7.1%, which is mainly due to the delays that emanated
from the implementation of the 2015/16 Procurement
Plan. The current spending indicates a 1.7% increase
against the spending for the same period in the pre-
vious financial year (2014/15). The Procurement Plan

was approved prior to the commencement of the new
financial year to avoid a recurrence of the late start in
projects experienced in the 2014/15 financial year.

Programme 3: Governance and Intergovernmental
Relations

The actual expenditure of Programme 3 against the ad-
justed appropriation reflects an under-spending of 4.5%,
which is mainly due to the off-setting/withholding of Local
Government Equitable Share funds from some munici-
palities that did not perform according to the Division of
Revenue Act (DoRA) requirements, as well as delays in
the transfer of funds to the United Cities & Local Govern-
ment of Africa due to claims not being submitted to the
Department. The current spending rate is 2% higher than
the spending rate in the previous financial year (2014/15)
due to the reasons mentioned above.

The newly established Municipal Infrastructure Grant
(MIG) Administration Unit is assisting poor performing
municipalities to enhance their spending patterns on
MIG.

Programme 4: National Disaster Management Centre
The actual expenditure of Programme 4 against the
adjusted appropriation reflects an under-spending of
56.3%, which is mainly due to the uncertainty with the
payment of disaster relief grants. This grant is only paid
when disasters are declared and with the approval of the
National Treasury. The current spending is 2.7% less than
in the previous financial year (2014/15) due to the uncer-
tainty of when Disaster Relief grants will be paid.

Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal Government
Systems

The actual expenditure of Programme 5 against the ad-
justed appropriation reflect a 89.1% spending rate for a
twelve month period. The current spending is 10.9% less
than in the previous financial year (2014/15), the main
reason being the change in the transfer arrangements
of the Municipal Demarcation Transition Grant and de-
lays by some municipalities to finalise some of the DoRA
conditions.
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Programme 6: Infrastructure and Economic
Development

The actual expenditure of Programme 6 against the ad-
justed appropriation reflects a 0.1% under-spending,
which is immaterial.

The current spending reflected a 5.8% increase against
the spending for the same period in the previous finan-
cial year, 2014/15, which was mainly due to the effect
of the change in the business model for the payment

of the CWP participants and fast-tracking of payment of
invoices and claims from implementing Agents.

Programme 7: Department of Traditional Affairs

The total amount allocated to the Department of Tradi-
tional Affairs (DTA) under Programme 7 was transferred.
The Department also claimed expenditure incurred on
behalf of DTA, which was confirmed by the DTA team
management.

Table 2: Savings trends since 2009/10 financial year.

Table 2 depicts the total expenditure of the
Department, excluding local and foreign
aid assistance, which amounts to R68 bil-

lion or 96% of the total appropriation. An 2009/10
under-spending of R2.717 billion or 3.84% 231 ?ﬂ;
of the total budget is reflected, which is a 2012/13
slight decrease when compared with the 2013/14
2014/15 financial year, which reflected an 2014/15
under-expenditure of 6.41%. 2015/16

Expenditure Saving Saving
R“000 % R “000
36 016 101 1,42 511 032
44 457 917 0.26 115 202
46 221 564 411 1983 096
53 442 919 2.57 1412 259
56 401 572 3.51 2 057 335
59 386 548 6.41 4 067 337
68 097 537 3.84 2717 940

Table 3: Financial information for the current and previous financial year

Programme Name

Final Actual

2015/2016

2014/2015

(Over)/Under Final Actual  (Over)/Under

Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure

R000 R000

R000 R000 R000 R000

Prog 1: Administration 271125 269 422 1703 242 025 241 628 397
Tege ;;i‘a’égae;:ﬁ:g:ta"d 19 281 17914 1367 20 251 18 471 1780
r;’t‘;?g%vi‘fr:’:l;"nat;fg e 51800326 49466922 2342404 44610131 41709671 2900 460
,\Png’r?a‘;;':]ﬂ‘:rgégfﬁer 501355 258158 333197 831415 385906 445500
frog 5: r':;‘:.‘t"gfl';:‘:g Lnicies] 329002 293335 35 757 289533 289479 54
E;%%S;J;f'g‘:y;gg‘rfeﬁ?d 17669370 17 665 858 3512 17344666 16625520 719137
Trog 7: Department of 125928 125928 - 115864 115864 -
Total 70815477 68097537 2809176 63453885 50386548 4067337
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Table 3 on the bottom left depicts the initial budget of the
Department of Cooperative Governance for the 2015/16
financial year to the amount of R69.314 billion. During
the 2015/16 Adjusted Estimates of National Expenditure,
the Department received an additional appropriation to
the value of R1.501 billion, which slightly increased the
appropriation to R70.815 billion. This represents an in-
crease of R7.361 billion (11.60%) when compared to the
budget allocation for the previous financial year.

The increased allocations for the 2015/16 financial year
were mainly in respect of the introduction of the new Mu-
nicipal Demarcation Transition Grant, the approved roll-
over of Local Government Equitable Share funds from
the 2014/15 financial year.

Virement and roll-over

Virement

The following virements were effected in terms of sec-
tion 43 of the PFMA (Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended
to fund the overruns and increased spending levels of
the different programmes of the Department of Coop-
erative Governance during the 2015/16 financial year, in
line with the mandate and priorities of the Department:

Compensation of employees

R1.2 million was shifted from Programme 6: Infrastruc-
ture and Economic Development to increase the com-
pensation of employees’ allocation of Programme 3:
Governance and Intergovernmental Relations.

Goods and services

R17.717 million was shifted from Programme 3: Govern-
ance and Intergovernmental Relations to increase the
goods and services allocation of Programme 1: Admin-
istration.

R14.2 million was shifted from Programme 4: Nation-
al Disaster Management Centre to increase the goods
and services allocation of Programme 1: Administration
with R7.6 million, Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal
Government Systems with R1.1 million and Programme

6: Infrastructure and Economic Development with
R2.3 million. A further amount of R3.2 million was shifted
to increase the payment for capital assets allocation in
Programme 1: Administration.

R1 million was shifted from Programme 2: Policy, Re-
search and Knowledge Management to increase the
goods and service allocation of Programmes 5: Provin-
cial and Municipal Government Systems.

Payment for Capital Assets

R20 thousand was shifted from Programme 3:- Govern-
ance and Intergovernmental Relations to increase the
payment for capital assets allocation of Programme 1:
Administration.

R1.25 million was shifted from Programme 4: National
Disaster Management Centre to increase the payment
for capital assets allocation of Programme 1: Adminis-
tration.

R100 thousand was shifted from Programme 5: Provin-
cial and Municipal Government Systems to increase the
payment for capital assets allocation of Programme 1:
Administration.

R150 thousand was shifted from Programme 6: Infra-
structure and Economic Development to increase the
payment for capital assets allocation of Programme 1:
Administration.

All the above items were subjected to due processes in
terms of the policies and procedures. All virements done
in the Department were approved by the Director-Gener-
al. Subsequently, the National Treasury and the Executive
Authority were also informed of the approved virements.

Roll-over

The roll-over of funds from the 2014/15 financial year
were done in terms of Section 30 (2) (g) and 31 (2) (g)
of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 in
order to fund projects that were carried forward to the
2015/16 financial year.
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Transfers and subsidies

An unspent amount of R1.499 billion was requested to
be rolled over from the 2014/15 to the 2015/16 financial
year from the National Treasury in respect of the Local
Government Equitable Share Grant for municipalities in
order to pay arrear accounts to Eskom and the various
Water Boards for bulk water and electricity services.

Unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure

The Department has not discovered any potential unau-
thorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure disclosed in
notes 9 and 24 for the 2015/16 financial year.

Future plans of the Department

The Department will continue with the roll-out of the
Back to Basics approach across the different spheres
of government.

Public Private Partnership (PPP)
The Department has not entered into any Public Private
Partnership agreements.

Discontinued activities / activities to be
discontinued

There were no activities discontinued during the 2015/16
financial year.

New or proposed activities
There were no newly proposed activities identified for
the year under review.

Supply chain management (SCM):

= All unsolicited bid proposals concluded for the
year under review
The Department did not conclude any unsolicited
bid proposals for the year under review.

= SCM processes and systems are in place to pre-
vent irregular expenditure
The Department has processes and systems in
place to detect and prevent irregular expenditure.
The Department also has functional bid committees
to ensure transparency, fairness and compliance

with the tender processes. SCM has developed
and implemented a checklist for all SCM compli-
ance requirements whereby all transactions that are
processed through SCM are checked against the
checklist.

= Challenges experienced in SCM and how they
were resolved
Supply Chain Management experienced non-availa-
bility of bid committee members. This challenge was
resolved by appointing additional members.

Gifts and donations received in kind from
non-related parties

The Department did not receive any gifts and donations
in the 2015/16 financial year, except assets relating to
the Community Work Programme.

Exemptions and deviations received from
the National Treasury

The Department received no exemptions and deviations
from the National Treasury.

Events after the reporting date

The Department is currently instituting disciplinary ac-
tion emanating from forensic audits conducted during
the period under review. During the period under review
the Department conducted two forensic audits as fol-
lows:

Awarding of tenders to the Implementing Agents for the

Community Work Programme (CWP) and procurement

of goods/services by the Implementing Agents:

= Due to the findings emanating from the forensic audit
process, a further investigation is required to quantify
the irregularities identified and determine appropriate
conseguence management.

= The Department is also in the process of instituting
disciplinary action as recommended in the audit re-
port.

Investigation into various allegations relating to possible
improper procurement of travel management solutions
and abuse of travel benefits:
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= During the finalisation of this investigation several
batches were not available for review, which has re-
sulted in Phase 2 of the investigation process being
expected to be finalised in the 2016/17 financial year.

= The Department is in the process of instituting disci-
plinary action as recommended in the audit report.

= The Department has also opened a criminal enquiry
with regard to claims emanating from the forensic au-
dit process.

Any other material matters

For the 2015/16 financial year, the Department has, for
the first time, disclosed the CWP assets in its financial
statements with reinstated comparative figures. Includ-
ed in the closing balance of these assets are assets un-
der investigation.

The Department’s asset register still includes a few re-
maining assets utilised by DTA that could not be trans-
ferred by the end of March 2016 due to the need for
supporting evidence of the valuation process for these
assets. These assets will be transferred to DTA in the
2016/17 financial year.

During the forensic investigation on travel and accom-
modation costs, an amount was identified for possible
recovery from a service provider, which must still be
confirmed.

Acknowledgment

As we had expected, 2015/16 was a difficult year. We
continued to implement the second phase of the “Back
to Basics Programme” with the main aim of improving
service delivery challenges in the local government

sphere, yet saw significant progress. Many of the De-
partment’s projects and activities could not succeed
without the dedication and tireless efforts of all employ-
ees. The Department of Cooperative Governance’s ex-
ecutive and management wish to thank all employees
who helped the Department reach most of its objectives
in 2015/16 financial year.

Conclusion

The road ahead is clear and our determination to suc-
ceed is absolute. By continuing to execute the “Back
to Basics Programme”, we will serve our citizens bet-
ter and more effectively in the coming years. In order
to achieve the local government objectives, we have
encouraged municipalities to listen closely to citizens,
continue to understand and anticipate their needs and
social requirements. We express our utmost gratitude to
the Honourable Minister Des van Rooyen for his guid-
ance and support in the execution of our mandate and
for the continuous recognition of the achievements of
this Department.

Approval and sign-off

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 133
to 221 have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

E -..I"' -
MR KTM SIGIDI

Acting Director-General
Department of Cooperative Governance
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1.6 Statement

of responsibility and
confirmation of the accuracy
of the annual report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:

= All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

= The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

= The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines as issued by National Treasury.

= The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and
the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

= The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements
made in this information.

= The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the hu-
man resources information and the annual financial statements.

= The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

= In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources
information and the financial affairs of the Department for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully,

E o
Accounting Officer (Acting Director-General)

Name: MR KTM SIGIDI
Date: 30 May 2016
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cHAPTER 1

1.7 Strategic

Overview

VISION

A functional and developmental local government system that delivers on its constitutional and legislative
mandates within a system of cooperative governance.

MISSION

To ensure that all municipalities perform their basic responsibilities and functions without compromise by:

putting people and their concerns first;

supporting the delivery of municipal services to the right quality and standard;
promoting good governance, transparency and accountability;

ensuring sound financial management and accounting; and

building institutional resilience and administrative capability.

VALUES

Guided by the spirit of Batho Pele, our values are:

Commitment to public service;

Integrity and dedication to fighting corruption;

A hands-on approach to dealing with local challenges;
Public participation and people centred approach;
Professionalism and goal orientation;

Passion to serve; and

Excellence and accountability.
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1.6

llegislative
and other mandates

CONSTITUTIONAL
MANDATE

CoGTA’s mandate is primarily derived from Chapters 3,
5, 6, 7, and 9 of the Constitution of the Republic of South
Africa, 1996, hereafter referred to as the Constitution.

Chapter 3 - This chapter deals with cooperative gov-
ernment and intergovernmental relations. The Depart-
ment will have to ensure that we observe and adhere
to the principles in this chapter and that we conduct our
activities within the parameters of this chapter.

Chapter 5 - This chapter deals with national interven-
tion in provincial administration when a province cannot
or does not fulfil an executive obligation in terms of the
Constitution or legislation.

Chapter 6 - This chapter deals with provincial interven-
tion in local government, in particular when municipali-
ties are unable to fulfil their executive obligation. Chap-
ter 6 is also relevant when a municipality, as a result of
financial crisis, breaches its obligations to provide basic
services in order to meet its financial obligations.

Chapter 7 - The chapter deals inter alia with munici-
palities in cooperative governance. The Department, by
legislation, must support and strengthen the capacity of
municipalities to manage their own affairs, exercise their
powers and perform their functions.

Chapter 9 - This chapter deals with those institutions
whose roles require strengthening the constitutional de-
mocracy of the country. The DCoG has to comply with
all legislative frameworks in this chapter in order to meet
legislative frameworks under the auspices of institutions
such as the Auditor-General and Public Protector.

Our primary mandate is to:

= Develop and monitor the implementation of nation-
al policy and legislation seeking to transform and
strengthen key institutions and mechanisms of gov-
ernance to fulfil their developmental role.

= Develop, promote and monitor mechanisms, sys-
tems and structures to enable integrated service de-
livery and implementation within government.

= Promote sustainable development by providing sup-
port to and exercising oversight over provincial and
local government.
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

As a national department, our function is to develop national policies and legislation with regard to local government

and to monitor, inter alia, the implementation of the following:

Name of Legislation

Fire Brigade Services Act, 1987
(Act No. 99 of 1987)

Organised Local Government
Act, 1997
(Act No. 52 of 1997)

Remuneration of
Public Bearers Act, 1998
(Act No. 20 of 1998)

Local Government:
Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998
(Act No. 27 of 1998)

Local Government:
Municipal Structures Act,1998
(Act No. 117 of 1998)

Local Government:
Cross-Boundary Municipal Act,
2000 (Act No. 29 of 2000)

To provide for the establishment, maintenance, employment, coordination and stand-
ardisation of Fire Brigade Services; and for matters connected therewith.

To provide for the recognition of national and provincial organisations representing
the different categories of municipalities; to determine procedures by which local
government may designate representatives to participate in the National Council of
Provinces; to determine procedures by which local government may consult with
national and provincial government; to determine procedures by which local govern-
ment may nominate persons to the Financial and Fiscal Commission; and to provide
for matters connected therewith.

To provide for a framework determining the salaries and allowances of the President,
members of the National Assembly, permanent delegates to the National Council of
Provinces, Deputy President, ministers, deputy ministers, traditional leaders, mem-
bers of provincial Houses of Traditional Leaders and members of the Council of
Traditional Leaders; to provide for a framework determining the upper limit of salaries
and allowances of Premiers, Members of Executive Councils, members of provincial
legislatures and members of Municipal Councils; to provide for a framework deter-
mining pension and medical aid benefits of office bearers; to provide for the repeal of
certain laws; and to provide for matters connected therewith.

To provide for criteria and procedures for the determination of municipal boundaries
by an independent authority; and to provide for matters connected thereto.

To provide for the establishment of municipalities, in accordance with the require-
ments relating to categories and types of municipality; to establish criteria for deter-
mining the category of municipality to be established in an area; to define the types of
municipality that may be established within each category; to provide for an appropri-
ate decision of functions and powers between categories of municipality; to regulate
the internal systems, structures and office-bearers of municipalities; to provide for
appropriate electoral systems; and to provide for matters in connection therewith.

To give effect to section 155(6A) of the Constitution by authorising the provincial exec-
utives affected to establish cross-boundary municipalities; to provide for the re-deter-
mination of the boundaries of such municipalities under certain circumstances; and
to provide for matters connected therewith.
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Local Government: To provide for the core principles, mechanisms and processes that are necessary

Municipal Systems Act, to enable municipalities to move progressively towards the social and economic

2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) upliftment of local communities; to ensure universal access to essential services that
are affordable to all; to define the legal nature of a municipality as including the local
community within the municipal area, working in partnership with the municipality’s
political and administrative structures; to provide for the manner in which munici-
pal powers and functions are exercised and performed; to provide for community
participation; to establish a simple and enabling framework for the core processes
of planning, performance management, resource mobilisation and organisational
change, which underpin the notion of developmental local government; to provide
a framework for local public administration and human resource development; to
empower the poor and ensure that municipalities establish service tariffs and credit
control policies that take their needs into account, by providing a framework for the
provision of services, service delivery agreements and municipal service districts; to
provide for credit control and debt collection; to establish a framework for support,
monitoring and standard setting by other spheres of government in order to progres-
sively build local government into an efficient, frontline development agency capable
of integrating the activities of all spheres of government for the overall social and
economic upliftment of communities in harmony with their local natural environment.

Disaster Management Act, To provide for:

2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002) An integrated and coordinated disaster management policy, which focuses on pre-
venting or reducing the risk of disasters, mitigating the severity of disasters, emer-
gency preparedness, rapid and effective response to disasters and post-disaster
recovery.

* The establishment of national, provincial and municipal disaster management
centres.

* Disaster management volunteers.

* Matters incidental thereto.

Local Government: To secure sound and sustainable management of the financial affairs of municipal-
Municipal Finance ities and other institutions in the local sphere of government; to establish treasury

Management Act, 2003 norms and standards for the local sphere of government; and to provide for matters
(Act No. 56 of 2003) .
connected therewith.

Municipal Property Rates Act, To regulate the power of a municipality to impose rates on property; to exclude cer-

2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004) tain properties from rating in the national interest; to make provision for municipalities
to implement a transparent and fair system of exemptions, reductions and rebates
through their rating policies; to make provision for fair and equitable valuation meth-
ods of properties; and to make provision for any objections and appeals process

therewith.
The Intergovernmental The objective of this Act is to facilitate coordination by the three spheres of govern-
Relations Framework Act ment in the implementation of policy and legislation. It is a Framework Act, which

(Act No. 13 of 2005) allows for flexibility between the spheres in meeting the challenges within the conduct

and practice of cooperative government. It also provides for the basic architecture of
intergovernmental structures and for processes to guide the settlement of intergov-
ernmental disputes.
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cHAPTER 1

1.9 Organisational
Structure
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1.10 Entities
reporting to
thjg Mim%ter

SOUTH AFRICAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (SALGA)

The South African Local Government Association (SALGA) was founded in December 1996 and is mandated by the
Constitution to assist in the comprehensive transformation of local government. The Organised Local Government Act
(1998) recognises the association as representative of organised local government and allows organised local govern-
ment to designate up to 10 part-time representatives to the National Council of Provinces in Parliament, as well as to
nominate two representatives to the Financial and Fiscal Commission, which advises government on budget issues.
The association participates in intergovernmental structures at a provincial and district level, and is therefore able to
influence national and provincial legislation and gauge its impact on local government.

Name of Entity | Legislative Mandate | Financial Relationship Nature of Operations

South * The Constitution of ¢ Municipal levy * Lobby, advocate and represent: This refers to repre-
African Local South Africa * Grant allocation senting the interests of members in legislatures and
Government * The Organised Local other policy-making and oversight structures. It also
Association Government (OLG) refers to engaging with various stakeholders in public
(SALGA) Act debates and other platforms in the interest of local
» The White Paper on government.
Local Government * Employer body: This refers to being an effective
* The Municipal Sys- employer that represents its members. This rep-
tems Act resentation is conducted in collective bargaining as
* The Municipal Fi- stipulated in the Labour Relations Act. However, it
nance Management also includes various other structures including but
Act not limited to those established in the South African
* The Intergovern- Local Government Bargaining Council.
mental Relations  Capacity building: This refers to facilitating capaci-
Framework Act ty-building initiatives by representing member inter-

ests in the Local Government Sector Education and
Training Authority (LGSETA).

Support and advice: SALGA needs to provide the
tools and services that enable municipalities to un-
derstand and interpret trends, policies and legislation
affecting local government and to implement them.
Strategic profiling: Elements here refer to enhanc-
ing the profile and image of local government as

an important and credible agent for the delivery of
services. Profiling needs to take place on a national
level, but also in Africa and the rest of the world.
Knowledge and information sharing: This refers to
building and sharing a comprehensive hub of local
governmental knowledge and intelligence. This will
enable the informed delivery of the other mandates
of SALGA. The knowledge hub is also a useful
reference point for all who seek local government
information.
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2015/16

FINANCIAL YEAR

During the year under review, SALGA'’s operations were
guided by the Strategic Plan of 2012-2017 and Annual
Performance Plan 2015/16, which identified three apex
priorities and strategic focal areas of the organisation.
The financial year under review marks the fourth year of
implementation of the Strategic Plan and the organisa-
tion continued to implement its operations mandate and
goals to ensure that that the interest of member munici-
palities are represented at all levels of government.

Representing, protecting and advancing the

interests of municipalities

= During the year under review, a number of major mile-
stones and ground breaking events were achieved
through submissions on new policies and amend-
ments of legislation introduced to Parliament, such
as the Draft White Paper on Safety and Security, the
Draft White Paper on the Police as well as the Disas-
ter Management Amendment Act.

= SALGA advocated for the funding of municipalities
on the provision of safety and crime prevention pro-
grammes in communities as well as disaster man-
agement; and the proposed amalgamation of the
Metropolitan Police into the SAPS (‘single police ser-
vice’ concept by national government)

= SALGA lobbied the National Department of Human
Settlements on changes/inputs to the Revised Strat-
egy for Accreditation and supported the next wave of
municipalities applying for accreditation, to prepare
their applications and build their capacity.

= SALGA, as part of the grant review working group
team and steering committee member, has substan-
tially affected the local government (LG) infrastruc-
ture grant review to primarily focus on the implemen-
tation of the National Development Plan (NDP) and
Integrated Urban Development Framework (IUDF).

= SALGA made several submissions to the Winter
Budget Forum (June 2015) and Budget Forum (Oc-
tober 2015) on legislative and fiscal policy issues af-

fecting the sector, including LG fiscal sustainability,
debt owed to and by municipalities, as well as de-
marcation and transitional support.

= 2015 LG Week was held in partnership with the Na-
tional Council of Provinces (NCOP) under the theme
“Celebrating 15 years of democratic and transform-
ative LG - entrenching cooperative government for
people centred development”.

Employer role and collective bargaining quest for

labour stability and peace

= SALGA concluded a multi-year Salary and Wage
Agreement for the period 2012-2015 as a founda-
tion for labour peace and stability for the next three
years and aided municipalities to achieve their me-
dium-term budgeting objectives. The wage agree-
ment ushered in a new cost containment dispensa-
tion that saved municipalities enormous amounts of
money in terms of contingent liabilities.

= A collective bargaining agreement was again con-
cluded without incident for the 2015- 2018 period
with the relevant parties and significant progress
on working towards a service charter was agreed
upon. The agreement covers over 270,000 employ-
ees in 278 municipalities.

= Effective legal intervention by SALGA resulted in the
long-standing wage curve dispute being finalised in
favour of municipalities, thereby saving municipali-
ties from retrospective wage curve back-payment.

Building the leadership and technical capacity of

the sector to play our developmental role

= SALGA continued to provide dedicated support to
municipalities with adverse audit outcomes. Sup-
port provided ranged from risk management, inter-
nal audit matters, financial management, as well as
governance and ICT control.

= Councillor training continued in the form of a Coun-
cillor Development Programme, which was rolled
out in municipalities and more than 3,500 council-
lors were trained.
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Support and advisory role

Hands-on support continued to be provided to mu-
nicipalities on human resources, labour relations and
performance-related matters.

The inaugural SALGA-SASCOC Conference was
successfully held on 10-11 July 2015 in Mangaung
to clarify roles & responsibilities and forge common
programmes on Sports & Recreation.

The 4th SALGA Women’s Commission National Lek-
gotla was convened where the main objective was to
revive the 50/50 campaign. The programme involved
engaging on the current male and female imbalanc-
es ahead of the upcoming 2016 Local Government
Elections.

SALGA organised provincial dialogues on anti-fraud
and anti-corruption and held a national roundtable on
Responsive and Responsible LG in collaboration with
the Good Governance Learning Network (GGLN).
The Small Towns Conference (#SmallTownmustRise)
was successfully hosted on 22 and 23 October 2015
in Mangaung to create a platform for key stakehold-
ers to shape the agenda of revitalising small towns
as well as share lessons and good practice in Small
Town Regeneration (STR). SALGA is now rolling out
the STR programme by focusing on four key areas.
This includes assisting municipalities to mainstream
regeneration in their Integrated Development Plants
(IDPs) and ensure that key stakeholders across
small-town typologies play a meaningful role in the
revitalisation.

A total of 18 pilot towns for the roll out of the STR
programme were identified and a standard baseline
report for STR inception was developed focusing on
four towns. Assessment of the “state of economy” of
each town was conducted and a baseline report de-
veloped.

International relations role of profiling South
African local government and strengthening
decentralisation on the continent and abroad

SALGA played a crucial role in re-unifying the United
Cities and Local Governments of Africa (UCLGA) and
are currently leading the Southern African chapter
(UCLGA-SARO).

SALGA co-hosted the 2015 Afri-cities Summit in the
City of Johannesburg to profile local government sys-
tems to the continent and world, in particular taking
forward the localisation of the post-2015 sustainable
development agenda.

United Cities and Local Governments (UCLG) con-
vened the World Summit of Local and Regional Lead-
ers and 4th UCLG Congress from 1-4 October 2013.
A key outcome of the Congress was the election of
SALGA as a member of the UCLG World Council and
UCLG Executive Bureau.

Emerging strength of SALGA’s participation and
standing in the global arena is evident in the City of
Johannesburg's bid for the UCLG Presidency.

Centre for Local Government’s Excellence,
Knowledge and Intelligence

In 2014, SALGA successfully launched a benchmark-
ing for water and sanitation services project, which
produced a set of national benchmarks for water and
sanitation services in the rural and urban context.
The benefits derived by member municipalities were
peer-learning networks, structured performance indi-
cators, a web tool for performance improvement and
data sharing.

Over 120 municipalities have taken part in knowledge
sharing and peer learning platforms on energy effi-
ciency and renewable energy over the last few years,
including a web platform.

SALGA’s Municipal Barometer and Knowledge Hub,
as a centre of intelligence for Local Government Data
and Information over the last three years, will increas-
ingly form the basis of informed decision-making, ac-
curate data and access to information.
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SOUTH AFRICAN CITIES NETWORK (SACN)

South African Cities Network (SACN) is an established network of South African cities and partners that encourages the
exchange of information, experience and best practices on urban development and city management. It is an initiative
of the Minister for Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs and nine city municipalities, in partnership with the
South African Local Government Association (SALGA). The SACN shares knowledge of large city government experi-
ences within the global and national economic development contexts, and promotes partnerships between or among
the spheres of government in the interests of enhancing good city governance in South Africa.

Financial
Relationship

Legislative
Mandate

Name of Entity

Nature of Operations

South African Established asa Municipal Levy * Knowledge and information exchange, experiences and
Cities Network  section 21 com-  Grant Allocation best practices on urban development and city management
(SACN) pany in terms of amongst members.

the South African  Secretariat to oversee governance, administration and pro-
Companies Act, grammatic functions
2008.  Active Board for oversight and championship.
¢ Providing thought leadership by producing and disseminating
credible and continual research about cities and key urban
themes.
* Enable and support cities to act and speak with one voice.
» Establish strategic relations locally, regionally and international-
ly to support the work of the network.

HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2015/16

During the year under review, SACN’s work has contin-

ued to be informed by the 2011-2016 strategic frame-

work and 2015/16 business plan, which clearly articu-

late the three key challenges facing South African local

governments as:

= The need for qualitative spatial transformation.

= Dealing with city challenges and vulnerabilities that
are exacerbated by climate change and rapid urban-
isation.

= The electorate’s negative image of local government.

Some of the network’s highlights are the following:

= Africities Summit 7: SACN was responsible for
developing the content for the South African Open
Sessions for the Africities Conference held in Johan-
nesburg, from November to December 2015. The
objectives of the Summit was to define appropriate
shared strategies in order to improve the living con-

ditions of people at the local level and to contribute
to the integration, peace and unity of Africa starting
from grassroots level. SACN was also responsible
for the development of content work in preparation of
the opening session of the summit. The tasks execut-
ed included, amongst others, convening speakers,
approving content and producing post-conference
reports of the political and technical sessions respec-
tively.

Key learning events and strategic conversations

= Urban Land Seminar - Dialogues: SACN and
various partners successfully hosted a series of di-
alogues on Urban Land. The objective of this work-
ing paper series was to inform and encourage city
governments to engage in a conversation about how
urban land can practically contribute towards achiev-
ing spatial transformation within cities, and translate
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this understanding to practice. The working papers
outlined and captured a set of perspectives that form
a common basis or platform for debating and engag-
ing, which could then lead to more appropriate and
effective land interventions by metros.

= Infrastructure Dialogues Series: Several dia-
logues were hosted by SACN jointly with the DBSA,
the National Business Initiative, the Department of
Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) in the
Presidency and the Department of Economic Devel-
opment to deliberate on infrastructure matters affect-
ing urban areas, with the purpose of sharing views
and perspectives between senior government, pri-
vate sector and civil society stakeholders in the infra-
structure sector.

Key publications

= State of City Finances Report (SOCF) of 2015:
The State of City Finances Report 2015 focused on
the challenges experienced by cities in balancing
“getting the basics right” through efficient and ef-
fective financial management and at the same time
innovating municipal revenue systems for effective
and affordable service delivery. The objectives of the
report includes, amongst others, that it must be used
as a barometer on the state of our cities; provide an
analytical tool for reviewing the strategic problems

and opportunities facing cities and agenda setting by
communicating essential messages about the plan-
ning, development and management of cities.

= Expanded Public Works Programme - Reflec-
tions over a Decade: During the year under review,
a new book was launched on evolution and the role
played by cities in the Expanded Public Works Pro-
gramme (EPWP). The book reflects on how EPWP as
a main national public employment programme, was
implemented and the lessons learnt. It also consoli-
dates some of the key suggestions and pathways for
the future of the programme.

Key Thematic Reference Groups:

SACN coordinated several reference groups as primary
platforms for peer learning and knowledge exchange,
which are practitioner-based groups with common are-
as of interest. The reference groups held during the year
under review were Urban Safety Reference Group; SA
Cities Expanded Public Works Programme Reference
Group; Knowledge Managers Reference Group; City
Waste Managers Group; SA Cities Energy Reference
Group (with partners); Spatial Planning and Land Use
Management Reference Group; Urban Indicators Ref-
erence Group; and State of Cities Report IV Reference
Group.
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MUNICIPAL DEMARCATION BOARD (MDB)

The Municipal Demarcation Board is an independent authority responsible for determining municipal boundaries in
terms of Section 155(3) (b) of the Constitution. The independence of MDB is protected by section 3 of the Local Govern-
ment Municipal Demarcation Act (1998) and various judgements by the Constitutional Court. In addition to determining
and re-determining municipal boundaries, the board is also mandated to delimit wards for local elections and assess

the capacity of municipalities to perform their functions.

Name of Fntity | Legislative Mandate

Financial

Municipal Local Government: Mu- Grant funding
Demarcation nicipal Demarcation Act,
Board 1998 (Act 27 of 1998)

Local Government: Mu-
nicipal Structures Act,
1998 (Act 108 of 1998)
Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa
(Act 108 of 1996)
Cabinet resolutions

HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2015/2016

During the year under review, the Minister of Cooper-
ative Governance and Traditional Affairs requested the
Municipal Demarcation Board (the Board) to consider
re-determining a number of municipal boundaries in
terms of Section 22(2) of the Local Government: Munic-
ipal Demarcation Act, of 1998 (the Act). There were 34
requests in total. The request of the Minister comes at
the time when the re-determining of the outer boundary
process was at its final stage and the Board was pre-
paring to commence with the ward delimitation process
to be finalised and handed over to the Independent
Electoral Commission (IEC) in preparation of the 2016
local government elections. However, the request was
considered by the Board in terms of the Act in that the
Board started the processes to re-determine municipal
boundaries affected by the 13 cases from the Minister.

The re-determination was concluded in August 2015,
which resulted in a reduction of the number of munici-

Relationship

Nature of Operations

» Determine and re-determine municipal outer boundaries.
* Delimitation of wards for local government elections.

» Consider the capacity of district and local municipalities
to perform their functions and to exercise their powers,
and provide advice to MECs.

Render advisory service in respect of matters provided for
in the Municipal Demarcation Act.

By way of cabinet resolution, the MDB also assists
government departments to align their service delivery
boundaries to municipal boundaries.

palities from 278 to 257 with effect from 3 August 20186,
which is the proclaimed date of the local government
elections.

During the year under review, the Board engaged with
and consulted all relevant stakeholders, such as MECs
through participation in MinMEC, citizens and munici-
palities as required by the Act, prior to taking any deci-
sion on re-determination of municipal boundaries.

Upon finalisation of the re-determination of municipali-
ties, the Board commenced with ward delimitations and
completed the process in December 2015. The ward
delimitation resulted in an increase from 4,277 to 4,392
wards during the 2011 local government elections, cov-
ering 213 municipalities. The delimited wards’ informa-
tion was submitted to the IEC in December 2015 to pro-
ceed with preparations for the 2016 local government
elections.
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During the re-determination and ward de-
limitation process, the Board learnt some
lessons that may be used for policy and
legislation review on demarcations. These
lessons include, amongst others:
= There is a growing request by citizen-
ry, either directly and indirectly, that the
Board must enforce its independence by
providing direct administrative and logis-
tical preparations for citizens affected by
any request for municipal re-determina-
tion, to increase awareness and partici-
pation during the processes. In relation to
the wards, the difficulty in meeting com-
munity expectations due to constraints
imposed by delimitation criteria, e.g.
small margin of variation for wards, un-
dermines the public’s role in the process.
= Utilisation of wards as planning and ser-
vice delivery units leads to resistance and
rejection of changes to ward delimitation.
= An increasing public voice against the
use of the number of registered voters in
ward delimitation instead of the popula-
tion.

As we approach the fourth decade of local government, the Board
will continue to implement its five-year strategy, which is aimed at:
= Ensuring that its decisions are credible and supported by ro-

bustly reviewed and researched information, and sourced from
reliable data, either within the Board's control or from partner
organisations whose intention or primary drive is the creation
of knowledge using nationally and internationally acceptable
standards and practices.

Enhancing public education and stakeholder management
to ensure regular engagement with citizens through rigorous
awareness campaigns, education and encouraging public
and community inputs on municipal boundary re-determina-
tions, ward delimitations and municipal capacity assessments
as well as effective management of stakeholder expectations.
Ensuring optimum spatial planning and integration. These key
elements refer to the redress of historical spatial separations
and disparities within South Africa that have a negative impact
on service delivery. In pursuing its vision, the Board aims to
lead efforts by all role players to achieve effective spatial inte-
gration within the context of rapidly changing socio-economic
conditions of local communities.

The Board will also identify and resolve those boundary problems
that relate to settlements, including Traditional Authorities, that
straddle municipal boundaries.
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2.1 Auditor-General’s Report:
Predetermined Objectives

The AGSA performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported information
against pre-determined objectives to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit con-
clusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material
findings reported on Predetermined Objectives. The detailed findings and other legal and regulatory requirements are

outlined on page 124 in Part E: Financial Information.

2.2 Overview of departmental

performance

221 SERVICE DELIVERY
ENVIRONMENT

Community protests have become a feature of local
politics in recent times. Although the causes of these
protests are of multiple origins, the available studies
generally point to poor communication with communi-
ties as one of the contributing factors.

There are concerns about the overall stability of Mu-
nicipal Administration. A variety of factors are at play,
including declining experience in key management
positions, poor relations between elected and appoint-
ed officials, high vacancy rates after local elections,
and the length of time it takes to conclude perfor-
mance contracts. The role confusion between Mayors,
Speakers and Chief Whips in the political leadership
of councils has been registered, as well as between
Public Relations (PR) and Ward Councillors. The lack
of transparency of Mayoral Committees and the way in
which the Executive is held accountable requires close
attention. Building a professional and stable local pub-
lic service is widely regarded as a priority, but equally,
there is increasing evidence that the trend is in the op-
posite direction.

In its 2015 -2019 Strategic Plan, the Department identi-

fied five priority areas:

= Responding vigorously to immediate crises in mu-
nicipalities.

= Going Back to Basics — Municipalities will be led to:

- put people and their concerns first, and ensure
constant contact with communities through ef-
fective public participation platforms;

- create conditions for decent living by consistently
delivering municipal services to the right quality
and standard;

- be well governed and demonstrate good govern-
ance and accountability;

- ensure sound financial management and ac-
counting, and prudently manage resources so
as to sustainably deliver services and bring de-
velopment to communities; and

- build and maintain sound institutional and admin-
istrative capabilities, administered and managed
by dedicated and skilled personnel at all levels.

= Continuing to build resilient local government insti-
tutions.

= Understanding and responding to structural chal-
lenges.

= |mproving intergovernmental systems.
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During the 2015/16 financial year, the Department re-
sponded to these priority areas as follows:

a. Vigorous response to immediate crises

During 2015/16 financial year, ten local municipalities

and two district municipalities were subjected to inter-

ventions by the provincial executive councils of their re-

spective provinces in terms of Section 139 and Section

154 of the Constitution. Some of the challenges expe-

rienced with the implementation of these interventions

included:

= Lack of political support for the interventions.

= Challenges with high vacancy rates in some munic-
ipalities.

= Lack of skilled personnel.

= Poor internal control systems and procedures.

= Shortage of experienced disciplinary prosecutors
and presiding officers.

= Theft and vandalism at bulk infrastructure sites.

= Ageing infrastructure.

= Land invasion / illegal occupation of land.

The drought and water shortage countrywide had a

huge impact on municipalities. In this regard, munici-

palities had to deal with issues of:

= Food security, especially the availability and access
to food produce at the low income levels in commu-
nities.

= Job losses within the farming and food processing
community, which also impacted on municipalities
revenue bases.

= Water demand and conservation for human con-
sumption versus agricultural consumption.

b. Going Back to Basics (B2B) and leading the
programme

After one year of implementation, it is still too early to

detect trends and report significant shifts/movements

within the B2B categorisation. It was found that:

= Weaknesses in delivery of basic services remain in
many municipalities.

Weak capacity in provincial CoGTA departments
does not correlate with the extent of regression in
municipal performance in those provinces.
Uneven participation in provincial task teams and
lack of central coordination and standardisation of
work of provincial task teams led to problems with
quality of information and quality of B2B action plans.
Dysfunctional municipalities are still characterised by
political instability, weaknesses in governance and
poor delivery of services.
There is a correlation between poor political lead-
ership, senior management vacancy rate, poor ap-
pointments and lack of functionality of municipalities.
Citizen engagement is generally weak in municipali-
ties categorised as dysfunctional and as those at risk.
A core aspect of B2B involves the degree to which
municipalities are putting their people and communi-
ties first, through engaging with them, providing fre-
quent report backs and addressing their concerns.
Problems include:
- Inadequate public participation processes - poor
community feedback and engagements.
- Non-functionality of ward committees.
- Inadequate complaints management systems.
- Rise in service delivery protests.
- Few municipalities have conducted Citizen Satis-
faction Surveys.
Poor budgeting for maintenance, refurbishment and
replacement of ageing infrastructure resulting in poor
quality and breakdown of service.
Incomplete and inaccurate data provided by munic-
ipalities.
There is insufficient mobilisation of social partner-
ships (traditional leaders, business and civil society).
The quality of diagnostics and analysis of data is not
good enough and therefore not leading to effective
action to address poor performance, for example, in
Amathole Municipality, weaknesses in technical ca-
pacity was identified by a sector as the key problem,
whereas a detailed inter-sector analysis showed up
revenue collection as the key issue.
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c. Continuing to build resilient local government
institutions

Municipal viability is often highlighted by the Audi-
tor-General as a concern. According to the Municipal
Systems Act, act 32 of 2000, “financially sustainable”,
in relation to the provision of a municipal service, means
the provision of a municipal service in a manner aimed
at ensuring that the financing of that service from inter-
nal and external sources, including budgeted income,
grants and subsidies for the service, is sufficient to cov-
er the costs of the initial capital expenditure required
for the service, operating the service and maintaining,
repairing and replacing the physical assets used in the
provision of the service.

Evidence suggests that the increasing expectations of
the population for service delivery are no longer being
met by the current levels of municipal investment. Asset
maintenance and life-cycle management are very weak,
as the low levels of maintenance expenditure reflect. It
may be that different approaches are needed for differ-
ent municipalities that are considered unviable. While
some could be made viable by more effective capacity,
funding and other support from provincial and national
government, others might have to be absorbed into ad-
joining municipalities.

d. Understanding and responding to structural
challenges

South Africa’s cities and towns were shaped by the
apartheid legacy of racial segregation, poverty and ex-
clusion from social and economic opportunities. High
levels of inefficiency and wasteful use of scarce resourc-
es (especially land and infrastructure networks) charac-
terise the country’s cities and towns. Despite significant
service delivery and development gains since 1994,
these spatial patterns have largely not been reversed.

The Integrated Urban Development Framework (IUDF)
responds to the challenge of spatial integration in the
country. The IUDF’s overall outcome is aimed at spatial
transformation, i.e. reversing the inefficient spatial pat-
terns in a way that promotes both social and econom-

ic development, while protecting the environment. The
IUDF gives more practical meaning to the urban futures
vision set out in the National Development Plan (NDP).

e. Improving intergovernmental systems

B2B should not only be a CoGTA programme, but rath-
er a government-wide programme. Intergovernmental
cooperation between all national and provincial depart-
ments must be enhanced. The work of the Inter-Ministe-
rial Task Team on service delivery is critical in this regard.
All sector departments must be hands-on in their sup-
port to municipalities and all spheres should prioritise
and focus on the 20% of actions, which will create 80%
of the impact by using available levers for change.

Intergovernmental relations (IGR) structures at provin-
cial level, which include Mayors and Municipal Manag-
ers, MECs of sector departments and their Heads of
Departments (HoDs), must be institutionalised. These
structures should be chaired by the CoGTA MEC. The
capacity of the provincial CoGTA departments to moni-
tor and support the operations of municipalities should
be strengthened.

Developmental local government remains the visionary

foundation for the continuing reconstruction and devel-

opment of our country by:

= continuing and accelerating the hands-on approach;

= prioritising and focusing on campaigns, programmes
and projects that have high visibility, broader mobili-
sation and impact on delivery and messaging of core
B2B objectives in the pre- and post-election period;

= using the available levers to incentivise and enforce
good behaviour and practice;

= ensuring accelerated delivery of basic services, i.e.
water, sanitation, electricity, roads and storm-water
and waste removal;

= mobilising multi-departmental teams to tackle dys-
functional municipalities (mobilising national and
provincial resources);

= improving support and intervention to address weak-
nesses in support programmes and interventions be-
ing designed and implemented.
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222 SERVICE DELIVERY IMPROVEMENT
PLAN

The Department did not develop the Service Delivery
Improvement Plan (SDIP) for the financial year 2015/186,
as required by the Public Service Regulations, Chap-
ter 1, Part Il C. The Department had human capacity
constraints to undertake the development and imple-
mentation of the SDIP. However, to ensure adherence to
the regulations, the Department has appointed a dedi-
cated official to perform this area of work.

223 ORGANISATIONAL
ENVIRONMENT

The Department implemented the newly approved or-
ganisational structure to operationalise the Second
Phase of the Back to Basics programme, which is prem-
ised on the 80/20 principle, where 80% of outcomes
could be attributed to 20% of actions based on an effi-
cient use of resources. The reorganisation of the Depart-
ment resulted in the transfer of functions from one pro-
gramme to another, which had an effect on the delivery
of some functions. The Department has now realigned
itself to respond to the Back to Basics programme and
to ensure that it delivers on its core mandate.

Key policy developments and legislative
changes

Between February and April 2015 the Minister request-
ed the Municipal Demarcation Board (MDB), in terms of
Section 22(2) of the Municipal Demarcation Act, to de-
termine or re-determine the boundaries of various mu-
nicipalities. This was done in consultation with all MECs
responsible for local government in the provinces. After
consideration of the relevant factors, the number of mu-
nicipalities are to be reduced from the current 278 to
257 after the 2016 local government elections. Prepa-
rations for these amalgamations are in full swing and
will have a serious impact on the success of the newly
amalgamated municipalities.

224 STRATEGIC OUTCOME
ORIENTED GOALS

Since the adoption of the outcome approach by gov-
ernment in 2010, 14 outcomes were identified, which
are coordinated by different Ministries. The Ministry for
Cooperative Governance is responsible for facilitating
delivery of Outcome 9: A responsive, accountable, ef-
fective and efficient local government system and sup-
ports the realisation of outputs identified in the following
outcomes:

Outcome 10: Environmental assets and natural
resources that are well protected and continually
enhanced.

The National Disaster Management Centre (NDMC)
consistently provided quarterly progress reports to the
Department of Environmental Affairs, which is coordi-
nating Outcome 10. The NDMC contributes to the re-
duction of vulnerability and risks associated with climate
change impacts. The NDMC is required to coordinate
the development of eight disaster management plans
annually. This target was exceeded, as nine disaster
management plans were coordinated and developed.
The Department of Environmental Affairs committed to
assisting provinces and municipalities to integrate cli-
mate change issues in the disaster management plans.

Outcome 14: Nation building and social cohesion
The Department contributed towards ensuring that 5%
of municipalities were able to demonstrate inclusion of
the poor in municipal processes, through updating of
indigent registers. During 2015/16, all 35 targeted mu-
nicipalities were supported and interactive feedback
sessions were held with municipalities; an indigent as-
sessment tool was administered and specific recom-
mendations made and signed off by municipal manag-
ers as part of the improvement plans. Support focused
on, among others, definition of indigent households in
targeted areas, criteria for the identification of indigent
households, mechanisms applied to targeted indigents
and, registration.
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The Community Work Programme (CWP) contributed to-
wards greening of public spaces through the implemen-
tation and maintenance of parks and vegetable gardens
in 110 sites, during this reporting period. In addition, 140
CWP sites have conducted clean-up campaigns.

The Department finalised a Compliance Framework
on the Establishment and Operations to improve par-
ticipation in the community-based governance elective
processes, such as ward committee elections meet-
ings. The Framework will be utilised as guideline for the
election, establishment and operations of a new cadre
of ward committees after the 2016 Local Government
Elections.

In order to achieve Outcome 9, the Department identi-

fied the following strategic goals, which were expressed

in the Strategic Plan 2014 — 19 and Annual Performance

Plan 2014/15:

= Strategic Goal 1: Create a functional local gov-
ernment system based on accountability for perfor-
mance.

= Strategic Goal 2: Ensure significant improvements
in service delivery through sound infrastructure man-
agement.

= Strategic Goal 3: Build institutional resilience and
initiate the next phase of institution building.

= Strategic Goal 4: Lead and support the creation
of prosperous cities and towns by restructuring the
space economy.

= Strategic Goal 5: Entrench a culture of good gov-
ernance and instil a new morality of service and integ-
rity in local government.

= Strategic Goal 6: Expand local public employment
programmes through the Community Work Pro-
gramme.

= Strategic Goal 7: Strengthen, coordinate and sup-
port effective integrated disaster management and
fire services.

The aforementioned strategic goals are linked to the five
Sub-Outcomes outlined in the Outcome 9 Medium Term
Strategic Framework (MTSF 2014 - 2019) and five Back

to Basics Pillars, which are: putting people first, deliver-
ing basic services, good governance, sound financial
management, and building institutional capability.

In the second year of implementation of Outcome 9
MTSF (2014 - 2019), DCOG established the Programme
Management Office (PMQO) in June 2015. The PMQO is co-
ordinated at the Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent
(MISA), to address service delivery backlogs in the 27
Priority District Municipalities. The primary function of the
PMO is to fast track the planning and implementation
of projects and operations as well as maintenance re-
quirements in the 27 priority district municipalities. Key
sector departments, namely: the Departments of Water
and Sanitation, Energy, Environmental Affairs, Transport,
and their provincial counterparts have collaborated with
MISA to address the service delivery backlogs in a ho-
listic approach, that is implemented in phases. Phase 1,
which included diagnosing municipalities to identify the
status of basic service delivery, key challenges, availabil-
ity of resources against requirements, and the way for-
ward, has been concluded in some districts. The plan is
to conduct the assessments in 10 District Municipalities
by March 2017.

The DCOG has also made strides with regard to the
development of ward level service operational plans.
To date, 4,264 out of 4,277 (99,7%) ward service level
operational plans have been developed with only 13
(1,3%) plans outstanding from the Mogalakwena Local
Municipality in Limpopo, which has been placed under
administration in terms of Section 139 of the Constitution.
The Department will continue to monitor and assist mu-
nicipalities to improve communication with communities
through regular feedback meetings on service delivery
issues by means of the Back to Basics programme.

In our endeavour to improve audit outcomes in local gov-
ernment, the Department, in conjunction with its counter-
parts, has assisted municipalities to address the issues
raised by the AGSA to reduce the disclaimer and adverse
audit outcomes. There is an improvement in audit results
of municipalities over the years from 2010/11 to 2014/15.
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COGTA and National Treasury will continue to guide and
monitor the implementation of post-audit action plans
by municipalities.

DCOG has finalised the Integrated Urban Development
Framework (IUDF) and the 2016-2019 Implementation
Plan, which were endorsed by Cabinet on 26 April 2016.

The approval of the framework is a significant milestone
for the entire government and other partners, as it pro-
vides a shared understanding on how to manage ur-
banisation. DCOG will continue to work collaboratively
with relevant stakeholders to ensure that levers at our
disposal are used.

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

The Department continued to implement plans, strategies and actions geared towards the attainment of long-term
goals and objectives. There were refinements to the Strategic Objectives that were set in the Strategic Plan 2014-2019,
mainly due to the introduction of the Back to Basics Programme in 2015, which necessitated a new approach in execut-
ing our strategy. These improvements have been included in the revised Strategic Plan 2015-2019.

A periodic review of progress on our set objectives is necessary and gives us the opportunity to adjust our thinking,
correct our course, improve our delivery approach and move forward as we continue with the implementation of our
Strategic Plan. Among the 17 strategic objectives set in the Strategic Plan and APP 2015/16, there are some showing
significant progress in implementation towards the attainment of our goals, as shown in the table below:

Strategic Objectives 2019

1.Provide efficient and
effective corporate
governance and
administrative support
services for COGTA to

Progress

The in-year realignment of functions to give effect to implementation of the B2B programme
had an effect on implementing some planned initiatives. However, this is a significant mile-
stone since the beginning of the electoral term 2014-2019, because there is now stability
moving forward subsequent to concurrence by DPSA and approval of the Organisational
Structure by the Minister. We are confident that this will boost the internal capacity of DCoG

deliver on its mandate by to enable the delivery of key programmes planned for the remainder of the electoral term.

March 2019.

The organisational structure and budget programme structure are now approved. This will

help us to put the necessary capacity and capabilities in place to execute DCoG's mandate.

2.Build accountability
for performance in
local government
systems through setting
and enforcing clear
performance standards
by March 2019.

Officially launched by the President in April 2014, the B2B Programme signals our com-
mitment to working with provinces and municipalities in order to deliver the best quality
services to communities. As of 2014, we were able to conduct assessments on the state
of at least 90% of municipalities. We also formed provincial crack teams, which comprised
sector department and provincial counterparts. Focused intervention plans are currently
being implemented and quarterly reports generated.

These assessment reports, coupled with the report on the state of local government, will

provide insight on areas of intervention and isolate municipalities that are struggling. We
have also, in this financial year, and since 2010, developed the Municipal Performance
Report as per Section 48 of the Municipal Systems Act.

3.Strengthen accountability Enhancing knowledge and information management is the key to devising intervention

for performance in the

strategies. Factoring in data on categories of municipalities (at risk and dysfunctional) we

local government system were able to revisit our intervention plan and beef up provincial crack teams. Aimost 60% of
by enhancing knowledge municipalities are reporting against set indicators.

and information
management by March
2019.

We have developed an information hub with various information sources for municipalities.
We also documented 10 case studies on best practices at municipalities.
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Strategic Objectives 2019 Progress
4. Implement initiative to improve Since the beginning of the 2014/15 financial year, we have placed effort into
financial sustainability, revenue improving financial sustainability. We were able to assist 90 municipalities to
management and audit outcomes in better manage their debt issues through analysis and feedback on their credit

local government by March 2019. control and debt collection policies.
252 municipalities were assisted with compliance to the Municipal Property
Rates Act (MPRA) and recommendations were communicated.
We notice an increasing trend of municipal audit outcomes, from 53% in
2014/15 to 64% in the year under review.

5. Structure intergovernmental We continue to promote the efficient functioning of IGR structures over the
relations (IGR) so that National and medium term expenditure framework (MTEF). We managed to facilitate discus-
Provincial government can support, sions related to the Government Programme of Action on Outcome 9; quarterly
monitor, intervene and enforce reports were compiled and tabled at Cabinet consistently since 2011.
performance by March 2019. We are still confident that the Intergovernmental Monitoring, Support and Inter-

vention (IMSI) Bill will be tabled in Parliament within this medium term strategic
framework (MTSF) period in order to set a firm base for supporting manage-
ment interventions where there are challenges and enforcing performance
where necessary.

6. Coordinate and implement With this objective we would like to see an improvement in service delivery.
sustainable infrastructure A total of 2.4 million (67,8%) indigent households benefited from free water
development and maintenance services. Free basic electricity was provided to 2.2 million (62,8%) indigent
initiatives in order to improve and households and 2.1 million (58,7%) of these households benefited from the
extend infrastructure to unserved indigent support system for sewerage and sanitation. While a further 2.1 million
communities by March 2019. (57,6%) indigent households benefited from the indigent support system for

solid waste management, 75,738 indigent households benefited from free
basic alternative energy in the form of a solar home system.

7. Provide and maintain 1 million work We are continuing with the creation of work opportunities and other initiatives in

opportunities through building order to meet the one million target. The number of work opportunities created
capacity of participants and increased from 174,725 in 2013/14 to 202,447 in 2014/15.
establishing strategic partnerships
by March 2019.
8. Increase public confidence in In the year under review, we continued to monitor the functionality of Ward
the local government system by Committees. A cumulative total of 4 264 (99.7%) ward operational plans were

changing the relationship between developed and implemented in municipal wards.
citizens and local government and A framework on community engagement mechanisms was developed to
strengthening citizen engagement  provide municipalities in particular Speakers with the context in which to plan,
mechanisms by March 2019. implement and monitor community engagement processes.
We also conducted a National citizens’ satisfaction survey to assess communi-
ties’ confidence in Local Government.

9. Strengthen anti-corruption We are still on track in terms of enforcing all municipalities to implement
measures and enforce applicable anti-corruption measures. We revised the Local Government anti-corruption
legislation and policies by March strategy and started implementing some elements thereof. We have begun to

2019. compile reports that outline progress about forensic investigations.
10. Improve the system of disaster Our initiative to improve disaster management and fire services systems is on
management and fire services track. We are confident that, after all the consultations have been completed,

across government by March 2019. we will be having a solid Bill on fire services.
Our advocacy campaigns on disaster risk reduction were extended to all prov-
inces, of which five provinces have been identified to roll out the advocacy and
awareness plans.
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Strategic Objectives 2019 Progress

11. Develop a disaster management The Disaster Management and Fire Services M&E framework was implement-
and fires services monitoring and ed. In the year under review, a database was developed of declared disasters,
evaluation system by March 2019. which included North West, KwaZulu-Natal, Free State, Limpopo and the West-

ern Cape. A NDMC team has been working with these provinces, particularly
KwaZulu-Natal, which is more severely affected, in order to assist with mitigat-
ing the effects of the drought.

12. Strengthen the functionality One of the key pillars of the Back to Basics programme is building institutional
of municipalities through the capacity. This includes ensuring that administrative positions are filled with
development and implementation of competent and committed people whose performance is closely monitored.
administrative institutional systems The number of people employed by municipalities increased from 270,714
by March 2019. in 2014 to 279, 109 in 2015. 38% of the 278 posts of mayors and executive

mayors are female.

13. Facilitate and coordinate capacity Municipalities also proved to be an important source of employment. One of

building initiatives in order to the key pillars of the Back to Basics programme is building institutional capaci-
build capable municipalities by ty. This includes ensuring that administrative positions are filled with competent
March 2019. and committed people whose performance is closely monitored. The number

of people employed by municipalities increased from 270, 714 in 2014 to
279,109 in 2015. Importantly, of the 278 posts of mayors and executive mayors
in SA, 38% were female.

14. Facilitate the restructuring of city Targeted cities and towns were not supported to develop long-term strategies
space economy through changes in and spatial development frameworks (SDFs). The project was re-conceptu-
land use planning and management alised to focus on the development of a toolkit to support integrated spatial
by March 2019. planning in secondary cities and fast-growing towns.

15. Promote good governance and an  The annual oversight report to the Minister and the Consolidated Section 106
ethical culture in local government  report were not developed. The output of this particular target was achieved
by March 2019. through the State of Local Government performance report which gives insight

of the state of governance of municipalities

16. Facilitate private sector investment  Since 2013 we have been facilitating collaborative catalytic business ventures

through the implementation of between the private sector and municipalities. In the year under review, we
innovative programmes that managed to support 22 municipalities in establishing partnerships with the
stimulate local economies by end-  private sector.

March 2019.

There are some strategic objectives where implementation progress was not as significant as we expected it to be.
Some were due to situations beyond the Department’s control.

We remain open to trends already emerging from a rapidly changing Local Government.

225 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

The activities of the Department were organised according to the following programmes for the financial year under
review:

= Programme 1: Administration.

= Programme 2: Policy, Research and Knowledge Management.

= Programme 3: Governance and Intergovernmental Relations.

= Programme 4: National Disaster Management Centre.

= Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal Government Support.

= Programme 6: Infrastructure and Economic Development.
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Programme |:

PURPOSE

To provide for the management, leadership and admin-
istration of the Department. The programme includes
the Office of the Director-General (ODG); Office of the
Chief Operating Officer (COQ), Corporate and Financial
Services.

PROGRAMME OBJECTIVES AND

MEASURES

This programme seeks to achieve the following strategic

objectives:

= Build accountability for performance in local govern-
ment systems through setting and enforcing clear
performance standards by March 2019.

= Provide efficient and effective cooperative govern-
ance and administrative support services for COGTA
to deliver on its mandates by March 2019.

SUB-PROGRAMMES

The sub-programmes listed below are linked to the stra-
tegic orientated goals, namely: refocusing and strength-
ening COGTA’s capacity to deliver on its mandate as

well as creating a functional local government system
based on accountability for performance. All the activ-
ities contributing to the achievement of these strategic
goals and objectives were implemented through the op-
eration plans.

= Ministry

The office of the Minister provided Administrative, Parlia-
mentary, Cabinet Support and Media Liaison services to
the Minister and Deputy Minister.

= Management (ODG)

During the 2015/16 financial year, the Department
had effective management and executive structures
in place. MINEXCO, Top Management Committee,
Quarterly Performance Review Meetings and Strategic
Planning Sessions are structures where departmental
performance against planned targets in the 2015/16
Annual Performance Plan and Budget allocations were
monitored and strategic interventions were put in place
where programmes were lagging behind the quarterly
targets. These committees convened on a regular ba-
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sis and according to the approved Terms of Referenc-
es. Executive guidance and interventions were obtained
during these engagements to ensure actions towards
the effective achievement of Departmental objectives
and goals. During COGTA MinMec meetings, MECs
and provinces provided reports on the implementation
of the Back to Basics programme. At the Presidential
Coordinating Council (PCC), Premiers provided reports
to the President on, inter alia, the implementation of the
B2B programme.

» |nternational and donor relations

South Africa’s local government system is seen as one
of the best models for local governance and democratic
involvement of citizens in planning and participating in
their own development by both its regional, continental
and international peers. During the reporting year, the
Department played an important role in assisting its
regional and international peers by exchanging knowl-
edge on South African local government policy and leg-
islation. In this regard, the Department hosted a number
of knowledge exchange study visits with the Ministry of
Local Government and Chieftainship of the government
of Lesotho on the establishment of executive councils
in local government, as well as Swaziland on the Lo-
cal Economic Development (LED) policy environment in
South Africa and the role of Local Government Associ-
ations in LED.

The Department also sustained its support to the post-
war reconstruction and development of the Democratic
Republic of Congo (DRC) by participating in the imple-
mentation of South Africa’s Tri-partite Mechanism on
Dialogue and Cooperation with Angola and the DRC.
In addition, the Department participated in a number
of international learning and training engagements with
partner countries such as Japan, Russia, India, China,
Germany and ltaly. These international engagements
have helped to integrate international experiences from
the more developed countries in a number of our pro-
grammes, including urban development practices,

comparative local government systems, disaster man-
agement and human resource development. In addi-
tion, the Department also benefited from the support of
development cooperation partners such as the Japan
International Cooperation Agency (JICA) and the Ger-
man GIZ.

= Chief Operating Officer

This sub-programme provided strategic manage-
ment support and directed the system of corporate
governance with a view to achieving the long-term
strategic goals of the Department. In this regard, the
sub-programme facilitated the development of the
Annual Performance Plan (APP) 2016/17, which was
approved by the Minister and tabled in Parliament on
10 March 2016. The sub-programme also facilitated
the Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) of organisation-
al performance through the development of quarterly
performance reports as well as the 2014/15 Annual
Performance Report. The sub-programme provided
strategic support to the Department’s Executive and
the various branches in the development of quarter-
ly performance reports and Annual Performance Plan
through the facilitation of Strategic Planning Sessions
and Quarterly Review Meetings.

The sub-programme also ensured that the Depart-
ment complied with various legislative requirements
on strategic planning, such as the National Treasury
Framework for Strategic Plans and Annual Perfor-
mance Plans and Quarterly Reporting guidelines. In an
effort to address the recurring audit findings relating to
performance information, a Departmental Monitoring
and Evaluation Task Team was established, compris-
ing M&E practitioners from various branches. The M&E
Task Team assessed the draft APP 2016/17 to ensure
that performance targets are specific, measurable, at-
tainable, realistic and timely (SMART) and indicators
are well-defined in accordance with the Framework for
Managing Programme Performance Information.
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The sub-programme also managed the strategic rela-
tions with various stakeholders with regard to perfor-
mance management, such as the National Treasury,
Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation and
the AGSA.

= Corporate Services
This sub-programme has achieved the following:

Human Capital Management

The sub-programme Human Capital Management is
mainly responsible for the overall workforce planning
and management to ensure that COGTA cultivates a di-
verse, competent and well-managed staff complement
capable of and committed to the delivery of high quality
services. Key hereto is to ensure balance by the recruit-
ment of the right quality and quantity of staff, and their
optimum utilisation, resulting in a multi-skilled, repre-
sentative and flexible work force. Support was provided
throughout the Department by facilitating the develop-
ment of job profiles and conducting job evaluations in
line with the Public Service Act requirements. Several
employee wellness sessions, such as financial well-
ness, ear and eye tests, HIV and AIDS were organised
by the sub-programme, including the introduction of a
partnership with the South African National Blood Ser-
vices (SANBS).

One hundred and twenty-three vacant funded posts were
filled with the support of the various line function manag-
ers. All Senior Management Services (SMS) members
disclosed their financial interests before the due date
and the information was submitted to the Public Service
Commission on time. Various information sessions were
held with staff members to communicate the available
service benefits and to ensure a better understanding of
them. Furthermore, 28 training programmes were imple-
mented during this financial year. Moreover, orientation
programmes for 86 newly appointed employees and 10
Compulsory Induction Programmes (CIPs) for levels 1
to 5 staff members and 26 for level 6 to 12 staff mem-

bers were conducted. A total of 842 staff members were
trained in the above-mentioned interventions during this
financial year with some officials having attended more
than one intervention.

The Department awarded 42 staff members with bur-
saries to study towards qualifications in line with the
Departmental Strategic Plan, but only 25 utilised their
bursaries. The Directorate further facilitated the achieve-
ment of employment equity in the Department by en-
suring 47% representation of women at senior manage-
ment level and improved representation of people with
disabilities to 1%. The programme institutionalised the
8 Principles Action Plan for Promoting Women Empow-
erment and Gender Equality. To encourage meritorious
achievement, performance rewards were granted to all
qualifying staff members in the Department during the
year under review. Quarterly performance management
and development sessions were conducted to ensure
that individual performance was linked to the broader
overall objectives of the Department.

Financial services

The prescribed financial, supply chain and asset man-
agement services were provided to the Department.
Continued efforts were made to improve compliance
with legislative and policy requirements in support of the
service delivery of the Department. Budget planning,
expenditure management and reporting were done in
collaboration with all line functions

Legislative review and drafting

This unit is responsible for the review and drafting of leg-
islation, contract management and due diligence and
provides litigation support in cases involving the Min-
istry. During the 2015/16 financial year, the Directorate:
Litigation prepared a report for the Minister, reflecting
cases managed on behalf of DCoG and DTA as at 31
March 2016. Of the 12 Promotion of Administrative Jus-
tice Act (PAJA) workshops planned, the Directorate:
Due Diligence and Contracts Management conduct-
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ed eight workshops. The reason for the variance was
that workshops were provisionally discontinued due
to budget constraints implemented by DCoG. A Mon-
itoring Toolkit report reflecting projects undertaken by
DCoG by 31 March 2016 was submitted. A report re-
flecting the number of compliance issues of DCoG and
a report reflecting the number of contracts edited/vetted
and legal opinions furnished by 31 March 2016 were
also submitted.

Internal Audit and Risk Management

During the 2015/16 financial year, the Internal Audit Di-
rectorate developed a risk-based Internal Audit Plan that
was adopted and approved by the Audit Committee and
subsequently implemented. As per the approved plan,
23 audits were scheduled for the year under review. This
also included ad hoc projects as requested by Man-
agement. The Internal Audit Directorate also provided
comprehensive recommendations to strengthen and
improve internal controls.

The Community Work Programme (CWP) Internal Audit
Directorate was capacitated in June 2015 and site visits
were conducted in all provinces, providing management
with reasonable assurance that the internal controls that
had been put in place were working as intended. This
process also identified challenges and emerging risks
that were presented to management for intervention.
The Internal Audit Directorate also assisted manage-
ment with various consulting engagements in respect
of CWR specifically on issues of Value Added Tax (VAT)
and Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF) implications.
The Directorate also assisted with the verification of ir-
regular expenditure to ensure that there was compliance
with Supply Chain Management policies and other rele-
vant legislation and prescripts, and to ensure that irreg-
ular expenditure was fully disclosed in the Annual Finan-
cial Statements. An annual risk management plan was
developed, approved and implemented. The Depart-
mental Risk Management policy, strategy and related
procedures were also reviewed during this period. The

annual risk assessments were conducted at strategic
and operational levels. This also included identifying In-
formation and Communications Technology (ICT) and
fraud-related risks which were used in the development
of the Department’s Internal Audit Plan. New and/or
emerging risks were also identified during this period,
and mitigation measures for managing such risks were
developed and monitored as well.

The mitigation measures and key risk indicators were
developed for the high-risk areas and monitored on a
quarterly basis. The management of the departmental
risks were further reported to the Risk Management
Committee, Quarterly Review Management and Audit
Committee meetings throughout the year.

Branch Risk Champions were appointed and trained
on their roles and responsibilities. New officials were
also trained on their risk management responsibilities
as contained in the departmental risk management
strategy.

Regular fraud prevention and ethics awareness and
related programmes were implemented in accordance
with the fraud prevention awareness plan for 2015/16.

= Office accommodation

This sub-programme had several engagements with
the Department of Public Works on the acquisition of
a COGTA Head Office building. The tender to procure
the building will be re-advertised due to non-respon-
siveness of the shortlisted bids to tender specifications.
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER-PERFORMANCE

= B2B assessment reports: The Department will, in the next financial year, produce a bi-annual report on implemen-
tation of the Back to Basics priorities by municipalities, which will provide a comprehensive overview of the areas that
have performed well and those that require improvements and intervention.

= Annual Municipal Performance Report (MSA Section 48): The Annual Municipal Performance Report will be
submitted to Parliament and the MECs for local government.

= Skills audit outcomes implemented: The Skills Audit will be implemented internally. The e-s Skills System has
been conceptualised and the target is carried over to the 2016/17 financial year. The system will then be implemented
through phases, details of which will be included in the project plan.

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

There were no changes to the planned targets during the financial year.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The expenditure and variance versus the final appropriation are provided below: (pre-audit figures)

2015/2016 20142015
Sub-Programme Name

Final Actual (Over) Under Final Actual (Over) Under
Appropriation Performance Expenditure Appropriation Performance Expenditure

Ministry 30 247 29 551 696 33305 33305 =
Management 18 905 18 864 41 16 673 16 668 5
Chief Operating Officer 14 126 14122 4 12 181 11 905 276
Corporate Services 98 243 98 204 39 85 476 85 360 116
Financial Services 27 590 27 589 1 22013 22 013 =
Communication & Liaison 8 004 7082 922 9 321 9 321 =
Legislation, Review & Drafting 10 310 10310 = 11130 11130 =
Internal Audit & Risk Management 7 836 7 836 = 8619 8619 =
Office Accommodation 55 864 55 864 = 43 307 43 307 =
Total 271125 269 422 1703 242 025 241 628 397

Administration provides leadership and administration of the Department. The programme spent 99.4% of its budget.
The under-spending was mainly in Ministry and Communication. No serious concerns of underperformance were re-
ported.
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Programme 2:

Policy, Research and
KnowZedge Management

PURPOSE

To provide specialised support services to the Depart-
ment in the areas of research and knowledge manage-
ment, policy formulation and information communica-
tion and business technology.

PROGRAMME OBJECTIVES AND

MEASURES

The programme seeks to achieve the following strategic

objectives:

= Strengthen accountability for performance in the lo-
cal government system by enhancing knowledge
and information management by March 2019

= Provide efficient and effective corporate governance
and administrative support services for COGTA to
deliver on its mandate by March 2019.

SUB-PROGRAMMES

The sub-programmes listed below are linked to the fol-
lowing strategic orientated goals: Refocus and strength-
en the capacity of COGTA to deliver on its mandate and
functionality of local government system based on ac-
countability for performance.

» Policy and research methods
This sub-programme contributes to the strategic objec-
tive of strengthening accountability for performance in

the local government system by enhancing knowledge
and information management by March 2019. The pur-
pose of the sub-programme is to provide specialised
support services to the Department in the areas of re-
search and knowledge management as well as policy
development. In this regard, the unit supported the De-
partment with more than 25 research analyses on issues
topical for local government, e.g. protest hotspots, more
than 12 profiles of municipalities, various briefings on
topics such as the organisation and functions of local
government, analysis of performance in metros and
provinces and the relevance of poverty and social impact
analysis. A State of Local Government report was devel-
oped in view of an envisaged local government summit.

= Knowledge and information
management

The Knowledge and Information sub-programme de-
signed the prototype of the Local Government infor-
mation hub on SharePoint and was instrumental in the
creation and maintenance of a B2B workspace for the
Department. The Knowledge Management unit further-
more provided support to the Risk Management unit on
the business process mapping project, documenting
and mapping records and information management pro-
cesses, as well as support to the Corporate Secretariat
on the B2B contact databases.
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STRATEGIES TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER-PERFORMANCE
= Due to human resources constraints, the development and publishing of the case studies will not be implemented
in 2016/17.

= The development of the ICT architecture was carried over to the 2016/17 financial year and will be implemented
through the Operational Plan.

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

There were no changes to the planned targets during the financial year.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The expenditure and variance versus the final appropriation are provided below (pre-audited figures)

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub-Programme Name Final Actual  (Over) Under Final Actual  (Over) Under

Appropriation Performance Expenditure Appropriation Performance Expenditure

Management: Research and

Policy & 779 4776 1003 4151 3404 747
Policy Methods and Research 5572 5 358 214 7792 6 759 1033
Knowledge and Information

Management 7 930 7 780 150 8 308 8 308 =
Total 19 281 17 914 1367 20 251 18 471 1780

Policy, Research and Knowledge Management provided specialised support services to the Department in the areas of
research and knowledge management, and policy formulation. The Programme spent 92.9% of its budget. The under-
spending was mainly in the office of the Deputy Director-General. There are no serious concerns of underperformance
reported.
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Programme 5:

CHAPTER - " 2

Governance and :
Intergovernmental Relations

PURPOSE

To manage, promote and facilitate an effective system
of intergovernmental fiscal relations in support of mu-

nicipalities to deliver sustainable infrastructure for in-
creased access to basic services, improve financial and
revenue management audit outcomes, and to imple-
ment the Municipal Property Rates Act (MPRA).

OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES

The programme seeks to achieve the following objec-
tives:

= Strengthen intergovernmental arrangements for de-
livery of services, collaborative planning and over-
sight within the system of cooperative government.

= Coordinate and implement sustainable infrastructure
development and maintenance initiatives in order to
improve the quality of services and extend infrastruc-
ture to un-served communities by March 2019.

= Build institutional resilience and initiate the next
phase of institution building.

= Create a functional local government system based
on accountability for performance.

= Entrench a culture of good governance in local gov-
ernment.

SUB-PROGRAMMES
The sub-programmes listed below contributed to the fol-
lowing strategic orientated goals:

= Management: Governance

Intergovernmental coordination

The Intergovernmental Relations sub-programme’s stra-
tegic objective was to review and develop policy, as well
as assess impact of internal legislation and sector legis-
lation on provincial and local government. In the financial
year under review, the sub-programme focused on final-
ising the assessment of the intergovernmental relations
(IGR) structures at national and provincial level, and pro-
ducing a comprehensive Synthesis Report. The assess-
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ments were conducted in terms of the effective admin-
istration of the Intergovernmental Relations Framework
Act (2005) and the assessment cycle is now complete.
Intergovernmental coordination is an essential element
of monitoring the implementation of Back to Basics, and
the IGR structures are playing a key role in this regard.

Intergovernmental fiscal relations

This sub-programme strengthens intergovernmen-
tal fiscal relations through local government equitable
share transfers, manages the transfers to municipalities
for the municipal infrastructure grant and municipal sys-
tems improvement grant, and manages the Municipal
Property Rates Act (2004).

The sub-programme guides municipalities to comply
with critical rating aspects of the Municipal Property
Rates Act and its regulations. Amongst others, this is
accomplished by sourcing information, such as munici-
pal rates policies, rates by-laws and resolutions regard-
ing levy rates that contain rates tariffs. The outcome
of the assessment indicates whether a particular mu-
nicipality is compliant of not. A municipality is deemed
compliant if its rating practice is in line with the criteria/
objectives/conditions stipulated in the principal legisla-
tion, relevant Regulations and Guidelines/Circulars. In
terms of the 2015/16 financial year, 152 municipalities
were assessed and the outcome was provided to mu-
nicipalities in February 2016, including in the case of
non-compliance, recommendations on corrective ac-
tions for the 2016/17 municipal financial year.

In recognising that the level of service delivery needs
to be supported by solid financial health, the revenue
management leg of the sub-programme is responsible
for implementing initiatives to improve financial sus-
tainability, revenue management and debt collection
in municipalities. These initiatives include the review of
municipal credit control and debt collection policies in
order to create a solid legal platform for the debt col-
lection legal process. During the year under review, 60
municipalities’ policies were reviewed and input provid-
ed for the municipalities to support credible budgets.

In order to improve financial management oversight, a
support programme to strengthen the functionality of
Municipal Public Accounts Committees (MPACs) result-
ed in training that was conducted, targeting Gauteng,
Limpopo, Northern Cape, Mpumalanga, Free State and
North West Provinces.

Transparent financial management reporting and good
governance in municipalities are supported through a na-
tional audit outcomes response plan that was developed
and implemented to guide provinces and municipalities
on the focus areas and quarterly deliverables in response
to audit outcomes. In this regard, municipalities were
supported to develop credible post-audit action plans,
which were reviewed for adequacy in responding to the
Auditor-General’'s finding and the implementation was
monitored through provincial intergovernmental struc-
tures. This resulted in an improvement in overall audit
outcomes of municipalities.

Governance and Public Participation

The sub-programme Governance and Public Participa-
tion’s strategic objective was to deepen participatory
democracy through common standards and practices
of accountability that will strengthen the functionality of
ward committees by facilitating community feedback and
other engagement mechanisms. Appropriate support
measures to strengthen the functionality of ward com-
mittees were instituted through a compliance framework
that will inform the establishment and operations of ward
committees post-2016 Local Government elections. All
municipalities were supported to implement the national
framework on funding for ward committees. The com-
pliance framework also provides for the development of
municipal community engagement plans, which will give
effect to effective public participation programmes to be
implemented by councillors.

Measures were intensified to ensure that people’s con-
cerns are put first and that the social gap between com-
munities and local government is narrowed through a
national citizens’ satisfaction survey, which measured
municipalities’ performance in relation to responsive-
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ness, representation and ac-
countability. The survey was a
necessary criterion variable for
identifying key drivers of munic-
ipal services and was conduct-
ed with the intention of creating
awareness, measuring citizens’
satisfaction on services deliv-
ered by municipalities, under-
standing how citizens respond
to municipal performance and
creating an enabling environ-
ment for citizens to assert them-
selves in defining their needs.
The survey kick-started a series
of periodic national citizens’
satisfaction surveys which will
provide standardised customer
survey formats for future use by
municipalities.
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STRATEGIES TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER-PERFORMANCE

= |ssues beyond the control of the Department, like promulgation, have been excluded from the 2016/17 APP. The
promulgation of the IMSI Bill is beyond the control of the Department. The Department will impress upon the Cabinet
to appreciate the importance of processing the Bill without further delay and the benefits it will bring to all spheres of
government, if it becomes law.

= The national campaign on improving the culture of payment will be proposed in the 2017/18 financial year after the
local government elections, pending availability of funds.

= The approval of the Anti-Corruption Local Government Strategy, Integrity Management Framework and the Imple-
mentation Plan will be fast-tracked to ensure complete implementation by targeted municipalities.

= The legal opinion obtained by the Department suggests that other platforms should be explored on how to improve
good governance.

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

There were no changes to the planned targets during the financial year.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The expenditure and variance versus the final appropriation are provided below: (pre-audited figures)

2015/2016 20142015
Sub-Programme Name Final Actual  (Over) Under Final Actual  (Over) Under
Appropriation Performance Expenditure Appropriation Performance Expenditure

Management: Governance 11 448 11 411 37 15 466 15 466 =
Intergovernmental Coordination 5236 5236 - 6319 6319 -
Intergovernmental Fiscal
Relations 17 872 17 849 23 12 425 12 425 =
Governance and Public
Participation 6 960 4 625 2335 2977 2977 -
South African Local Government
Association 9215 9215 - 26 904 26 904 -
Municipal Demarcation Board 45793 45793 = 44 230 44 230 =
South African Cities Network 6 286 6 286 = 6 071 6 071 =

United Cities and Local
Government of Africa

;ﬂg?éc‘m’e’"me"t Equitable 51706516 49366507 2340009 44490 145 41592070 2898 075

Total 51809326 49466922 2342404 44610131 41709671 2900 460

= = = 5594 3209 2 385

Governance and Intergovernmental Relations manages, promotes and facilitates an effective system of intergovern-
mental fiscal relations in support of municipalities to deliver sustainable infrastructure for increased access to basic
services, to improve financial and revenue management audit outcomes, and implement the Municipal Property Rates
Act (MPRA). The Programme spent 95.5% of its budget. The underspending was mainly in Governance and Public
Participation and Local Government Equitable Share. The serious concerns of underperformance were reported on
Local Government Equitable Share, which was due to the withholding/off-setting of funds from some municipalities as
per DoRA requirements.
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Programme 4:

National Disaster

Management Centre (NDMC

—
=

|

PURPOSE

The purpose of the programme is to promote an inte-
grated and coordinated system of disaster manage-
ment with special emphasis on prevention, mitigation
and preparedness by national, provincial and municipal
organs of state, statutory functionaries and other role
players involved in disaster management and commu-
nities. This programme is also responsible for the ad-
ministration and oversight of fire services legislation.

OBJECTIVES AND MEASURE

The programme seeks to achieve the following objec-

tives:

= Build accountability for performance in local govern-
ment systems through setting and enforcing clear
performance standards by March 2019;

= Improve the system of disaster management and fire
services across government by March 2016; and

= Develop a disaster management and fire services
monitoring and evaluation system by March 2016.

SUB-PROGRAMMES

= Legislation, Policy and Compliance
Management

This sub-programme successfully amended the Dis-
aster Management legislation during the past finan-
cial year. Following the parliamentary process and
the approval by the National Assembly, the President
assented to the Disaster Management Amendment
Act, which was published in the Government Ga-
zette No 39520 (Notice 1239 of 15 December 2015.)
The President subsequently determined that the Act
would come into operation on 1 May 2016. The Na-
tional Disaster Management Advisory Forum (ND-
MAF) met quarterly (four times) to discuss cross-cut-
ting disaster management issues. The NDMAF is a
technical forum in which national, provincial and
local government and other disaster management
roleplayers consult one another and coordinate their
actions on matters relating to disaster management.
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In executing its mandate, the sub-programme also de-

veloped two organisational policy documents, which

include the Disaster Management Legislative Compli-

ance Obligations Register and guidelines on conduct-

ing comprehensive disaster risk assessments, Part

1: Hazard ldentification, Analysis and Prioritisation.

Moreover, the following policy work was done:

= Unpacked the policy implications for South Africa
of the Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduc-
tion 2015 — 2030.

= Developed the National Disaster Management
Guideline Framework.

= Supported various sector departments with poli-
cy-related inputs.

= Focused on supporting the establishment and
functionality of disaster management centres
across the spheres of government by reporting on
compliance to the disaster management legisla-
tion.

* Planning, Coordination, Intervention
and Support

This sub-programme is responsible for disaster man-
agement planning, conducting risk assessments,
implementation of risk reduction measures, as well
as response and recovery, i.e. rehabilitation and re-
construction of damaged infrastructure resulting from
disasters. The country experienced severe drought
disasters in the 2014/15 and 2015/16 financial years.
The conditions had a negative impact on the water
and agricultural sectors. The country’s water resourc-
es capacity and supply, together with the agricultural
production (plant and animal) declined drastically. As
a result, provinces have declared a state of disaster
and the declaration has been classified by the NDMC.
Disaster declarations that have been classified are
as follows: KwaZulu-Natal (Provincial State), North
West (Provincial State), Free State (Provincial State),
Limpopo (Provincial State), Mpumalanga (Provincial
State), Western Cape (Local State), Northern Cape
(Provincial State), Eastern Cape (Provincial State).

The NDMC has thus far successfully coordinated
drought intervention in collaboration with all relevant role
players. A national Joint Drought Coordination Commit-
tee was established, comprising all relevant role players
to consolidate intervention measures and ensure speedy
drought response within the affected communities.

The sub-programme also implemented disaster risk re-
duction priorities in education, training, advocacy, public
awareness and research. Due to capacity constraints,
the research component was not effective. However, pri-
ority areas and research agendas have been established
through an exercise undertaken by the Centre to identify
the National Education, Training and Research Needs
and Resources Analysis (NETaRNRA). With regard to the
implementation of formalised capacity building projects
across the disaster risk reduction continuum, which are
aimed at enhancing career pursuance and improve skills
base in disaster management, a draft Disaster Manage-
ment School Kit Framework was developed and all prov-
inces were workshopped to source inputs in building up
the framework. In addition to that, a national stakeholder
workshop was held to ensure participation of all relevant
national stakeholders. The sub-programme engaged
with SALGA to develop the business case on Council-
lor and Traditional Leadership Training. The purpose is
to ensure capacity building among the political leaders
and traditional leaders on disaster management.

A successful annual National International Day for Dis-
aster Risk Reduction was hosted in collaboration with
the Chris Hani District Municipality and the Eastern Cape
Province. The theme focused on the use of indigenous
and local knowledge in disaster risk reduction. Extensive
consultations were undertaken with the Khoisan in the
Northern Cape Province and Eastern Cape communi-
ties to obtain more information on how they use indige-
nous knowledge to reduce disasters. Several awareness
campaigns were held in different provinces, such as
UMkhanyakude District Municipality in KwaZulu-Natal,
to address the community about the drought situation.
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* Intelligence and Information
Management Systems
This sub-programme guides the development of a

comprehensive information management and com-
munication system and establishes integrated com-
munication links with all disaster management role
players. During the year under review, a National Indic-
ative Risk and Vulnerability profile for snowfall was pro-
duced in collaboration with the Meraka Institute at the
Council for Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR).
This was the first attempt to quantify a hazard using
a combination of satellite imagery, climatic data and
statistical modelling. The year under review also saw
the sub-programme play a crucial role in understand-
ing the spatial extent of the drought phenomena apart
from conducting its usual in-house business of data
updates and the issuing of severe early warnings in re-
lation to weather events. Furthermore, the information
and communication platform within the NDMC that
enables and supports everyday operations across the
NDMC, was maintained.

» Fire Services Coordination

During this financial year, this sub-programme con-
ducted an assessment of Urban Search and Rescue
(USAR) capacity across the country. This assessment
has revealed areas that require intervention to improve
existing capacity and ensure an improved state of
readiness to respond to USAR incidents. A Memoran-
dum of Understanding (MOU) with the South African
Petro-Chemical Fire Chiefs Committee was signed
during this period. The MOU will enable and create
a framework for cooperation between the NDMC and
the petro chemical fire services sector on fire services
issues. Furthermore, the unit entered into a partner-
ship with the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI),
National Regulator of Compulsory Specifications
(NRCS) and the National Consumer Commission
(NCCQC) regarding an initiative to reduce fire risks by
replacing unsafe and illegal paraffin stoves with safe
and compliant ones. As part of this initiative, a launch
was held on 8 December 2015 in Vusumuzi, Tembisa,

which was attended by the Minister of Trade and Indus-
try as well as the Minister of Economic Development.
While 2,500 unsafe stoves were removed from the area,
2,400 safe and compliant paraffin stoves were given to
beneficiaries in this community. Identified areas across
all provinces will also be visited during the 2016/17 fi-
nancial year. The unit hosted a National Fire Safety and
Prevention Summit from 3 to 4 March 2016 at the Public
Works Durban Conference Centre, KwaZulu-Natal.

= Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E)

The sub-programme Monitoring and Evaluation devel-
ops and implements integrated support to provinces, as
well as a monitoring and evaluation system for disaster
management and fire services.

During the period under the review, the sub-programme
managed to roll out the implementation of the Disas-
ter Management and Fire Services M&E Framework to
all provinces. The monitoring and reporting tools for
the Provincial Disaster Management Centres (PDMCs)
were developed, consulted upon and adopted. The
submission of quarterly reports by PDMCs is now fully
institutionalised and reports were received from all prov-
inces. Reports received over a period of three quarters
were analysed and a report presented to the National
Disaster Management Advisory Forum and those prov-
inces that needed support on some of the Key Perfor-
mance Areas were supported accordingly. Further, the
sub-programme managed to build capacity in the prov-
inces and this led to the institutional capabilities for the
effective implementation of the Disaster Management
M&E Framework.

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - 2015 | 2016



'L1/91.02 1esh

[eloueUll IXBU Byl Ul |I'g Jeld
puooas ay1 buunp passaippe
8q 0} siep|oysyels Aoy yum
siuswabebus pue yoseasal syl
-In} IO} PaNIIUSPI SBNSS| [BJOASS
"OWAN :pesH

0} papiwagns pue paledaid
S8JINIBS 8ll4 UO ||ig Yelq 184
'S90INIBS

dll4 UO |iig Weld 1sii4 8y} oul
pajelBaiul siapjoysyels Jo sinduj
‘SIap|oyaxels Aey Yyim paynsuod
S8JINISS 8ll4 UO ||ig Yelq 184
‘pasedaid

S3JINIBS 8ll4 Uo ||id Yelq isiiH
'S80INMBS [Bba

V1900 Yim pjay uoieinsuoy
SUON SUON panalyay

08

-Juswa|dw a1em sanifedioiunu

[RUONOUNISAP |[& 10} SUB|d UOIOY

‘PaIILIQNS PUB PalepIoSU0d

alom suodal pue paleuIpIo0d

suoNUBAIBIUI SOISBY 0] Yoegq

SUON BUON panalyay

JUQUIADIYIY
[eNY WoIl 9] /C[(Z 1UIWIAIYIY [ENIIY
OTRIAJ(]

SUOIRIAJ(
U0 JUIWWO)

‘a1ep 186.e1 Aq ||Ig S82IA
-ies allj yeip sl gLy

‘a1ep 196.e1 Ag

aouInold Businen) uiyiim
sanfediolunu paynuspl
Ul SUONUBAIBIUI Dlseg 0]
oeg uo podey 'Ly

s101eIIpU|

pasl
-[eul} Se0IAISS Bl
uo |Ig el 1sii4

‘aouInold Businer)
uIyim senifedioiunw
paliusp! Ul pateu
-PJ00O SUOUBAISY
-u|l olseg 0} %oeg

91/<102
19518, pauue[]

'S92INIBS Bl
uo ||Ig Weid au}
10} SISEQ WO} ||IM
Jaded anym Heid
"S8INjoNIIs
leuiqe) ybnoiyy
Puisseoo.d Jsyuny
10} JSISIUIN 8Y}

Aq panoiddy
‘swwelbold gzg
8y WoJj Sanss|
Aa¥ paresbayul
Jaded aHum

<1/viog

JUDWIAIIYIY [en)Iy

‘6102

yotep Aq yuswuianob
SS0.JOB S9IIAISS all}
pue juswabeuew
Ja)sesip Jo wajsAs
ay} anoadw

‘6102

yosep Aq spiepuels
aouewJopad Jes|o
Buioiojua pue buiies
ybnouy) wajsAs
juswiulanob [eoo)

ul 9ouew.opad 10}
Aupgejunoaoe pjing

9AN9Iq() 15a1RNG

"DBABILYOE 10U 81aM Jey sjable) U0 S8ouUBLIBA IO} SUOSESI SB ||om
se suwweiBoid-gns Jed sioleolpul sourwIoLad pue siNdINo ‘seAoslqo oibslells ay) 1o} siefie] JO SJUBLWIBASILOE JO S|ie1ep oY) sepiroid mojaq ajgel 8y

INIWHAIIHOV TVILLOV ANV SLADYV.L AINNVId ‘SYOLVIIANI SONVINIOLHAd ‘STALLOAIO DIDALIVYLS

63

CHAPTER 2 | PART B - DCOG PERFORMANCE INFORMATION



SUOTIRIAJ(]
U0 JUIUUO)

‘sasuodsay

AlelusWel|led pue sIajla| Uoneoo|
-le/suodal S8IAIBS [BUOISSS}0.d
8yl 1suiebe paleplleA sem erep
pue padojeAsp a1ep 01 010z 10}
ade) uielseq pue ade) UIBYLON
1S9\ YUON ‘ede) uieisapn ‘eb
-uelewndy ‘[BIleN-NINZemy| 10}
SI8ISESIP paJe|dsp Jo) 8seqele(
pPanalyay

‘O0H 01

paniwgns pue pasedaid sem ueld
a1 J0 uoleiusws|dwi 8y} 01 pare|el
S8IlIAIIOB 8U} Uo Hodal [aAs)-ybiy v
(9102

Aenige4 Gg) Bunesyy wnio4 Buireu
-Ip100D Bulp|ing Aloede) [euoieN
ay1 ybnouy) uejd uonoe Buip|ing
Aioeded pajdope sy} Jo uoeluaw
-g|dwi 8y} Ul ssaiboid paloluo
‘(emsngeAIS Ul AT BXOION SP Id Ut
910z Aenuga4 /1) Bunssw Aeus|d
SSaualemy JIsyl ul DINAd ebugl
-ewnd|y papinb pue pauoddng
‘ubredwe)

SSBuUBJeMY SB|0UNUIS d1HWOo|0Q
pue axenbyues sy 1o} [euslew
ssaualeme axenbyues Buipiroid
Ad OINAd 1sem YHON penoddng
"ONdd [eTeN-NNZzemy| syl yim
uoneloge||0d ul ‘Aledioiunip 10u1siq
apnyeAueyywn 8y} 1e ubredweo
ssaualeme 1ybnolp B palonpuo)
‘UMO}SUBBNY) Ul JUBLIUIBAOK) [el0
-UIAOId 8de) ulaises ayl yim uol
-BI0Qe||0d Ul 4adl S10g¢ 8yi Jo uon
-BJOWBLIWOD [BUOITRU 8Y} PaISOH
dadi

G10Z 98Ul JO SUONEIOWBWWOD [0
-uinoud jo Bunsoy pue sjuswebeb
-us Areus|d ul seouinoid Businern)
pUE 1S8\\ YLON 8yl pauoddng
PaAalyay

BUON SUON

SUON BUON

JUIUIAAJIYIY
[enjoy wo.ay
UOIIRIAJ(

91 /€107 1U9WAAJIYIY [BNIIY

‘a1ep
186181 AQ pajusw
-a|dwi ylomawel
uolienjens pue
Bunoluopy seoines
2l pue juswabe
-UBN JeisesIq ¥ L't

‘olep 19bue]

Aq pareyljioe; subred
-WEeD Ssauaieme
2l|gnd pue Aoeo0oA
-pY S92IAIBS Bl
pue Juswabeuely
J191SESsIqQ Ylim saoul
-A0Jd JOON €LY

s10jeIIpU]

‘910C YoreN LE

AQ yomawel4 N
1uswabeue|\ Jo1se

-sig Jo uonejuswis|d
-Wl 8y} uo uoday

'seouInoid 6

ul pareyjioe} subred
-Wed Ssauaieme
2l|gnd pue Aoed
-OApPE S92IAISS all)
pue Juswabeue
Jajsesiq [euoneN

91/£10¢
195.1e], pouue|]

‘pa1dope pue uodn
pa1Nsuoo ‘padojersp
senediounw pue sONAd
‘sjuswieda( 101083
‘OINAN 404 (SId¥) si03eo
-IpuU| SoUBWIIOLSd A8y
‘0O0H Aqg panoidde pue
AVINAN 8yl Ag peldope
‘padojanep sem ueld
uoneiuswe|dwi I INA

‘saljedioiunw 1e

as101oxa onsoubelp ggg —
sue(d |NQ uo sallijedioiunw
yum sjuswiebebus ybnoayl
Pa1oNPU0D AOBJ0APY

‘ueld uonoy 4090N

8y} Jo uoneuswa|duw
passasse leyl Buiesw
4090ON 8u} Jo Bunsoy
ybnoly) pareyioe) swwelb
-0Jd ssaualeme 2l|gnd
‘sjuswia|ies

[BWLIOUI Ul SBl1} pUe SSau
-9/EME IBUJEOM I9ADS
'(34vS3Q) uoneonps 8l
% Aejes ‘Aousbiswig oiseg
‘SPOOJ} U0 (DM ® MN ‘dIN
‘NZY +03) seduinoid G ul
pajuswaldwi sswwelb
-0Jd ssaualeme 2l|gnd

‘N7 Binqueisny

8y} pue Aljedioluniy
louisig winuiie|d ejeuelog
ay1 Ag paisoy ‘Binquaisny
Ul PaIBJOWBWILIOD SEM
daal feuonenN sy
“(40GON) winio4
Buireupiood Buipiing
Aioede) [euoneN ayi Aq
paidope pue padojersp
ue|d sseualeme 2l|gnd pue
AoeooApe |NQ [euolieN

<1/¥10g
TUDUIDADIYIY [BNIIY

‘6102

youse Aq walsAs
uolen|ens pue
Buuoyuow
S9OINIS Bll} pue
juswabeuew
Jaysesip e
dojanag

'610¢ yoiey
Ag Juswuianob

SS0I0R S32INI9S
all pue
juswabeuew
Jajsesip jo
wialsAs ay}
anoiduw

9AIIRIq(Q
GINRIIS

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - 2015 | 2016

64



STRATEGIES TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER-PERFORMANCE

None.

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

There were no changes to the planned targets during the financial year.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The expenditure and variance versus the final appropriation are provided below: (pre-audited figures)

2015/2016 2014/2015
Sub-Programme Name Final Actual (Over) Under Final Actual (Over) Under
Appropriation Performance Expenditure Appropriation Performance Expenditure

Management: Head of Disaster 6 105 5683 422 19 740 17 851 1889
Legislation, Policy and _ _
Compliance Management o o S 2]
Planning Coordination and
Support 13 740 13 204 536 41619 41619 -
Intelligence and Information
Systems Management 10914 10 254 660 9830 9830 =
Disaster relief 364 343 35 588 328 755 560 952 121 483 439 469
Integrated disaster
management monitoring and 1238 1193 45 = = =
evaluation systems
g"r:';‘]ifipa' Sl [Ty 188 900 186 121 2779 194 253 190 102 4151
Total 591 355 258 158 333197 831 415 385 906 445 509

The National Disaster Management Centre promotes an integrated and coordinated system of disaster management
with special emphasis on prevention, mitigation and preparedness by national, provincial and municipal organs of the
state, statutory functionaries and other role players involved in disaster management and communities. The programme
spent 43.7% of its budget. The underspending was mainly in the Disaster Relief Grant and Municipal Disaster Recovery
Grant. The serious concerns of underperformance were reported on both, which was due to the uncertainty of when a

disaster will be incurred and declared.
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Programme 5:

Provincial and Municipal
Government Support

R 1
-
-—

PURPOSE
To provide evidence-based regulatory mechanisms as
well as oversight and support programmes for provin-
cial and municipal government and associated institu-
tions and to facilitate development of planning and ser-
vice delivery.

OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES

The programme seeks to achieve the following objec-

tives:

= Build accountability for performance in the Local
Government System through setting and enforcing
clear performance standards by March 2019.

= Strengthen the functionality of municipalities through
the development and implementation of administra-
tive institutional systems by March 2019.

= Facilitate and coordinate capacity-building initiatives
in order to build a capable municipality by March
2019.

= Facilitate the restructuring of city space economy

through changes in land use planning and manage-
ment by March 2019.

= Promote good governance and an ethical culture in
local government by March 2019.

SUB-PROGRAMMES:

* Provincial Government Support and
intervention

The sub-programme also monitored the impact of nine
S139 interventions by holding engagement sessions
with officials and appointed administrators in the select-
ed municipalities under intervention. A consolidated re-
port was then compiled, detailing the root causes of the
interventions in these nine municipalities, the impact of
the intervention in terms of restoring good governance
and service delivery, and then a key focus on what has
worked and what has not worked regarding the lessons
learned in terms of the more sustainable application of
S139 interventions going forward. The Back to Basics
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STRATEGIES TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER-PERFORMANCE

= Dedicated human resources will be allocated to facilitate implementation and monitoring of the Guidelines on roles

and responsibilities of office bearers and delegation framework.

= The Local Government Skills Development Institute will not be implemented in 2016/17, as the Department took a
decision to halt the project in an effort to eliminate duplications among SALGA and DPSA and also to find common
ground for a more effective learning centre and the correct placement thereof.

= The target to support cities and towns to develop long-term strategies and Spatial Development Frameworks has

been reconceptualised to focus on the development of a toolkit for strengthening alignment of planning in secondary
cities. The toolkit will guide cities in developing long-term strategies and SDFs.
= The Oversight by the Minister and MECs for local government, to municipal councils, will be strengthened through

the MSA, section 106 and by monitoring the Back to Basics programme.

CHANGES TO THE PLANNED TARGETS

There were no changes to the planned targets.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The expenditure and variance versus the final appropriation is provided below: (pre-audited figures).

2015/2016

Sub-Programme Name Final Actual  (Over) Under

Appropriation Performance Expenditure

Management: Provincial and

2014/2015

Final Actual  (Over) Under
Appropriation Performance Expenditure

Local Government Support 9510 9 394 116 6 945 6 945 -
Provincial Government Support

A | ety 4 626 4 626 - 4 459 4 405 54
Local Government Support and _
Intervention 12 747 12678 69 13 844 13 844
Development Planning 11 767 11 481 286 12133 12133 -
g:‘a"r:fipa' Systemsiimprozement 051442 251442 _ 252152 252152 -
Municipal Demarcation Transition 39 000 3714 35 286 _ o _
Grant

Total 329 092 293 335 35 757 289 533 289 479 54

Provincial and Municipal Government Support provides evidence-based regulatory mechanisms as well as oversight
and support programmes for provincial and municipal government and associated institutions in order to facilitate de-

velopment of planning and service delivery. The programme spent 89.1% of its budget. The underspending was mainly
in the Municipal Demarcation Transition Grant. The serious concerns of underperformance were reported on the Munic-
ipal Demarcation Transition Grant, which was due to delays by municipalities to finalise some of the DoRA conditions.
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Programme 6:

Infrastructure and
Fconomic Development

PURPOSE

To support provincial and local government pro-
grammes and systems to promote economic and in-
frastructure development within the context of national
priorities.

OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES

= Build accountability for performance in local govern-
ment systems through setting and enforcing clear
performance standards by March 2019.

= Facilitate the improvement in service delivery by co-
ordinating sustainable infrastructure provisioning to
unserved communities to unable access to basic
serves by the end of March 2019.

= Coordinate and implement sustainable infrastructure

development and maintenance initiatives in order to
improve the quality of service and extend infrastruc-
ture to unserved communities by March 2019.

= Facilitate private sector investment through the im-
plementation of innovative programmes that stimu-
late local economies by the end of March 2019.

= Provide and maintain one million work opportunities
through effective and efficient programme manage-
ment strategies, partnerships and training by the end
of March 2019.

SUB-PROGRAMMES

* Local Economic Development

The strategic objective of this sub-programme is to fa-
cilitate private sector investment through the implemen-
tation of innovative programmes that stimulate local
economies. During the financial year under review, 25
municipalities were supported to implement economic
development programmes over the MTEF. During this
financial year the sub-programme facilitated and sup-

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - 2015 | 2016



ported the establishment of BDFs in Waterberg District
Municipality, Greater Tubatse Local Municipality, and
Ehlanzeni District Municipality, //Khara-Hais Local Mu-
nicipality, Bojanala District Municipality and Matlosana
Local Municipality. The seventh Business Development
Forum, Thabo Mofutsanyane District Municipality is at
the final stages of being established.

In municipalities that are prioritised mining towns, such
as Bojanala District Municipality, Greater Tubatse Lo-
cal Municipality and Matlosana Local Municipality, the
approach undertaken is aligned to the current national
government interventions such as the Special Presiden-
tial Package on Mining Towns and the Back to Basic
approach.

The Department supported and facilitated the develop-
ment of Catalytic Business Ventures in municipalities in
terms of unblocking the red tape within National and
Provincial Sector Departments. It also entered into part-
nership with DGRV (The German Co-operative Raiffei-
sen Confederation) to provide municipalities with skills
for implementing a co-operatives programme and pro-
viding capacity building to co-operatives. Through this
partnership, 46 LED officials from 23 municipalities were
trained on co-operatives. The training covered the fol-
lowing provinces: KwaZulu-Natal, Free State, Eastern
Cape and Northern Cape.

* Municipal Infrastructure Development
This sub-programme’s strategic objective is to facilitate
the improvement in service delivery by coordinating sus-
tainable infrastructure provision to unserved communi-
ties to enable access to basic services by the end of
March 2019. The sub-programme is thus responsible
for managing, coordinating and monitoring the imple-
mentation of the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG).
During the financial year under review, the review of the
MIG Policy Framework continued and will be concluded
in the 2016/17 financial year.

An amount of R14.9 billion was transferred to 247 mu-
nicipalities for implementation in the municipal financial

year (for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016) and

the following outputs were achieved during this period,

which cut across the 2014/15 and 2015/16 municipal fi-

nancial years:

= A total number of 73,351 households received ac-
cess to water.

= 82,436 additional households received access to
sanitation.

= 40 solid waste sites were developed.

= 467 km of roads were constructed.

= 386 community facilities (créches, community halls,
cemeteries, etc.) were developed.

= 193 sport and recreation facilities were provided.

= 356,865 households benefited from community light-
ing projects.

= A concerted effort was made to support some of the
struggling municipalities to ensure that they were not
badly affected by funding being ceased and reallo-
cated. MIG turnaround plans were developed with
municipalities to prevent funding being ceased due
to poor performance in Sekhukhune District Munici-
pality and Bushbuckridge Local Municipality.

= Two District Municipalities were co-opted to support
some of their local municipalities that were not per-
forming on the MIG. Sarah Baartman District Munici-
pality supported and continue to support Thabazimbi
Local Municipality. The MIG funds of the above-men-
tioned Local Municipalities were diverted to their Dis-
trict Municipalities.

= Community Work Programme

During the year under review, the Community Work Pro-
gramme (CWP) continued to provide a social safety net
to unemployed and underemployed participants in all
nine provinces by availing to them work opportunities
that afforded them income security and access to the
basic necessities of life. The number of participants
benefiting from the programme increased from 202 447
the previous year to 223 318 in 2015/16. The useful work
undertaken in targeted poor communities also contrib-
uted to improving the quality of life of residents in those
communities.
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Below are examples of the work outputs in three of the provinces:

Gauteng

Sector [ Area

Environment
Agriculture

Community Services

Education

Limpopo

Activity [ Work undertaken (oncrete outputs
Clean up of public spaces, rivers and canals 297 155 square meters cleaned up
Clean up of illegal dumping site 1 051 illegal dumping sites cleaned up
Maintenance of community gardens 2 076 community gardens maintained
Cleaning of cemeteries 81 317 square meters cleaned
Assistance to creches 10 586 children benefited
Assistance in classrooms as teacher aides 4 857 learners benefited
Desks refurbished 2 058 desks refurbished
Scholar patrols undertaken 34 140 learners benefited

Sector [ Area

Environment

Agriculture

Community Services

Education

Mpumalanga

Sector [ Area

Aetivity [ Work undertaken (oncrete outpuls
Clean up of public spaces, rivers and canals 1 667 126 square metres cleaned up
Rubbish pits established 123 rubbish pits established
Maintenance of community gardens 3 106 community gardens maintained
Cleaning of cemeteries 330 393 square meters cleaned
Assistance to creches 33 620 children benefited
Assistance in classrooms as teacher aides 35 237 learners benefited
Desks refurbished 891 desks refurbished

Environment

Agriculture

Community Services

Education

Aectivity [ Work undertaken (oncrete outputs
Clean up of public spaces, rivers and canals 119 372 square meters cleaned up
Rubbish pits established 304 rubbish pits established
Maintenance of community gardens 472 community gardens maintained
Cleaning of cemeteries 89 556 square meters cleaned
Assistance to creches 37 076 children benefited
Assistance in classrooms as teacher aides 49 654 learners benefited
Desks refurbished 2 077 desks refurbished
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TRAINING IN THE COMMUNITY
WORK PROGRAMME

Training remains a critical delivery area in the CWP Not
only does it equip participants with skills to optimise use-
ful work outputs in their communities, but it also equips
them with artisan and technical skills that enhance their
employability prospects. Furthermore, the acquired
skills make it possible for participants to earn addition-
al income which supplements their CWP stipends while
they are still on the programme. Some participants have
also used skills obtained while enrolled in the CWP to
access better opportunities in the wider economy.

Examples highlighting how training received in the CWP

have benefitted participants from one Eastern Cape site

are outlined below:

= Masixole Magwevana joined the CWP as a participant
and was promoted to supervisor. While on the pro-
gramme, he obtained his driver’s license and when
he left the programme, he became a paramedic.

= Vumile Msoki joined the CWP in 2012. While on the
programme he learnt welding. He is responsible for
all the welding work done in CWP at the Amahlathi
site. On weekends he takes up private welding jobs
in his community in Keiskammahoek, where he leads
a team of welders.

= Sithembele Mbethe has refined his plumbing skills
through the CWPR As a participant, he led the team
that did all the plumbing work in the three schools
where the CWP has been working on the toilet infra-
structure programme in Amahlathi. He also does pri-
vate plumbing work on weekends, thus supplement-
ing his CWP stipend.

= Nkosana Zonke joined the programme in 2009. He
has developed a number of different skills since join-
ing the programme. He is currently working as a store
keeper. The skills he has gained since he enrolled in
the programme include plumbing, welding, spray
painting and bricklaying. He also does private work
on weekends.

The Keiskammahoek site management, where these
participants are enrolled, has engaged the National

Youth Development Agency (NYDA) to explore the
possibility of the NYDA assisting them to start their
own businesses when they exit the programme.

Training in the CWP does not only involve partic-
ipants. Members of CWP Local Reference Com-
mittees (LRCs) also receive training. LRCs, which
constitute (among others) municipal representatives
and community members, are central to the effective
implementation of the CWP They play an oversight
and advisory role to Implementing Agents who are
responsible for the day-to-day implementation of the
programme at site level. They also assist with de-
vising solutions to site-level challenges. To carry out
their responsibilities effectively, members of LRCs
need to understand the programme — its norms and
standards as well as how it operates. To this end, for
example, 110 LRC members were trained in the East-
ern Cape last year, while 61 were trained in the North-
ern Cape and 81 were trained in the Western Cape.

PARTNERSHIPS IN THE CWP

Partnerships are a key design feature of the CWP,
Partnerships in the programme create a platform
for private and public entities to work together to
enhance programme outcomes and to improve the

quality of life of communities where the programme
is being implemented.

Forging, maintaining and strengthening partnerships
between municipalities, provincial government and a
variety of sectors including civil society is central to
the success of the programme. A partnership estab-
lished with the Department of Small Business Devel-
opment (DSBD) during 2015/16 resulted in 227 CWP
participants being trained on cooperatives by the
DSBD. This has further resulted in 18 cooperatives
being formed and registered. The cooperatives have
received certificates and are operational at the Eras-
mus CWP site in Tshwane. The cooperatives focus
on a number of sectors including agriculture (e.g.
food gardening and piggery), brick making, sewing,
art and construction.
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Another partnership was formed with the Department of
Correctional Services (DCS) in the Barberton Management
Area where a Service Level Agreement was signed between
DCoG and DCS. The DCS has made available 2.5 hectares
of land to be available to the CWP for agricultural use to
grow vegetables to enhance food security for vulnerable
households at the uMjindi Local Municipality. In this part-
nership, 14 parolees have also been enrolled in the CWP
as part of the process to promote their integration back into
the community.

An example of a skills development partnership is the part-
nership with the University of the North West where 73 CWP
participants are being trained to be Grade R Teachers. The
contribution of the University is to charge lower fees for the
CWP participants.

OTHER BENEFITS THAT ACCRUE FROM

PARTICIPATION IN THE CWP

The following examples taken from KwaZulu-Natal sites

highlight some positive results of participating in the CWP:

= Our Ubuhlebezwe site, for example, has produced a full-
time teacher and a Department of Correctional Services
employee.

= In Ukhahlamba, a participant used his CWP stipend to
take driving lessons and, upon getting his licence, was
able to secure full-time employment at Eskom as a driver.

= Also from Ukhahlamba, a participant used supervisory
skills obtained while enrolled in the CWP to get a job as

a supervisor for a security company, while another one
used his stipend to take a course in security services
and is now in the process of registering his own security
company.

= Atthe Umzumbe site, participants with Matric certificates
were assigned work as teacher-aides in schools. This ex-
posure kindled a passion for teaching in one of the par-
ticipants. She decided to pursue her studies in education
and is in her final year of training as a teacher.
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STRATEGIES TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDER-PERFORMANCE

In our efforts to address service delivery backlogs in the 27 priority District Municipalities, the Department will, through
the Programme Management Office (PMO), which is coordinated at the Municipal Infrastructure Support Agency, com-
plete the diagnostic assessments and develop concrete actions to address the backlogs on access to reliable services.

An Agency Agreement will be applied whenever projects are being handed over to MISA.

To avoid delays in the procuring of training services for CWP participants, the Department will ensure that the necessary
supply chain processes are facilitated and approved prior to implementation.

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

The initial planned targets for performance indicators 6.1.5 to 6.1.8 were reconceptualised and down-scaled following
the transfer to MISA for implementation.

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

The expenditure and variance versus the final appropriation are provided below: (pre-audited figures)

2015/2016 2014/2015

Sub-Programme Name Final Actual (Over) Final Actual (Over)

Appropriation Periormance Uiita Appropriation Periormance Uliites
‘ : " Expenditure - " Expenditure
Management: Infrastructure 2 796 2 658 138 3382 2047 1335
Local Economic Development Plan 9 385 8 783 602 11 751 11729 22
Infrastructure Development 21475 20 412 1063 13 482 13417 65
Municipal Infrastructure Grant 14955762 14 955 762 - 14764049 14745445 18 604
Community Work Programme 2375939 2394230 1709 2257840 1558729 699 111
Xunlclpal Infrastructure Support 304 013 304 013 o 594 162 594 162 o

gent

Total 17 669 370 17 665 858 3512 17344666 16625529 719137

The Infrastructure and Economic Development programme supports provincial and local government programmes and
systems to promote economic and infrastructure development within the context of national priorities. The programme
spent 99.5% of its budget. The under-spending is mainly in the Community Work Programme and the serious concerns
for under-performance was due to delays in receipt of invoices from Implementing Agents and filling of vacant posts.

CHAPTER 2 | PART B - DCOG PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

81



‘saniredioiunw Jayeam o} Joddns pue
Aoedeo [euonniisul Jo Buipuny syl
10} pue ‘spjoyasnoy Jood 0} S82IAI8S
OISEQ 981} JO UOISIA0Id 8U} IO} 8NuUBAS)

‘ueib syl [ledioiunw siuswelddns Jajsuel) siy |
uo yodal “UOIINIIISUOD 8Y} 4O 1 |.g UOND8S JO
0] paiinbal swus} Ul 81ayds juswiulanoh [eao) sanied
10U sall 8y} 01 8|gehed si yolym ‘enusaal  -IolUNW pue aleys a|genunb3
V/N -lediouniy - 20S 99€ 61 SOA pasiel Ajleuolieu Jo aJeys ayl S9OUINOJ4  JUBWUIBAOK) D0
‘SO0 UBDLYY
yinog usamiaeq uolieladoood Buligeus  suonnsul YIOMISN Sa1ID
V/N 982 9 98¢ 9 soA  Buipnjoul ‘seniAioe [euolesado pung yoid-uoN uedlly yinos

VILId oyl
000.1) 10 () ()
paLIdIsuRI) 8¢ S M Pasn 2I9M Spunj a1 YIYM 10] 9

. A1dwod
junoury 2dop

ol pIq

Anua ay) Aq uoresues.Io

Amuo 9y} Aq Juadsun spuny 9y} 10§ SUOSEY T

JAIAISUR] 1O JUIRY

juads junowy

9102 YosBN LE 01 G0z |udy | poued sy Jo) spew siuswAed Jejsuel) oY) s108(1ed Mo|aq a|gel oy |

saiua o1qnd ueyy Jaylo suonesiuebio |e 0} sjuswAed Jajsuel]

‘'910g 1shbBny 'S80IAIBS AIOSIApPE pue siamod
€ WOJJ Jo8Y8 YIm £Gg 0} 8/ Woij saljied JI8Y} 8S1018%8 pUE SUOoUN} JIdy} wiopad 0} Juswiulanob [eoo) pieog
-121UNW JO Jaquunu JO UOIONPaI B Ul P jo Anoeded ‘suoljos|s JuswUISA0B [BD0] 10} SPIEM JO UOIEILIBP uoneodsewa
-}INSaJ YydIym ‘papn|ouod uolieulwialepay €6/ S €6/ Sv ‘Sellepunog Jelno [ediojunw suIwWIBlep-a1 PUe sulwisleq fedidiunpy
" SIejew pajeje) souewloped ‘seAeul Bulteys sbpajmous pue
pue suolje|al INoge| ‘uewny ‘Bulures) ‘yosessal Juswulanob [e0o| ‘eoead pue Alljigels Jnoge| Slel|ioe) uol1eId0SSY
10]|10UN0D ‘8ouUBUIBACD BJjE JBJUI UO SBlll ‘104 [elUBWIdOjoASP B ABld 0] (SI0||1ouN0d 10} Sewwelfoid)  JUSWUIBAOY) [ed0T]
-fedidjunw o} papiroid poddns pareodipeq Sig 6 G126 JuswuIBA0b [e00) Jo Aoeded [eojuyos) pue diysispes| Buiping uedLyy Yyinos

INTILIES
anqnd ay) 01
podiadjsued)
Junowy

Amnus snqnd
Anuo 21qnd 9y 10 SJUIWIAINYIY oY) Aq Juads

Anud

AMuo 21[qnd 9y} Aq PAIIPUIL SIIIAII ipqnd o owey

junoury

9102 Yol L€ 0} G510z |udy | pouad auy) Joj Juswiedap sy} woy Bupuny paAiadal oym saiiug oljand 0 Sajejal mojad ajde) 8y

salug 21ignd 0} suswAed Jajsuel|

SINAWAVd 94ASNVYEL 97T

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - 2015 | 2016

82



‘sainssaid 106png

[euoliesado 1o} spuny H|IA 10 8sN

pue

‘UBWISSasSSY 1oeduwl| [elJusWIUOIIAUT

pue suoday [edluyos| ‘o'l sasseooid

1099(0ud DN Ul SAejEp AleSSaoauUN

‘(s186pnq pue s1o8(o.id jo eaoid

-de) Buo| 00} 8Ye] SUOISIDBP [12UNOD

‘siepinoid 801AI8S JO JusWwAed a1 o
‘JOAI[BP 10UUBD OUYM SIOJOE}

-u09 Jo siepinoid eoinies Bunuioddy e
‘(siuswipeda( 101098 pue sHuUN
wswabeue|\ 108l0id) s1o8loid O 101

-luow pue abeuew 031 AlloedeD Jo YoeT
‘sjuswedsp J0108s o'l
SIap|oysyels 1ueAs|al Jo uoiedioed
8y} salinbal yoiym sseooid Buluue|d
1uswdojana paielbalu] Ag paulioul
(uozuoy Jeak ¢) 106pnq eudes [ed

-olunw e ue|d o1 Ajljige a1enbspeu| e

‘'sessao0.d

ureyd Alddns snowea yim Ajdwod o1 pey
s Aeu1 se 910z yolel Le Aq senjedi
-olunWw 8y} Aq uads 10U a1em spunj 8y |
‘9102 Arenige g1

Uo 82UIN0Id Businen aui ul saiiedidiu
-N|A [B007] BUEBUOISAAN PUB UIBluojpueYy
3[IYMISI8 8U] O] SpeW 81eM SJajsuel|

‘ain)ipuadxe mo| 0}

painguiuoo s1osloid jo uoneluswa|duwl
ul skejep pue uoiewloul a1ejdwodul
10 uoissiwgns ‘Buiodal Juslsisuoou|

‘ain)puadxe Mmo| 0}

panguiuoo sjosloid jo uonelusws|dwl
ul sAejep pue uolewojul 81e|dwodul
10 uoIssiwgns ‘Buiodal JuslsIsuoou|

Ao 9y} Aq Juadsun spuny 9y} 10§ SUOSEY

vic vyl €L

LG 89

88¢ 88

Lmuo 9y Aq

1uads Junowy

/16 /887l

VL€

chv 1G¢

il lee

(000.4)
_E.Ea.uw:ﬂ.:

junowy

SoA

SoA

SoA

SoA

YIidd oyt
10 () (1)
8¢ S quMm
A1dwod
1dap
91 piq

‘Alanilep ainjoniiselul [edioiunw Ul
sbopjoeq a1eoipels 0] s1ebpng euded
[ediolunwi 1uswalddns 0] siajsuel|

‘'swelsAs [eluswulanob pue
[BUON}ISUI 8S||IE}S O} PUE ‘Suoijouny
wiopad o} Ayoedeo asnoy-ul Buip|ing

Ul sefediolunw 1sISSe 0} slajsuel|

'SWIBISAS [eluswiuIaACh pue
[BUONNIISUI BSI[IQB]S 0] pUB ‘suoijoun)
wiopad o} Auoedeo asnoy-uil Buiping

ul saniedioiunud 1sISSe 0] siajsuel|

palejosp useq sey Jelsesip
B UsyMm AjUo spell aJe siajsuel| 'sia)
-SesIp Jelje Jaijel ajeIpaulwi apiAoLd
0] SWie 1ey] UOIIBOO|[. [BUONIPUOD \/

Pasn a1aM spuny 9y} YoryM Joj asod.ang

selifed
-l0lUNW pue
S80UINOId

sonied
-joluNW pue
S90UINOIH

salifed
-lolUNWw pue

jueln
ainjonJisesu|
lediounpy

juelD) uonisuel]
uonealewsa
lediounpy

jueln
juswanoiduwy)

S80UINOI  SwalsAg ediounyy

selfed
-1o1UNW pue
S92UINOId

eIy
Jol|ay Jaisesiq

99J9ISUR.I] [0 dwey

83

CHAPTER 2 | PART B - DCOG PERFORMANCE INFORMATION



‘Buipuads

-Japun 8y} 0} PaINQLIU0D JUSWBIIA pue
swie|o [eluswiedsg-ieiul o 1digoal alg|
‘uonippe U| ‘maiAsl Japun JeaA syl Buunp
paoNpoJiUl JusL

-yedaq 8yl 1By} sainseawl JuswueIuoo
1S00 pue Ajusisne ay) 0] painguiie A
-Urew sl 000 96SY Jo Buipuadsiapun ay |

‘panoidde
184 J0ou pue pasiaal Buleg ain1oniis YSIIN
10 S}Nsal e S| 8oueLEeA aAIISod ay |

Anuo 9y Aq Juadsun spuny 9y 10§ SuoSEY

cee Gel

Gel L6e

Anua ay Aq

juads junoury

8¢6 Gl

€10 ¥0€

(000.4)
ea.rE.ﬁ:a.——

junoury

SoA

SoA

VIldd oY1
@)
8¢ S UM
Ajduos
1dop
91 piq

sieye
[euolipel} JO suonNUISUl 8y} UIylm
SSOUBAII08Y8 pUE AdUsIolie 8ouByUS
0] sewwelboid Buipjing Alloedeo pue
1swdoeAsp [eUOINIISUI SB1BUIPI00D
pue ‘sliejje [euonipeli uo uone|siba)
pue saio1j0d Jo wswdojansp aul

pue JuswisBeuew UoBLLIOI pue
yoJeasal $81eulplood pue $810Wold

‘'SWBISAS [ejuswiuIaAcb pue
[BUOIINIISUI 8SI|IGBIS O PUB ‘suoljoun)
wuopad o) Anoeded asnoy-ul Buipjing

ul saniedioiunul 1SISSe 0] Ssiajsuel|

Posn 919M Spuny ay) Y21y 10J 9sodang

salousbe [e]
-uswuedaq

salouabe [e]
-uswiuedaq

uoIesIuesI0
10 odA],

Siiejjy [euohipel]

Aousbhy poddng
ainjonJiseu|
fediounpy

99J9ISuURI] [0 dwey

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - 2015 | 2016

84



The table below reflects the transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016,
but no transfer payments were made.

Reasons

Amount Amount why funds

lhy 20 Purpose for which the funds were to be used budgeted for transierred

Name of transieree

organisation (R000) (R000) .W"el"t‘ IT(.)I
transierred
Municipal Disaster Provinces A conditional allocation to repair munici- 188 900 0 mainly due
Recovery Grant and munici-  pal infrastructure damaged by disasters. to the uncer-
palities This grant is allocated as a second phase tainty with
of disaster response to municipalities regard to the
following a post-disaster cost verification payment of
process. Disaster Re-
lief Grants
United Cities and  Non-profit Fund operational activities, to enhance 5792 0 The Entity
Local Government institutions  cooperation and knowledge sharing was discon-
of Africa among local governments in Africa and to tinued

improve the delivery of services to com-
munities across the continent.

Donor funds received
The Department did not receive any gifts or donations in the 2015/16 financial year, except for assets relating to the
Community Work Programme.

227 CAPITAL INVESTMENT, MAINTENANCE AND ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Department was not involved in any capital investment.
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31 Introduction

In its endeavour to promote good corporate governance, the Department is continuously striving to enforce compliance
with the principles and requirements of King Ill. Good corporate governance is of great relevance to the Department as

an effective measure to ensure proper functioning thereof.

3.2 Risk

Management

In line with the departmental risk management strategy,
annual risk assessments were conducted at both strate-
gic and operational levels. Risk assessments were also
conducted to identify ICT and fraud-related risks. These
assessments were conducted in line with the strategic
objectives of the Department. Management further iden-
tified new and/or emerging risks on a quarterly basis
and developed mitigation measures for managing such
risks.

During the year under review, the unit embarked on a
robust approach to monitor the high- risk areas through
key risk indicators in order to reduce the impact of the
risks to an acceptable level and to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the achievement of the Depart-
ment’s objectives.

3.3 Fraud

and corruption

The Department has adequate and effective policies
and procedures in place to prevent, detect and ad-
dress acts of fraud and corruption. An assessment of
fraud and corruption risks is conducted in high-risk ar-
eas annually and monitored quarterly. The Department
has an approved Anti-Corruption and Whistle-blowing
policy that has been communicated to all employees.

The reporting procedure has also been developed and
communicated to all officials. Regular awareness is also
raised within the Department on prevention, detection
and reporting of fraud and corruption.

Fraud and corruption allegations are reported by em-
ployees to the Internal Audit unit or through the internal
anonymous fraud email service or fraud reporting boxes
placed in all buildings of the Department. Allegations re-
ported are investigated and appropriate recommenda-
tions are submitted to the Accounting Officer for action
to be taken.

3.4 Minimising

conflict of interest

The Treasury Regulations 16A, 2005, provide operating
guidelines on how to manage conflict of interest and en-
sure proper declarations are made by all Supply Chain
Management (SCM) practitioners as well as by other
role players involved with the its processes. All SCM
practitioners and Bid Committee members are required
to disclose their business interests every financial year
and also sign the Code of Conduct in accordance with
the National Treasury Practice Number 4 of 2003 and 7
of 2009/10. For every bid or tender dealt with, the Bid
Committee members are obliged to disclose their inter-
est and a record is kept for audit purposes.
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3.5 Code

of Conduct

The Public Service Code is a guiding document for the
good conduct of employees in the Department. The
Code of Conduct for the Public Service and the collec-
tive agreement (PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003) are impor-
tant prescripts in the Department insofar as discipline is
concerned. It is endorsed by the PSCBC Resolution 1
of 2003. Annexure A of the resolution contains numer-
ous acts of misconduct that the Department outlaws
and complies with. It prescribes that an employee will
be guilty of misconduct if he or she “contravenes any
prescribed code of conduct in the Public Service”. The
Department complies with the Code in that it enforces
the Code of Conduct. Any employee who contravenes
or breaches the Code, as indicated in the Collective
Agreement (PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003), is guilty of
misconduct. A disciplinary process is followed, as indi-
cated in the Collective Agreement, against any employ-
ee who breaches or contravenes the code of conduct in
the Department.

3.6 Health Safety

and Environmental
Issues

Environmental health and safety within COGTA buildings

is implemented according to the Occupational Health

and Safety Act (OHSA) and the internal policy on OHS.

The policy intends to create a healthy and hazard-free

physical work environment for all employees, visitors

and service providers. The following internal controls

have been put in place to ensure compliance to the Act

in implementing the policy:

= Health and Safety Committee member appointments
reviewed in line with the Occupational Health and
Safety Act as well as the Minimum Information Secu-
rity Standards.

= OHS representatives, fire fighters and first aiders
teams’ appointments were reviewed.

= The Evacuation/Emergency Policy was reviewed and
approved.

= The OHS Policy was reviewed and approved.

Portiolio Committees

Date of meeting Agenda

Resolutions

24 February 2015  Briefing by DCOG on Disaster Management

Amendment Bill (DMAB)

10 March 2015 Briefing by SALGA on its APP

After the introduction of the Bill to Parliament, this
was just a briefing to the Committee.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

14 April 2015
Amendment Bill (DMAB)

Deliberations on the Disaster Management

Further engagements with the relevant stakehold-
ers with the Department’s presence as observers.
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Date of meeling
22 April 2015

5 May 2015

12 May 2015

13 May 2015
20 May 2015

26 May 2015

27 May 2015

3 June 2015

9 June 2015

17 June 2015
24 June 2015

4 August 2015
11 August 2015

19 August 2015

8 September 2015

13 October 2015

Agenda
Stakeholder engagement on DMAB

Adoption of budget vote report

Briefing on withholding of equitable share (joint
meeting by CoGTA, NT and SALGA)

Stakeholder engagement on DMAB

Briefing by MDB on its APP and briefing by Na-
tional Treasury on DMAB

Discussion on Integrated Urban Development
and effects of migration and climate change on
municipalities (joint meeting by DCoG, Stats SA,
SACN)

Stakeholder engagement on DMAB

Briefing by the NHTL on the role of traditional
leaders

Briefing on capacity building in local government
(jointly by DcoG, LG Seta and SALGA)

Briefing by the CRL Rights Commission (request
for adequate resources)

Briefing on state of local government (by
NW MEC and Madibeng LM MM)

Briefing by the office of the AG on audit out-
comes for local government

Briefing by MEC for Limpopo on the state of
municipalities in the province

Briefing by DCoG on reviewing of equitable
share, progress on B2B programme and bulk
infrastructure

Traditional Leaders Audit; Initiations Winter 2015
Report

Briefing by the office of the AG on audit out-
comes for COGTA and its entities

Resolutions

Further engagements with the relevant stakehold-
ers with the Department’s presence as observers.

Internal process by the committee and no expec-
tation from the Department.

Challenges facing the affected municipalities
were noted and appreciated. The committee also
resolved to convene another meeting with Eskom
and the water boards.

Further engagements with the relevant stakehold-
ers with the Department’s presence as observers.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

Progress made was noted and appreciated by
the committee.

Further engagements with the relevant stakehold-
ers with the Department’s presence as observers.

The briefing was noted and appreciated, with the
proposal to convene another meeting with Rural

Development & Land Reform committee and the
Khoisans.

Briefings were noted and appreciated.
Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment,

Progress reports were noted and appreciated.

The report was noted with the committee resolv-
ing to play a role through oversight visits and also
urging the Basic Education committee to play an
active role.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.
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Date of meeting
14 October 2015

15 October 2015
20 October 2015
27 October 2015

28 October 2015

17 November 2015
2 February 2016

3 February 2016
16 February 2016

1 March 2016

2 March 2016

8 March 2016

15 March 2016

Agenda

Briefing on Annual Reports by DCoG, DTA, MISA
and SALGA

Briefing on Annual Reports by MDB and CRL
Adoption of BRRR report

Briefing on the Traditional and Khoi-San Leader-
ship Bill

Briefing by the Department of Cooperative Gov-
ernance (DCoG) on:

*  Progress report on Committees 2014 BRRR
recommendations

Demarcation Transitional Grant
Withholding/late transfer of equitable share
Report on municipal forensic reports
Progress report on Municipal Infrastructure
Support Agent (MISA) Post Audit Action Plan
(PAAP)

Adoption of Disaster Management Amendment
Bill

Public hearings on the Traditional and Khoi-San
Leadership Bill

Public hearings on the Traditional and Khoi-San
Leadership Bill

Impact of SONA 2016 on COGTA
Briefing by COGTA and MISA on APPs

Continuation of the CoGTA/MISA APPs and
Public hearings on the Traditional and Khoi-San
Leadership Bill

Briefing by SALGA on its APPs

Briefing by MDB on its APPs

Resolutions

Reports were noted.
Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

Internal process by the committee, no expecta-
tion from the Department.

After the introduction of the Bill to Parliament, this
was just a briefing to the Committee.

All the reports were noted.

Internal process by the committee and no expec-
tation from the Department.

Further engagements with the relevant stakehold-
ers with the Department’s presence as observers.

Further engagements with the relevant stakehold-
ers with the Department’s presence as observers.

A report by the Department was noted.

The committee noted the plans and resolved
to convene the following day for clarity-seeking
questions.

Responses to all questions regarding the APPs
and further engagements with the relevant stake-
holders on the Bill.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

Not applicable, no expectation from the Depart-
ment.

8 DULULFA

The Department did not have engagements with SCOPA during the period under review.
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3.9 Prior modifications

to audit reports

Nature of qualification, disclaimer,
adverse opinion and matler of non-
compliance

3.10 Internal

Control Unit

An internal Controls Committee and Audit Steering
Committee were established and meet regularly on
matters relating to predetermined objectives and finan-
cial management. A risk-based Internal Audit Plan was
approved by the Audit Committee and subsequently im-
plemented. As per the approved plan, 27 audits were
scheduled for the year under review. This also included
ad hoc projects as requested by management. Internal
Audit provided comprehensive recommendations to
strengthen and improve internal controls.

The Community Work Program (CWP) — The Internal Au-
dit Directorate was capacitated in June 2015 and site
visits were conducted in all nine Provinces, providing
management with reasonable assurance that the inter-
nal controls put in place are working as intended. This
process also identified challenges and emerging risks
that were presented to management for interventions.
Internal Audit also assisted management with various
consulting engagements in respect of CWP, specifically
on issues of Value Added Tax (VAT) and Unemployment
Insurance Fund (UIF) implications.

Internal Audit assisted the Department with the following

forensic audit investigations:

= Possible fraudulent activities regarding financial irreg-
ularities related to conferences, travel and logistics
management. This investigation has been finalised

Financial year in
which it first arose

Progress made in clearing/resolving the matter

and the Department is in the process of implement-
ing necessary disciplinary action, as recommended.
= Irregular expenditure emanating from the procure-
ment of goods and services in respect of the Com-
munity Work Programme. This investigation has been
finalised and the Department is in the process of im-

plementing the said recommendations.

311 Internal Audit

and Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is fully functional and met regu-
larly during the year to provide an oversight role on the
operations of the Department and the systems of cor-
porate governance supporting the achievement of the
Department’s objectives. The Audit Committee also ap-
proved the Three Year Strategic Rolling Plan for the pe-
riod 2016-2019 and the Annual Project Plan for Internal
Audit. The Audit Committee also met with the Executive
Authority to raise areas of concern that would impact on
the performance of the Department. Quarterly reports
were submitted to the Audit Committee, which enabled
the committee to monitor the performance of Internal
Audit against the Internal Audit Annual Project Plan. Fur-
thermore, the Committee plays an oversight role to en-
sure that the recommendations from Internal Audit are
being fully implemented by management in improving
the control environment of the Department.

The Department also implemented the Integrated Man-
agement Tool, which is a reporting mechanism for all
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internal control and audit findings raised through the
external audit, internal audit and MPAT processes. The
progress on the implementation of these recommenda-
tions are monitored by the Audit Committee on a quar-
terly basis.

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

3121 AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE:
The Audit Committee consisted of the members listed hereunder. The Committee is required to meet at least four times
per annum as per its approved terms of reference. Four (4) meetings were held for the current financial period.

Name (ualifications

DIP: Finance and Accounting;
Mr F Sinthumule BCom Accounting
MBA( with special project on PFMA)

Scheduled
Meetings

Held Attended

Chairperson appointed
on 22 July 2013

LLB (UNISA)

B.PROC (UNISA)
Certificate in Constitutional Litigation (NADEL — Prof. Guto)
Certificate in Maritime Law (University of Natal);

Admitted as an Advocate in SA on 17-08-07

External Member ap-

Adv RR Dehal pointed on 22 July 2013

Ms P Mzizi
CA(SA)

3122 AUDIT COMMITTEE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit Committee is satisfied that it has complied
with its responsibilities as outlined in Section 38(1) (a)
of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.3. The Audit
Committee also reports that it has adopted a formal
terms of reference as its audit committee charter, and
has discharged all its responsibilities as contained
therein. These have been reviewed and updated to con-
form and/or comply with changes in governance/legis-
lative requirements.

BBusSci Finance (UCT) * BCompt Hons CTA (UNISA)
BCom Hons in Transport Economics (UNISA)

External Member ap-
pointed on 01 February
2015

3123 THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal controls is a process for assur-
ing achievement of an organization’s objectives in op-
erational effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial
reporting, and compliance with laws, regulations. In ac-
cordance with the PFMA and the King Il Report require-
ments relating to public sector, Internal Audit provides
the Audit Committee and management with assurance
that the internal controls are appropriate and effective.
However during the period under review and based on
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the coverage of the Internal Audit plan, the effective-
ness of the system of internal control for the department
proved to be ineffective, particularly with regard to the
Community Work Programme. The unit also identified
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to
strengthen the internal control environment and pro-
cesses. This was also reported at the appropriate quar-
terly reporting process. During the period under review
the Committee noted that although management made
every effort in addressing the control environment the
department however was unable to achieve a satis-
factory audit outcome. The major challenge for the de-
partment during the year under review was the internal
control environment around the Community Work Pro-
gramme (CWP) which has resulted in a qualification in
the following areas:

= Movable tangible assets in CWP; and

= Payments made to CWP implementing agents in-

cluded in Goods and Services.

The Community Work Programme is a serious concern
for the committee as it urges management to implement
robust, strategic interventions to ensure the effective
and efficient running of this programme and also the en-
hancement of the system of internal controls.

The Committee also notes with concern the magnitude
of the irregular expenditure for the 2015/2016 financial
year as disclosed in the annual financial statements.
Management is urged to improve its compliance with
legislation and regulations to curb the irregular expend-
iture and also finalise the existing irregular expenditure.

During the year under review the Committee met with
the Executive Authority and raised concerns with regard
to internal control deficiencies that required immediate
corrective action. The Committee also emphasized the
challenges experienced with the Community Work Pro-
gram and requested the urgent intervention of the Min-
ister to ensure the effective and efficient implementation
of the programme.

3124 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Committee is responsible for the oversight of risk
management. Internal Audit assisted the Department in
facilitating the Risk Management processes and in com-
piling the Risk Register. The Risk Management Commit-
tee also monitors and oversees the implementation of
the risk action plans for the department.

Based on the quarterly reviews performed, it can be
concluded that the departmental risk management is
adequate and effective except in CWP where the risk
management was inadequate.

3125 EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL
AUDIT

The Committee is not satisfied with the capacity con-
straints facing Internal Audit which may negatively im-
pact on the unit achieving the annual operational plan.
Internal Audit Management reported directly to the Au-
dit Committee, with Internal Audit also reporting inde-
pendently on the progress by management in imple-
menting the turnaround strategy plan to secure remedial
actions.

An approved three year risk based strategic plan and
an annual operation plan were implemented by Internal
Audit.

During the year under review Internal Audit was sourced
with a Director and three (3) Senior Internal Auditors to
assist with the audit of the Community Work Programme.
This unit was fully functional in September 2015 and se-
rious efforts were made to provide some level of assur-
ance in the system of internal controls of CWP

Internal Audit also assisted the Department with the fol-

lowing Management ad hoc requests:

= Analysis of the Northern Cape Bucket Eradication
Programme - finalized and report has been issued.

= |nvestigation of alleged unethical conduct by em-
ployee of the department that was reported on the
Presidential Hotline (NACH) — A forensic audit was
commissioned which resulted in disciplinary action.
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= Possible abuse of travel policy — finalized and report
issued.

= Investigation into the appointment and awarding of
tenders to the Implementing Agents for the Commu-
nity Work Programme and procurement processes
of goods/services procured by the Implementing
Agents — Phase 1 has been finalized. Tender process
for Phase 2 is in progress.

= Possible abuse in usage of cellphones and data
costs — finalized and report issued.

= Assisting the Municipal Demarcation Board in a disci-
plinary matter — finalized.

3126 QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT
AND MONTHLY / QUARTERLY
REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS
OF THE ACT AND THE DIVISION
OF REVENUE ACT
The Department presented and reviewed the financial
management and performance (predetermined objec-
tives) reports at its Quarterly Review Meetings. These
reports were also discussed at the Audit Committee
meetings and issues were raised with the Department.

The Department has reported to the National Treasury
as required by the PFMA and the Department of Moni-
toring and Evaluation on a quarterly basis.

3127 EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has:

= Reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prior to
submission for Audit;

= Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General
and Accounting Officer the audited annual financial
statements to be included in the annual report;

= Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management letter
and management response; and

= Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the
audit.

3.12.8 AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

We have reviewed the department’s implementation

plan for audit issues raised in the previous year and
concluded that it is adequate but partially effective as
some of the matters have not been adequately resolved.

The Audit Committee is not aware of any unresolved is-
sues with respect to the current audit.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclu-
sions of the Auditor General South Africa on the Annual
Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the au-
dited annual financial statements be accepted and read
together with the report of the Auditor General South Af-
rica.

3129 GENERAL

The Audit Committee strongly recommends that the
Department must prioritize the adequate and effective
implementation and frequent monitoring of the audit ac-
tion plans for both internal and external audit in order to
achieve the required effectiveness in governance, ac-
countability and the clean administration.

31210 CONCLUSION

The Audit Committee wishes to extend its appreciation
to the Executive Authority, Accounting Officer and Man-
agement, Internal Auditors and Auditor General South
Africa for their tireless efforts, commitment and support
throughout the year.

Signed on behalf of the Audit Committee by:

lrﬁﬁ:)

Mr A F Sinthumule
Date: 09 September 2016
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1.1 Introduction

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the Minister of Public Service and

Administration for all departments in the public service.

1.2 The status of

Human Resource Management

Competent and skilled workforce are key for the success
of the Department’s mission and vision. Integrated HR
processes are being pursued to promote the well-being
of employees to achieve on the strategic priorities this
includes ensuring that the correct people are recruited,
maintained and managed at the correct time and place
always.

HUMAN RESOURCE PRIORITIES FOR
THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW AND THE
IMPACT OF THESE

The Department had four priorities in the Human Re-
source Plan during the year under review. The said pri-
orities were the following:

= Organisational structure approved and implemented;
= Training and Development;

= Change Management; and

= | eave management.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
APPROVED AND IMPLEMENTED:

The Public Service Act requires each department to
have an approved organisational structure, which is
very important because every department has to have
an approved organisational structure for purposes of re-
cruitment. The impact is that the department cannot de-
velop job profiles, conduct job evaluation and ultimately
recruit without an approved organisational structure.

TRANING AND DEVELOPMENT
The training and development of employees are key
since employees need to develop to improve produc-

tivity in the workplace. The economy needs employees
who are competent and can compete in terms of pro-
ductivity. During the 2015/2016 Financial Year, the Direc-
torate: Human Resource Development implemented 28
training programmes. The Directorate also conducted
orientation programmes for 86 newly appointed employ-
ees and 10 Compulsory Induction Programmes (CIP) for
level 1 to 5 staff members and 26 for level 6 to 12 staff
members. Eight hundred and forty-two (842) staff mem-
bers were trained in the above mentioned interventions
during the Financial Year. (NB: Some staff members
have attended more than one intervention.) The Depart-
ment awarded 42 staff members with bursaries to study
towards qualifications in line with the Departmental Stra-
tegic Plan. (NB: Only 25 staff members utilised their bur-
sary allocations.)

CHANGE MANAGEMENT

The Department embarked on a project to develop a
Change Management Strategy. The Department took
a decision after a climate survey was conducted in
2013-14 which revealed challenges on how change
management was conducted or not conducted at all.
The Department subsequently developed a Change
Management Strategy, which will be implemented. The
impact will be monitored and assessed in 2016/2017.

LEAVE MANAGEMENT

Circulars, which included procedure manuals on all
leave matters, were communicated to staff members.
Information sessions were also held throughout the
Department, explaining the leave requirements and
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procedures. Leave champions were appointed in each
Branch and trained on leave application.

= Workforce planning and key strategies to attract

and recruit a skilled and capable workforce.
No priority posts were identified for the year under
review due to budget constraints.

The Department, therefore, only filled posts when va-
cated by employees. One hundred and twenty-three
(123) posts were filled with the support of the various
line function managers, some of which on contract
basis.

Employee performance management

The Department implemented the Performance Man-
agement and Development System in line with the
Performance Management and Development Policy
and Chapter 4 of the SMS Handbook on Performance
Management, amongst others.

During the year under review, one hundred and for-
ty-one (141) of the one hundred and forty-six mem-
bers of the SMS submitted their performance agree-
ments, translating to ninety-seven percent (97%).
The five (56) SMS members who did not submit their
performance agreements translated to three percent
(3%). They were dealt in terms of the prescripts on
consequence management as indicated in clause
4.8.2 of the SMS Handbook.

To encourage meritorious achievement, performance
rewards were granted to all qualifying staff mem-
bers in the Department during the year under review.
Quarterly performance management and develop-
ment sessions were conducted to ensure that indi-
vidual performance is linked to the broader overall
objectives of the Department.

Employee wellness programmes.

The Department has a Unit responsible for Employee
Health and Wellness staffed with two qualified em-
ployees at a Deputy Director and Assistant Director

level. The Department implemented a number of in-
terventions, amongst others, blood donation, cancer
awareness, financial management awareness, and
counselling. The Employee Health and Wellness pro-
gramme has attracted a number of staff members who
benefit through products provided by different service
providers. GEMS Medical Scheme played a pivotal
role given that there was no amount budgeted for the
Wellness days due to the cost cutting measures.

ACHIEVEMENTS AND CHALLENGES

The highlights of the previous year are the following:

= The Department’s organisational structure was ap-
proved by the Minister of Cooperative Governance af-
ter concurrence by the Minister of Public Service and
Administration.

= All the additional staff members were absorbed in per-
manent posts to rectify the anomaly.

= All planned training and development activities
achieved.

= The Change Management Strategy finalised.

= Leave management compliance by line managers im-
proved.

= Employee Health and Wellness programme targets
achieved.

= The Chief Directorate further facilitated the achieve-
ment of equity in the Department by ensuring 50% rep-
resentation of women at senior management level and
improved representation of people with disabilities to
1%. The programme institutionalised the 8 Principles
Action Plan for Promoting Women Empowerment and
Gender Equality.

= All SMS members disclosed their financial interests
before the due date and the information was submit-
ted to the Public Service Commission on time.

= Information sessions were held with staff members to
communicate the available service benefits and to en-
sure a better understanding.

= The challenge is that the department will not be able
to fill any posts in the near future given that it has no
funds in the MTEF period. This will have a negative im-
pact on employees as they will have to do extra work
resulting in possible fatigue and absenteeism.
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1.3 Human Resources

431 PERSONNEL-RELATED EXPENDITURE

The following tables summarise the final audited personnel-related expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In
particular, they provide an indication of the following:

= Amount spent on personnel

= Amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and medical aid.

Table 4.3.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Professional Personnel Average
Total Personnel Training and Special expenditure personnel
Programme expenditure expenditure expenditure Services asa% cosl per
(R°000) (R°000) (R°000) expendilure of total employee
(R°000) expenditure (R°000)
Administration 269 422 119 441 1041 5 368 44.3% 579.8
Policy, Research
and Knowledge 17914 12 692 30 1354 70.85% 248.9
management
Governance and
Intergovernmental 49 466 922 28 514 36 5042 0.1% 331.6
relations
National Disaster
Management Centre 258 158 20772 19 2603 8.0% 670.1
Provincial and Municipal
Government Systems 293 335 24 006 46 1814 8.2% 648.8
Infrastructure and
Economic development 17 665 858 52 909 71 311 193 392 0.3% 518.7
Total 67 971 609 258 334 1552 215932 0.4% 503.6

Table 4.3.2 Personnel costs per band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Personnel O _Avel‘age
- . R % of total : personnel cost
Salary band expenditure " | No. of employees ) )
& R'000) personnel cost e per employee
( (R000)
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 9342 4% 57 158.3
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 40 333 16% 153 263.6
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 85 121 33% 165 519.0
Senior and Top Management (levels 13-16) 123 538 48% 138 901.7
Total 258 334 100% 513 503.6
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Table 4.3.3 Salartes, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the
pertod 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Programme

Salaries

Salaries
as a % of
personnel
cosls

Amount
(R°000)

Overtime

Amount
(R°000)

Overlime
as a %ol
personnel
cosls

Home Owners
Allowance

Amount
(R°000)

HOA as a
% of
personnel
cosls

Medical Aid

Amount
(R°000)

Medical
aid as
a % of
personnel
cosls

Administration 87 208 78.9 998 0.9 2 025 1.8 2157 2.0
“Pn‘;':fg’é:n‘:‘:ﬁf“’h and Knowledge = 19055 | 739 183 0.7 398 16 581 23
ﬁ?ggg\g&?ninnﬂal Relations 45923 835 1 i 1046 19 o6 10
Sational Disaster Management 45505 7611 88 0.4 420 19 081 13
g:;’\)’;?ﬁ:ﬁ;ﬁ{‘gxt’e";‘csipa' 19013 767 85 0.3 450 18 458 18
:;‘;ﬁg;ﬁf:ﬁ I ST 43618 802 9% 0.2 852 16 712 13
Total 231982 796 1461 05 5191 18 4750 16

Table 4.3.4 Salartes, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the
pertod 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Home Owners

Salaries Overlime ! Medical Aid
Allowance
Programme Salaries Overtime HOA as a Niﬁﬁlzgl
. Amount asa%of Amount asa%of Amount % of Amount 29 ‘01.
(R000) personnel (R°000) personnel (R'000) personnel (R000) © °°
0 ) personnel
costs costs costs :
costs
Skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 6 588 70.4 279 3.0 579 6.2 481 5.1
Highly skilled production
(levels 6-8) 32 594 76.8 707 1.7 1341 3.2 1659 39
Highly skilled supervision
(levels 9-12) 68 229 78.6 476 0.5 881 1.0 1399 1.6
Senior Management
(levels 13-16) 124 571 81.5 - - 2 389 1.6 1212 0.8
Total 231982 79.6 1462 0.5 5190 1.8 4751 1.6

CHAPTER 4 | PART D « HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

101



Table 4.4.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2016

Number of posts

Number of posts

Number of
employees

Programme (1] ap_prove(l filled Vacancy Rate additional To the
establishment R
establishment
Programme 1: Administration 223 201 9.9 20
Programme 2: Policy, Research and
Knowledge Management 28 2 0 L
Programme 3: Governance and 43 40 7 ’
Intergovernmental Relations
Programme 4: National Disaster
Management Centre & <0 18 v
Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal
Government Support 4 S0 0 g
Programme 6: Infrastructure and Economic
Development &2 4 o e
Total 455 406 10.8 98

Table 4.4.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2016

Number of posts

Number of posts

Number of
employees

Salary band on appl'oved filled Vacancy Rate additional 1o the
Gt il establishment

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 53 49 75 8
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 132 118 28.8 34
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 155 138 10.3 25
Senior Management
(levels 13-16) 115 101 12.2 31
Total 455 406 10.8 98

Table 4.4.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2016

Number of posts

Number of posts

Number of
employees

Critical occupation on approved filled Vacancy Rate additional 1o the
establishment Ty
establishment
Senior Managers 115 101 12.2 31
Total 115 101 12.2 31
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Table 4.5.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2016

Total number
of funded SMS
posts

T(?::k[';"l:?)l:fsr % of SMS posts

filled filled

SMS Level

Total number

of

SMS posts

vacant
vacant

% of SMS posts

Director-General / Head of Department 2 2 100 0 0
Salary Level 16 0 0 0 0 0
Salary Level 15 8 3 38 5 62
Salary Level 14 31 27 87 4 13
Salary Level 13 74 69 93 5 7
Total 115 101 88 14 12

Table 4.5.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2015

Total number  Total number ,, .. . Jotalnumber , . ovoo
SIS Level of funded SNS  of SMSposts * O SMS posts iy pasts 70 OF SMS poss
X filled : vacanl
posts filled vacani

Director-General / Head of Department 2 2 100 0 0
Salary Level 16 0 0 0 0 0
Salary Level 15 8 3 38 5 62
Salary Level 14 31 27 87 4 13
Salary Level 13 74 71 96 3 4
Total 115 103 90 2 10

Table 4.5.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Advertising Filling of Posts

Number of vacancies
per level advertised in
6 months of becoming

vacant

SMS Level

Director-General / Head of Department
Salary Level 16
Salary Level 15
Salary Level 14

Salary Level 13

Number of vacancies per
level filled in 6 months of
becoming vacant

Number of vacancies
per level not filled in 6
months but filled in 12

months

Total

ODfjw N =~ O O

oO|J]O O O O O
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Table 4.5.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS posts -
Advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the
pertod 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

Filling of the posts was suspended in anticipation of the deliberations with the Department of Public Service and
Administration on the new structure. The finalised structure was approved by the Minister on 18 March 2016.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months

Filling of the posts of Deputy Director-General: Corporate and Financial Services; 3 Deputy Directors-General:
MISA; Chief Director: Capacity Building and Development; Chief Director: Communication and Marketing; and
Director: Executive Support were suspended pending the finalisation of the re-alignment of the organisational
structure.

Table 4.5.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling
SMS posts within 12 months for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Disciplinary steps taken

No disciplinary steps required since there are legitimate reasons for the delay with the filling of SMS posts.

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her organ-
isation. In terms of the regulations, all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled.
The following table summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table also
provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 4.6.1 Job evaluation by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of % of Posts Upgraded  Posis downgraded
osls on Number  posis .

Salary band ‘p oved of Jobs evaluated % of % of

‘]l;pll 01: % Evaluated by salary Number  posts ~ Number  posis
establishment hands evaluated evaluated
Lower skilled (levels1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 53 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 132 10 7.6 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 155 14 9 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band A 74 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band B 31 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band C 8 1 12.5 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band D 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 455 25 5.5 0 0 0 0

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts
being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of upgraded posts since not all employees are
automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the upgraded posts could also be vacant.
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Table 4.6.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for
the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Gender African (oloured Total
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Employees with a disability 0

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by
job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 4.6.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by
occupation for the pertod 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

(Occupation Number of employees Job evaluation level Remuneration level Reason for deviation
Chief Director 1 14 15 Buy Offer
Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation 1
Percentage of total employed 0.25

The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 4.6.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job
evaluation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Gender African Asian Coloured White
Female 1 0 0 0 1
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 1 0 0 0 1
Employees with a disability 0

Notes

= |fthere were no cases where the salary levels were higher than those determined by job evaluation, keep the heading
and replace the table with the following:

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determined by job evaluation None

Employment changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indica-
tion of trends in the employment profile of the Department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by
salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes on the next page)
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Table 4.6.5 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of
employees at
beginning of

Appointments and Terminations and
transfers into the  transfers out of  Turnover rate %

Salary band

period-April 2015 Department the Department
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 49 1 3 6.1
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 119 18 10 8.4
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 121 25 138 9.9
Senior Management Service Band A 70 1 6 8.6
Senior Management Service Band B 28 1 8 10.7
Senior Management Service Band C 6 0 8 50
Senior Management Service Band D 1 0 0 0
Contracts 80 77 24 30
Total 474 123 62 13

Table 4.6.6 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Number of \pDoi sand Terminations and
- . employeesal ppoiniments and  Terminations ane
(ritical occupation beginni . transfersinto the transfers out of  Turnover rate %
] department the department
period-April 2015 “parime » deparime
Senior Management Service (levels 13-16) 105 2 12 11.4
Total 105 2 12 11.4
Notes

= The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.
= Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation —

- in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or anticipated in the future, either be-
cause such skilled persons are not available or they are available but do not meet the applicable employment
criteria;

- for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science or learning field and such
knowledge is acquired by a prolonged course or study and/or specialised instruction;

- where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion and is predominantly intel-
lectual in nature; and

- inrespect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employ-
ees.

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the Department.
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% of Total

Termination Type Number Resienati
esignations
Death 0 0
Resignation 29 47
Expiry of contract 18 29
Dismissal — operational changes 0 0
Dismissal — misconduct 1 1.5
Dismissal - inefficiency 0 0
Discharged due to ill health 0 0
Retirement 3 5
Transfer to other Public Service Departments 10 16
Other 1 1.5
Total 62 100
Total number of employees who left as a % of total employment 13

Table 4.6.8 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary level Progressions to s
B o _ _ _ g T T Notch progression
Occuvali mployees Promotions Lo promotions as a % anothernotch "y . =
ccupation Nt . o - , Lol asa % of employees
1 April 2015 another salary level  of employees by within a salary by .
: A ) : Yy occupation
occupation level
Senior
Management
Service (levels 110 L L < Sl
13-16)
Total 105 1 1 96 91.4

Table 4.6.9 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Notch
progression
as a % of

Salary bands

. : Progressions
Promotions to  promotions °

Employees to another

Salary Band 1 April 2015 another salary as a % of noteh within a

level employees by salary level employees by

salary level & salary bands
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 73 0 0 €S 47.9
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 129 10 7.8 82 63.6
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 135 8 3.7 73 54.1
Senior Management (levels 13-16) 137 1 0.7 98 71.5
Total 474 16 34 288 60.8
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1.7 Hm 311'1\_‘; ment

Table 4.7.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

following occupational categories as on 31 March 2016

Occupational category

African
Legislators, senior officials

Male

Coloured Indian

White

African

Female

Coloured

Indian

White

Total

and managers 131 4 6 10 122 3 3 15 294
Professionals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Technicians and associate

professionals 0 o 0 0 o 0 0 Y 2
Clerks 39 2 0 1 96 1 2 11 152
Service and sales workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled agriculture and

fishery workers 0 Y Y 0 Y Y 0 Y Y
Craft and related trades

workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators

and assemblers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elementary occupations 35 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 58
Total 205 6 6 11 241 4 5 26 504
Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 5

Table 4.7.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

following occupational bands as on 31 March 2016

Male Female
(Occupational band Total
African (oloured Indian  White  African Coloured Indian  White
Top Management 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 6
Senior Management 56 2 4 5 46 1 2 11 127
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and 40 2 2 3 49 2 1 8 102
middle-management
Skilled technical
and academically
qualified workers,
junior management, 70 2 0 1 123 1 2 12 211
supervisors, foremen and
superintendents
Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision 35 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 58
making
Unskilled and defined
decision making 0 o o 0 2 o 0 e Y
Total 205 6 6 11 241 4 5 26 504
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Table 4.7.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Male Female
(Oceupational band Total
Airican C(oloured Indian White African (oloured Indian White
Top Management 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Senior Management 4 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 8
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and middle- 19 0 1 0 21 1 0 1 43
management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen and L= g o Y & o e v e
superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making U o 0 o 10 0 o v il
Unskilled and defined decision
making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 45 1 3 1 68 2 2 1 123
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 4.7.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Male Female
(Oceupational band
African C(oloured Indian White African (oloured Indian

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and middle- 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 5
management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen and e L o o 9 o o & 10
superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making o 0 0 Y 5 Y 5 g 0
Unskilled and defined decision
making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 8 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 16
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 4.7.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupational band

Male

African Coloured Indian

White

African

Female

Coloured

Indian

White

Total

Top Management 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 3
Senior Management 8 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 12
Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and middle- 6 0 0 0 9 0 0 2 17
management

Skilled technical and academically

qualified workers, junior management,

supervisors, foremen and . L & 0 1 0 L Y e
superintendents

Semi-skilled and discretionary

decision making L 0 9 0 & 0 o o 4
Unskilled and defined decision

making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 20 2 0 0 89 2 1 2 62
Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 4.7.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Disciplinary action

2

Male

African Coloured Indian

0

0

0

White
0

African
1

Female

Coloured
0

Table 4.7.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Indian
0

White

Total

Oceupational category

Legislators, senior officials and

African

Male

Coloured Indian

Female

White African Coloured

Indian

Total

managers 146 4 6 16 197 3 8 11 391
Professionals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Technicians and associate

professionals 0 & o 0 o 0 o & g
Clerks 98 3 0 1 240 3 1 22 368
Service and sales workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators and

assemblers ° 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elementary occupations 86 0 0 0 48 0 0 0 83
Total 279 7 6 17 485 6 9 88 842
Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2
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All members of SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information regard-
ing the signing of performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the prescribed
timeframes and disciplinary steps taken are presented here.

Table 4.8.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 01 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Signed performance
agreements as % of

Total number of funded  Total number of SHS Total number of

isllaidl SMS posts members s1gnet! !]ermrm,ance total number of SMS
agreements members

Director-General /

Head of Department 2 2 2 100
Salary Level 16 1 1 1 100
Salary Level 15 8 6 6 100
Salary Level 14 31 41 39 95
Salary Level 13 74 96 93 97
Total 115 146 141 97

Table 4.8.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance Agreements for all SMS members as on
31 March 2016

Reasons

3 SMS members did not submit due to incapacity issues.
1 SMS member was transferred to another government department.

1 SMS member is covered by clause 8.1 of chapter 4 of the SMS handbook, which states that “a newly appointed
member of the SMS shall complete his/her PA within three months of appointment”.

Notes
= The reporting date in the heading of this table should be aligned with that of Table 3.7.1.

Table 4.8.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded
Performance Agreements as on 31 March 2016

Reasons

Forfeiture of performance-related rewards in line with circular 1 of 2015 on Consequence Management as approved
by the Director-General.

Notes
= The reporting date in the heading of this table should be aligned with that of Table 3.7.1.
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To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance rewards during the year un-
der review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations. (see

definition in notes below).

Table 4.9.1 Performance rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Beneficiary Profile Cost
Race and Gender Number of Number of % of total within . (R000) Average cosl per
beneficiaries employees group employee

African 141 392 36 2 445 35
Male 61 187 33 1148 19
Female 80 205 39 1297 16
Asian 3 7 43 95 58
Male 2 4 50 75 38
Female 1 3 33 20 20
Coloured 7 11 66 192 51
Male 8 6 50 8S 13
Female 4 5 80 153 38
White 29 37 78 756 62
Male 6 10 60 237 40
Female 23 27 85 519 23
Total 180 447 40 3545 20

Table 4.9.2 Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for

the pertod 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Beneficiary Profile

Salary band

Number of

Number of

% of total
within salary

Total Cost Average cost

Total cost as a
% of the total

personnel

beneficiaries employees (R°000)  per employee expenditure
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 21 64 36 143 6198 1.5
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 59 125 49 669 10 964 1.6
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 71 119 56 1504 22 442 1.8
Total 151 308 49 2315 15 331 1.6
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Table 4.9.3 Performance rewards by critical occupation for the pertod 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Beneficiary Profile Cost
(ritical occupation Number of Number of % of total within oo Average cosl per
. : . Total Cost (R°000) e
beneficiaries employees occupation employee
Senior Management Services 29 139 21 1147 40
Total 29 139 21 1147 40
Notes

= The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.
= Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation —

- in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or anticipated in the future, either be-
cause such skilled persons are not available or they are available but do not meet the applicable employment
criteria;

- for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science or learning field and such
knowledge is acquired by a prolonged course or study and/or specialised instruction;

- where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion and is predominantly intel-
lectual in nature; and

- inrespect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employ-
ees;

Table 4.9.4 Performance-related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for Senior Management
Service for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a
teibores % of the total
Salary band Number of Number of % of total within o meoan, Average costper  personnel

b A - e . Total Cost (R°000) >0 .
eneficiaries employees salary bands employee expenditure
Band A 16 85 19 584 37 0.7
Band B 10 44 23 409 41 0.9
Band C 3 6 50 155 52 1.9
Band D 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 29 139 21 1147 40 0.8
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The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the Department in terms of salary band and major

occupation.

Table 4.10.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

1 April 2015 31 Mareh 2016
Salary band
Number % of total Number % of total

Change

Number

% Change

Lower skilled 0 0 0 0
Hég\;’réllyé gl_(g)led production 0 0 0 0
z'é%mﬁ gl_(;ll;d supervision 0 0 0 0
(ovels 012 0 0 0 0 0
ﬁé’v"!f? Tou1 6) ! 100 ! 100
Total 1 100 1 100

Table 4.10.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

01 April 2015 31 March 2016

Major occupation
Number  %oitotal  Number % of total

Professionals and managers 1 100 1 100

Change

Number

% (hange

Total

1 100 1 100
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111 Leave

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The

following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of

the leave is also provided.

Table 4.11.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

% Days with Number of % of total J—
%o Days oos o Average
Salary band Total days Medical 131]:1[1)1?119((: (1.11:1111)1 l:‘gf:i‘s days per fE:tl“(llli‘l(l)((\)((l))
certification ™, 0 " eave employee
Lower Skills (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 195 84.2 39 10.4 8 166
Highly skilled production
(levels 6-8) 823 76.8 120 32.3 7 632
Highly skilled supervision
(levels 9-12) 708 72.6 117 31.4 6 514
Top and Senior Management
(levels 13-16) 590 79 96 25.8 6 466
Total 2316 76.8 372 100 6 1778

Table 4.11.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2015 to

31 December 2015

Salary band Total days

Lower skilled

Number of

% Days with Employees
Medical
cerlification

using
disability
leave

% of tolal
employees
using
disability
leave

Average
days per
employee

Estimated
Cost (R°000)

(levels 1-2) 0 Y o . 0 ¢
Skilled (levels 3-5) 79 100 8 53.3 10 88
Highly skilled production

(levels 6-8) 24 100 3 20 8 50
Highly skilled supervision

(levels 9-12) 30 100 2 138 15 109
Senior Management

(levels 13-16) 16 100 2 13.3 8 20
Total 149 100 15 100 100 267
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The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the
PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of

termination of service.

Table 4.11.3 Annual leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Number of Employees

Salary band Total days taken using annual leave Average per employee
Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 1340 74 27
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 3317 173 19
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 3528 179 20
Senior Management (levels 13-16) 3384 154 22
Total 11569 580 20

Table 4.11.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Total days of Number of

Salary band capped leave  Employees using
taken capped leave

Average number
of days taken
per employee

Average capped
leave per
employee as at
31 March 2016

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 1 2 39
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 3 2 2 19
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 24 4 6 40
Senior Management (levels 13-16) 5 3 2 50
Total 34 10 ) 39

The following table summarises payments made to employees due to leave that was not taken.

Table 4.11.5 Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total amount

Reason (R000)

Leave payout for 2015 due to non-utilisation of leave for

Number of
employees

Average per
employee (R°000)

the previous cycle o Y 0
Capped leave payout on termination of service for 2015 428 12 35 667
Current leave payout on termination of service for 2015 364 18 20 222
Total 792 30 26 400
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Table 4.12.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Uniis/eategories of employees identified to be at high risk

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

of coniracting HIV and related diseases (if any)

All staff

Employee health and wellness programme (HIV prevention,
awareness and testing)

HIV and AIDS policy
Condom dispensers at all gents and ladies rooms

Table 4.12.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes

(uestion

1. Has the Department designated a member of the
SMS to implement the provisions contained in Part
VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations,
2001? If so, provide her/his name and position.

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or

has it designated specific staff members to promote
the health and well-being of your employees? If so,
indicate the number of employees who are involved
in this task and the annual budget that is available for
this purpose.

3. Has the Department introduced an Employee
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services
of this programme.

4. Has the Department established a committee(s)
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of
the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please
provide the names of the members of the committee
and the stakeholder(s) that they represent.

5. Has the Department reviewed its employment
policies and practices to ensure that these do not
unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis
of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/
practices so reviewed.

6. Has the Department introduced measures to
protect HIV-positive employees or those perceived to
be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key
elements of these measures.

7. Does the Department encourage its employees to
undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list
the results that you have you achieved.

8. Has the Department developed measures/
indicators to monitor and evaluate the impact of
its health promotion programme? If so, list these
measures/indicators.

Yes No

v

Details, if yes

Mr Sonwabo Shibane: Senior manager: Organisa-
tional Development and Labour Relation

The Department has a dedicated unit staffed with two
employees:

e 1 Deputy Director

e 1 Assistant Director

e Budget: R400,000

Employee assistance programme (counselling),
health promotion and life skills (awareness and work-
shops), HIV and AIDS programme (awareness and
VCT) and financial wellness.

The Department has the Human Resource Commit-
tee that is responsible for a wide range of human
resource issues. The Department is in the process of
broadening the terms of reference of the committee
to accommodate issues of EHW.

Employment policies and practices do not unfairly
discriminate against employees on the basis of their
HIV/AIDS status. The Department has the following
employment policies and practices: Recruitment &
Selection Policy, Training & Development Policy, HIV/
AIDS Policy, Employment Equity Policy and Standard
Operating Procedures.

HIV and AIDS policy is in place. The policy makes
provisions for employees not to be discriminated on
the basis of HIV status. Care and support referrals

to support centres are established. Disciplinary and
grievance procedures are in place to counter against
those discriminating on the basis of HIV status.

Through bi-annual health assessments, VCT, annual
wellness day screening and blood donation drives.

v None
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113 Llabour

Table 4.13.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Subject matter Daie

Total number of collective agreements None

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the Department for the year
under review.

Table 4.13.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

(Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total
y g

Correctional counselling 0 0
Verbal warning 0 0
Written warning 0 0
Final written warning 0 0
Suspended without pay 0 0
Fine 0 0
Demotion 1 50
Dismissal 1 50
Not guilty 0 0
Case withdrawn 0 0
Total 2 100

Table 4.13.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Type of misconduet Number % of Total

Financial misconduct 2 100

Total 2 100
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Table 4.13.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Grievances % of Total
Number of grievances resolved 6 100
Number of grievances not resolved 0 0
Total number of grievances lodged 6 100
Table 4.13.5 Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Disputes Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 0 0
Number of disputes dismissed 3 100
Total number of disputes lodged 3 100
Table 4.13.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Total number of persons working days lost 0
Total costs working days lost 0
Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000) 0
Table 4.13.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Number of people suspended 1
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 1
Average number of days suspended 103
Cost of suspension (R’000) R136 774.98
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114 SKills

This section highlights the efforts of the Department with regard to skills development.

Table 4.14.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

(Occupational category

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Number of
employees
as at
1 April 2015

Skills
programmes
and other
short courses

Gender Other forms

of training ot

Learnerships

. . . Female 139 0 75 0 75
Legislators, senior officials and managers
Male 133 0 55 0 58
. Female 0 0 0 0 0
Professionals
Male 0 0 0 0 0
. . . Female 0 0 0 0 0
Technicians and associate professionals
Male 0 0 0 0 0
F | 91 0 52 0 52
Clerks emaie
Male 38 0 18 0 18
. Female 0 0 0 0 0
Service and sales workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0
. . . Female 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled agriculture and fishery workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0
F | 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades workers emaie
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators and Female 0 0 0 0 0
assemblers Male 0 0 0 0 0
. Female 23 0 8 0 8
Elementary occupations
Male 50 0 9 0 9
Female 253 0 135 0 135
Sub-total
Male 221 0 82 0 82
Total 474 0 217 0 217
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Table 4.14.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Training provided within the reporting period

Number of
, ee Skills
Occupational category employlees 0 r:;mmes Other
&) Learnerships prog ®  forms of Total
1 April 2015 and other \waini
) i raining
short courses =
. . . Female 139 0 314 4 318
Legislators, senior officials and managers
Male 133 0 217 6 223
. Female 0 0 0 0 0
Professionals
Male 0 0 0 0 0
. . . Female 0 0 0 0 0
Technicians and associate professionals
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 91 0 193 7 200
Clerks
Male 38 0 76 5 81
. Female 0 0 0 0 0
Service and sales workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0
. . . Female 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled agriculture and fishery workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades workers
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators and Female 0 0 0 0 0
assemblers Male 0 0 1 0 1
Elementary occupations Female 23 0 6 2 8
i - Male 50 0 10 1 11
Female 253 0 513 13 526
Sub-total
Male 221 0 304 12 316
Total 474 0 817 25 842

115 Injury

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 4.15.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Nature of injury on duty Number % of lotal

Required basic medical attention only 1 100
Temporary Total Disablement 0 0
Permanent Disablement 0 0
Fatal 0 0
Total 1 100
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The following tables relate information on the utilisation of consultants in the Department.

In terms of the Public Service Regulations, ‘consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which

provides in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services to a department

against remuneration received from any source:

= The rendering of expert advice.

= The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks.

= The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of a depart-
ment.

Table 4.16.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total number of
Project title consultanis that
worked on project

Duration Contract value in

(work days) Rand

Appointment of the service provider to conduct forensic
investigation on appointment of implementing agents 6 74 R 821,057.68
for the Community Work Programme.

Total number Total individual Total duration Total contract
of projects consultants Work days value in Rand

0 0 0 0

Table 4.16.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds in terms of Historically
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Percentage ownership by HDI  Percentage management by HDI Number of consultants from HDI
groups groups groups that work on the project

N/A 0 0 0

Project title

Table 4.16.3 Report on consultant appointments using donor funds for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Total number of consultants Duration Donor and contract value in

A that worked on projeet (Work days) Rand

N/A 0 0 0

Total duration

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Tl Thoem
L Work days

N/A 0 0 0
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The following table relates information on the utilisation of consultants in the Department.

Table 4.16.4 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total number of . \ .
Duration Contract value in

(work days) Rand

Project title consultants that
worked on projeet

Appointment of the service provider to conduct forensic
investigation on appointment of implementing agents 6 74 R 821 057.68
for the Community Work Programme.

Table 4.16.5 Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds in terms of Historically
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Project title Percentage ownership by HDI ~ Percentage managementby  Number of consultants from HDI

groups HDI groups groups that work on the project

Table 4.17.1 Granting of employee-initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Number of Number of Number of Number of

Salary band applications applications applications packages approved
received referred to the MPSA | supported by MPSA | by department

Lower skilled (levels 1-2)
Skilled (levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12)
Senior management (levels 13-16)

oO|jO © © © O
OO © O O
oOJ|O © © © O
oJ©O © ©O © O

Total
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON
VOTE NO. 4: DEPARTMENT OF COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1.

| have audited the financial statements of the De-
partment of Cooperative Governance set out on
pages 132 to 222, which comprise the appropriation
statement, the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2016, the statement of financial perfor-
mance, statement of changes in net assets, and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well
as the notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory informa-
tion.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the
financial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the

preparation and fair presentation of these finan-
cial statements in accordance with the Modified
Cash Standard and the requirements of the Pub-
lic Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999
(Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), the Division of Revenue
Act of South Africa, 2015 (Act No. 1 of 2015) (DoRA)
and for such internal control as the accounting of-
ficer determines is necessary to enable the prepara-
tion of financial statements that are free from materi-
al misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on my audit. | conducted
my audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply
with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material mis-
statement.

4.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the as-
sessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor consid-
ers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in or-
der to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of ex-
pressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enti-
ty’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Goods and services

6.

| was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence for payments made to Community Work
Programme implementing agents as the department
could not provide accurate and complete substan-
tiating records, as required by the contracts signed
with implementing agents. | could not confirm the
amounts by alternative means. Consequently, | was
unable to determine whether any adjustment to
goods and services stated at R2 501 289 000 (2015:
R1 737 745 000) in note 5 to the financial statements
was necessary.
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Movable tangible capital assets

7. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence for movable tangible capital assets, as the
department did not maintain an asset register for the
Community Work Programme that adhered to the
minimum requirements for an asset register as pre-
scribed by the National Treasury. Additionally, assets
were not in all instances measured in line with the
prescripts of the Modified Cash Standard on capital
assets. | was unable to confirm the physical assets
and fair presentation thereof by alternative means.
Consequently | was unable to determine whether
any adjustment relating to movable tangible assets
stated at R143 718 000 (2015: R102 734 000) in note
28 to the financial statements was necessary.

Qualified opinion

8. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the
matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraphs, the financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the De-
partment of Cooperative Governance as at 31 March
2016 and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended, in accordance with the
Modified Cash Standard and the requirements of the
PFMA and DoRA.

Emphasis of matter
9. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

10. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements,
the corresponding figures for 31 March 2015 have
been restated as a result of errors discovered during
2016 in the financial statements of the Department of
Cooperative Governance at, and for the year ended,
31 March 2015.

CHAPTLER

Additional matter
11.1 draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

12. The supplementary information set out on pages
222 to 254 does not form part of the financial state-
ments and is presented as additional information. |
have not audited these schedules and, accordingly,
| do not express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

13.In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general
notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility
to report findings on the reported performance infor-
mation against predetermined objectives of selected
programmes presented in the annual performance
report, compliance with legislation and internal con-
trol. The objective of my tests was to identify report-
able findings as described under each subheading
but not to gather evidence to express assurance on
these matters. Accordingly, | do not express an opin-
ion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

14. | performed procedures to obtain evidence about the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information of the following selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report of the
department for the year ended 31 March 2016:

= Programme 1 : Administration on page 48

= Programme 2: Policy, Research and Knowledge
Management on page 51

= Programme 3: Governance and Intergovernmental
Relations on pages 55 to 58

= Programme 4: National Disaster Management Cen-
tre on pages 63 to 64

=  Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal Government
Support on pages 67 to 70

= Programme 6: Infrastructure and Economic Deve-
lopment on pages 77 to 80
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15.1 evaluated the usefulness of the reported perfor-
mance information to determine whether it was pre-
sented in accordance with the National Treasury’s
annual reporting principles and whether the reported
performance was consistent with the planned pro-
grammes. | further performed tests to determine
whether indicators and targets were well defined,
verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and rel-
evant, as required by the National Treasury’s Frame-
work for managing programme performance infor-
mation (FMPPI).

16. | assessed the reliability of the reported performance
information to determine whether it was valid, accu-
rate and complete.

17. The material findings in respect of the selected pro-
grammes are as follows:

Programme 1: Administration

Reliability of reported performance information

18.The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate
systems to collect, collate, verify and store perfor-
mance information to ensure reliable reporting of
actual achievements against planned objectives,
indicators and targets. The reported performance
information was not reliable when compared to the
evidence provided.

Programme 2: Policy, Research and
Knowledge Management

Reliability of reported performance information

19. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate
systems to collect, collate, verify and store perfor-
mance information to ensure reliable reporting of
actual achievements against planned objectives,
indicators and targets. The reported achievements
against planned targets of 40% of the indicators
were not reliable when compared to the evidence
provided.

Programme 3: Governance and
Intergovernmental Relations

Usefulness of reported performance information

20.1 was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate au-
dit evidence to support the reasons provided for
the variance between planned targets and actual
achievements.

Reliability of reported performance information

21.The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate
systems to collect, collate, verify and store perfor-
mance information to ensure reliable reporting of
actual achievements against planned objectives, in-
dicators and targets. | was unable to obtain the infor-
mation and explanations | considered necessary to
satisfy myself as to the reliability of the reported per-
formance information. This was due to the fact that
the auditee could not provide sufficient appropriate
evidence in support of the reported performance in-
formation.

Programme 4: National Disaster
Management Centre

Reliability of reported performance information

22.The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate
systems to collect, collate, verify and store perfor-
mance information to ensure reliable reporting of
actual achievements against planned objectives,
indicators and targets. The reported performance
information was not reliable when compared to the
evidence provided.

Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal
Government Support

Usefulness of reported performance information

23.1 was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate au-
dit evidence to support the reasons provided for
the variance between planned targets and actual
achievements.
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Reliability of reported performance information

24.The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate
systems to collect, collate, verify and store perfor-
mance information to ensure reliable reporting of
actual achievements against planned objectives,
indicators and targets. The reported performance
information was not reliable when compared to the
evidence provided.

Programme 6: Infrastructure and
Economic Development

Usefulness of reported performance information

25.1 was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate au-
dit evidence to support the reasons provided for
the variance between planned targets and actual
achievements.

26. Performance targets should be specific in clearly
identifying the nature and required level of perfor-
mance and measurable as required by the FMPPI.
A total of 43% of the targets were not specific and
could not be measured.

27. Performance indicators should be well defined by
having clear definitions so that data can be collect-
ed consistently and is easy to understand and use
and should be verifiable, as required by the FMPPI.
A total of 43% of the indicators were not well defined
and verifiable.

Reliability of reported performance information

28.The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate
systems to collect, collate, verify and store perfor-
mance information to ensure reliable reporting of
actual achievements against planned objectives, in-
dicators and targets. | was unable to obtain the infor-
mation and explanations | considered necessary to
satisfy myself as to the reliability of the reported per-
formance information. This was due to the fact that
the auditee could not provide sufficient appropriate
evidence in support of the reported performance in-
formation.

CHAPTLER

Additional matter
29. | draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

30. Refer to the annual performance report on pages
44 to 81 for information on the achievement of the
planned targets for the year. This information should
be considered in the context of the material findings
on the usefulness and reliability of the reported per-
formance information in paragraphs 18 to 28 of this
report.

Adjustment of material misstatements

31.1 identified material misstatements in the annual
performance report submitted for auditing. These
material misstatements were on the reported per-
formance information of Programme 3: Governance
and Intergovernmental Relations and Programme
6: Infrastructure and Economic Development. As
management subsequently corrected only some of
the misstatements, | identified material findings on
the usefulness and reliability of the reported perfor-
mance information.

Compliance with legislation

32.| performed procedures to obtain evidence that the
department had complied with applicable legislation
regarding financial matters, financial management
and other related matters. My material findings on
compliance with specific matters in key legislation,
as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the
PAA, are as follows:

Financial statements, performance and

annual reports

33. The financial statements submitted for auditing were
not prepared in accordance with the prescribed fi-
nancial reporting framework and supported by full
and proper records as required by section 40(1)(a)
and (b) of the Public Finance Management Act.

34. Material misstatements of payables, expenditure
and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the
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submitted financial statements were subsequently
corrected, but the uncorrected material misstate-
ments and supporting records that could not be pro-
vided resulted in the financial statements receiving a
qualified audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management

35.Goods and services of a transaction value above
R500 000 were procured without inviting competitive
bids, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

36. Contracts and quotations were awarded to suppli-
ers whose tax matters had not been declared by the
South African Revenue Services to be in order as
required by Treasury Regulations 16A9.1(d) and the
Preferential Procurement Regulations.

37. Thresholds for local content on designated sectors
procurement were not properly applied in accord-
ance with the requirements of preferential procure-
ment regulation 9.

38. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders
based on preference points that were not allocated
and calculated in accordance with the requirements
of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework
Act and its regulations.

Expenditure management

39. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular ex-
penditure, amounting to R482 283 000 as disclosed
in note 23 of the AFS, as required by section 38(1)
(c)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and
Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

Internal control

40.1 considered internal control relevant to my audit of
the financial statements, annual performance report
and compliance with legislation. The matters report-
ed below are limited to the significant internal control
deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified

opinion, the findings on the annual performance re-
port and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.

Leadership

41.Leadership did not exercise adequate oversight
responsibility regarding financial and performance
reporting and compliance and related internal con-
trols. Oversight in respect of the Community Work
Programme is of particular concemn.

42. Leadership did not effectively monitor the timeous
implementation of action plans developed to ad-
dress internal control deficiencies.

Financial and performance management

43. Management did not implement proper record keep-
ing in a timely manner to ensure that complete, rel-
evant and accurate information was accessible and
available to support financial and performance re-
porting.

44, Management did not implement effective controls
over daily and monthly processing and reconciling
of transactions.

45. Management did not prepare regular, accurate and
complete financial and performance reports that
were supported and evidenced by reliable informa-
tion.

46. Management did not appropriately review and moni-
tor compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Other reports

47.1 draw attention to the following engagements that
could potentially impact on the department’s finan-
cial, performance and compliance related matters.
My opinion is not modified in respect of these en-
gagements that are either in progress or have been
completed.
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Investigations
48. An investigation was conducted by an external ser-

vice provider into various allegations relating to pos-
sible improper procurement of travel management
solutions and abuse of travel benefits in the Depart-
ment of Cooperative Governance. The scope of the
audit was to investigate possible fraudulent and/or
irregular transactions perpetrated through travel,
accommodation and conferencing arrangements
under the stewardship of the department’s travel
agency. The allegations also included abuse of trav-
el privileges, not in accordance with departmental
policy. There was also potential conflict of interest by
some officials through colluding with the travel agen-
cy to book venues where they might possibly have
an interest. The report had been issued as at the end
of February 2016. A follow-up investigation (phase 2)
is currently in progress.

49. An investigation was conducted by an external ser-

vice provider into possible tender irregularities in
the appointment of the implementing agents for the
Community Work Programme as well as the review
of irregular expenditure incurred by the programme.
The investigation was concluded at the end of March
2016 and the department is in the process of follow-
ing up on the recommendations made.

ﬂuclll-:t* Ge—r-mu«i.

Pretoria
9 September 2016

‘l
’

‘ Qo,

A UDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH A FRI1ICA

Auditing to build public confidence

CHAPTLER
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DEPARTMENT OF COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE | VOTE 04
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Notes to the Appropriation Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

1 Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies and Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Finan-
cial Statements.

2 Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3 Detail on payments for financial assets
Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note to Payments for financial assets to the Annual Financial

Statements.

4 Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

4.1 Per programme:

Variance as a %

R’'000 R’'000 R’'000 _

Programme 1: Administration 271125 269 422 1703 99%
In line with expenditure

Programme 2: Policy, Research And Knowledge

Management 19 281 17914 1367 93%

The under-spending is mainly due to the delays that emanated from the implementation of the 2015/16 Procurement Plan

Programme 3: Governance And

Intergovernmental Relations 51 809 326 49 466 922 2342 404 95%

The under-spending mainly due to the offsetting withholding of the Equitable Share Grant due to non-compliance with the
DORA act requirements.

Programme 4: National Disaster Management

Centre 591 355 258 158 333 197 44%

The under-spending is mainly due to Disaster Relief Grants that were not required to be paid out.

Programme 5: Provincial And Municipal

Government Systems 329 092 293 335 35757 89%

The under-spending is mainly due to the delays in the transfer of the Municipal Demarcation Transition Grant, which was
due to a change in the transfer arrangement from the municipalities in KwaZulu-Natal to the Provincial Department of
Cooperative Governance.

Programme 6: Infrastructure And Economic

Development 17 669 370 17 665 858 3512 100%

The under-spending is mainly due to delays in the filling of vacancies and delays in the receipt of invoices from
Implementing Agents related to the CWP programme.

Programme 7: Traditional Affairs 125 928 125928 - 100%

In line with expenditure
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4.2 Per economic classification

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees

Goods and services

Interest and rent on land

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities
Departmental agencies and accounts
Higher education institutions

Public corporations and private enterprises
Foreign governments and international
organisations

Non-profit institutions

Households

Payments for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment

Heritage assets

Specialised military assets

Biological assets

Land and subsoil assets

Software and other intangible assets
Payments for financial assets

Notes to the Appropriation Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

2770 108
264 598
2505510

67 997 792
67 506 029
484 949

6 286
528
46 663

46 605

58
914

| R0 R'000 R'000

2759 622
258 334
2501 288

65 290 923

64 799 161
484 949

6 286
527
46 078

46 078

914

Variance

10 486
6 264
4222

2706 869
2 706 868
0

=0

585

527

58
0

98%
100%

96%
100%

100%

100%

99%

0%
100%

Goods and Services: The under-spending is mainly due to delays in receipt of invoices from the CWP Implementing Agents
and delays emanating from the implementation of the 2015/16 Procurement Plan.

Transfer and subsidies: The under-spending is mainly due to the uncertainty with regard to the payment of Disaster Relief
Grants, changes in the transfer arrangement for the Demarcation Transition Grant and withholding of the Local Government

Equitable Share Grant in some municipalities as per DORA requirements

Payment of capital assets: The under-spending is mainly due to delays in the delivery of assets and cost containment

measures implemented.

4.3 Per conditional grant

R0 R'000 R'000

Only show the conditional grants applicable to

the department

Disaster Relief Transfers

Municipal Disaster Recovery Grant
Municipal Systems Improvement Grant
Municipal Demarcation Transition Grant
Municipal Infrastructure Grant

364 343
188 900
251 442
39 000

14 955 762

35 588
186 121
251 442

3714
14 955 762

328 755
2779

35 286

Variance as a % of

Final Approp.

10%
99%
100%
10%
100%

The under-spending is mainly due to the uncertainty with regard to the payment of Disaster Relief Grants, changes
in the transfer arrangement for the Demarcation Transition Grant.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

D O T YT
I Ro00 | R'000

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 70815 477 63 453 885
Statutory appropriation - -
Departmental revenue 2 1116 1916
NRF Receipts - -
Aid assistance - -
TOTAL REVENUE 70 816 593 63 455 801
EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 4 258 331 234 443
Goods and services 5] 2501 289 1737 745
Interest and rent on land = -
Aid assistance - -
Total current expenditure 2759 620 1972188
Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 7 65 290 924 57 393 039
Aid assistance - -
Total transfers and subsidies 65 290 924 57 393 039
Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 8 46 079 21059
Intangible assets - -
Total expenditure for capital assets 46 079 21 059
Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding 9
Payments for financial assets 6 914 262
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 68 097 537 59 386 548
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 2719 056 4 069 253
Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Voted funds 2717 940 4 067 337
Annual appropriation 2351120 704 597
Conditional grants 366 820 3 362 740
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 14 1116 1916
Aid assistance
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 2719 056 4 069 253
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

D O T YT
. | RrRoOO | | ROO |

ASSETS

Current assets
Unauthorised expenditure
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Prepayments and advances
Receivables
Loans
Aid assistance prepayments
Aid assistance receivable

Non-current assets
Investments
Receivables
Loans
Other financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be
surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Bank overdraft
Payables
Aid assistance repayable
Aid assistance unutilised

Non-current liabilities
Payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

11
12

12

13
14

15

15

2 818 546 4 068 209

1123 1123

2 795 300 3972338

3577 226

18 546 94 522

87 64

87 64

2818 633 4 068 273

2818 633 4 068 273

2809176 4 067 337

240 52

9217 884

2818 633 4 068 273
161
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

D O T YT
| | Ro00 | R'000

Capitalisation Reserves

Opening balance

Transfers:
Movement in Equity
Movement in Operational Funds
Other movements

Closing balance

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance
Transfers:
Irrecoverable amounts written off
Debts revised
Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts)
Debts raised

Closing balance

Retained funds
Opening balance
Transfer from voted funds to be surrendered (Parliament/
Legislatures ONLY)
Utilised during the year
Other transfers

Closing balance

Revaluation Reserve
Opening balance
Revaluation adjustment (Housing departments)
Transfers
Other

Closing balance

TOTAL
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

I O T B YT
-/ | RrROOO__| | RO0 |

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1
Statutory appropriated funds received
Departmental revenue received 2

Interest received
NRF Receipts

Aid assistance received

2.2

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital
Surrendered to Revenue Fund
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor

Current payments
Interest paid

Payments for financial assets
Transfers and subsidies paid

Net cash flow available from operating activities 16

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets 8
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

(Increase)/decrease in loans

(Increase)/decrease in investments

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets

Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Distribution/dividend received
Increase/(decrease) in net assets
Increase/(decrease) in non-current payables

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Unrealised gains and losses within cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17

70 816 593
70815 477

825
291

80 935
(3977 029)

(2 759 620)

(914)
(65290 924)

(1 130 959)

63 455 748
63 453 885

1862
1

44 416
(2 059 455)

(34 818)
(1972 188)

(262)
(57 393 039)

(46 079)

2 040 402

(46 079)

(21 059)
53

(21 006)

(1177 038)

3972 338

2795 300

2019 396

1952 942
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently
in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly
the department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used assessments and
estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best information available at the time of
preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial
statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as
amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue
Act.

1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.

2 Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the
department.

4 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5 Foreign currency translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the spot exchange
rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information
6.1 Prior period comparative information
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements. Where nec-
essary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in
which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic classi-
fication is included in the appropriation statement.
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7 Revenue
7.1 Appropriated funds
Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e.
statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation be-
comes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the statement
of financial performance on the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recog-
nised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

7.2 Departmental revenue
Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently
paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement
of financial position.

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements when:
* it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the de-
partment; and
* the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting
agents.

8 Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees
8.1.1 Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.1.2 Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement of

financial performance on the date of payment.

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to households
in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
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8.2

8.3

8.4

Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is rec-
ognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified as a capital
expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.

Accrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the goods are received or,
in the case of services, when they are rendered to the department or in the case of transfers and subsidies when
they are due and payable.

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.

Leases

8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the statement
of financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

8.4.2 Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the statement
of financial performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not apportioned be-
tween the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:

* cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

* the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership at the end
of the lease term, excluding interest.

9 Aid Assistance

166

9.1

9.2

Aid assistance received
Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received. In-kind aid
assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are required to
be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. Aid assistance
payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement of financial position.
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10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other
short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11 Prepayments and advances
Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department receives or dis-
burses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

12 Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest, where interest
is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy.

13 Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14 Financial assets
14.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisi-
tion or issue of the financial.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already settled or
written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, where
interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2 Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded carry-
ing value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be received from
that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15 Payables
Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.
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16 Capital Assets
16.1 Immovable capital assets
Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Immovable capital
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the immovable capital assets are meas-
ured at R1 unless the fair value of the asset has been reliably estimated, in which case the fair value is used.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project
unless the immovable asset is recorded by another department in which case the completed project costs are
transferred to that department.

16.2 Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable capital assets

acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are measured
at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project
unless the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed project costs are
transferred to that department.

16.3 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible assets acquired

through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the department
commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured at fair
value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.
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All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project
unless the intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed project costs are
transferred to that department.

17 Provisions and Contingents
17.1 Provisions
Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive obli-
gation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation that
arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

17.3 Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from past
events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not within the control of the department.

17.4 Commitments
Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is a contractual arrangement
or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the department will discharge its
responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is
either:
* approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or
* approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the appropriation
in the statement of financial performance; or
* transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.
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19

20

21

22

23

170

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount re-
corded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved or transferred
to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are
de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal
to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor
are provided in the note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred to receiv-
ables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised
when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with
MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative
effect of the change in policy. In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities
and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with MCS re-
quirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect
of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the
earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial statements.
The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been dis-
closed in the notes to the financial statements.

Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here]. In terms of the arrangement the de-
partment is the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include details here]. All related revenues, expenditures, assets
and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have
been provided in the notes to the financial statements where appropriate.
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24

25

26

27

28

Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but which
are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts are rec-
ognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial

Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recover-
able from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund
when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related
party. Related party transactions within the Minister’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when
the transaction is not at arm’s length.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and con-
trolling the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to
the financial statements.

Inventories (Effective from 1 April 2017)
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recorded at cost price in the notes to the financial statements

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the cost of inventory is its fair value at the date of
acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or the lower of cost and current
replacement value.

Public-Private Partnerships
Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the partnership. The transac-
tion is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the date of commencement
thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees received, the unitary fees paid, rights and obliga-
tions of the department are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

1 Annual Appropriation
1.1 Annual Appropriation
Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National
Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments

Actual Funds Funds not \borooriation
Final Appropriation “ (I{:;oivl::d > rcquosl.c‘(l/nol Final Appropriation | P l]) i'(()(l: :‘l: dl o
received
| R0 R'000 RO || R 000 R'000
Administration 240 088 240 088 242 025 242 025
Policy, Research And Knowledge
Management 20 281 20 281 20 251 20 251
Governance And Intergovernmental
Relations 51 825 863 51 825 863 - 44610 131 44610 131
National Disaster Management 606 805 606 805 ) 831 415 831 415
Centre
Provincial And Municipal
Government Systems 328 092 328 092 - 289 533 289 533
Infrastructure And Economic
Development 17 668 420 17 668 420 - 17 344 666 17 344 666
Traditional Affairs 125 928 125 928 - 115 864 115 864
Total 70 815 477 70 815 477 - 63 453 885 63 453 885

Departmental revenue

O T T
__l

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Fines, penalties and forfeits - -

Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 291 1
Sales of capital assets 2.3 - 53
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.4 667 1688
Total revenue collected 1116 1916
Less: Own revenue included in appropriation

Departmental revenue collected 1116 1916

Included in the Departmental revenue is revenue generated from sale of waste paper, car parking and commission on insurance
and garnishee orders

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

1 O T
| | R000__|| RO00
2

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 157 173
Sales by market establishment 157 173
Administrative fees - -
Other sales - -
Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 1 1
Total 158 174
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Interest 291 1
Dividends
Rent on land
Total 291 1

2.3 Sale of capital assets

. | Ro00 || R000 |
2
Tangible assets 53
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment = 53
Specialised military assets - -
Land and subsoil assets - -
Biological assets - -

Intangible assets - -
Software - -
Mastheads and publishing titles = =
Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks - -
Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models - -
Services and operating rights - -

Total - 53

2.4 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

e T s
| | Ro0O__|| RO00
2

Stale cheques written back 2 -
Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 665 1688
Total 667 1688
3 Aid assistance

A 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000

Opening Balance - 34 818
Prior period error
As restated - 34 818

Transferred from statement of financial performance - -
Transfers to or from retained funds - -
Paid during the year - (34 818)

Closing Balance = -
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

4 Compensation of employees

4.1 Salaries and Wages

Basic salary

Performance award

Service Based
Compensative/circumstantial
Periodic payments

Other non-pensionable allowances

Total

4.2 Social contributions
I
Employer contributions
Pension
Medical
Bargaining council
Official unions and associations
Insurance
Total

Total compensation of employees
Average number of employees

5 Goods and services

we | || o
R R
171 241 153 397

3 404 2138

754 748

3055 4 863

- 523

54134 49 777

232 588 211 446

2015/16 I 2014/15

R’000 R’000

20 360 18 375
5352 4 595

31 27
25743 22 997
258 331 234 443
435 429

2014/15

Administrative fees
Advertising

Minor assets

Bursaries (employees)
Catering

Communication

Computer services
Consultants: Business and advisory services
Audit cost — external

Fleet services

Inventory

Consumables

Housing

Operating leases

Property payments

Rental and hiring

Transport provided as part of the departmental activities
Travel and subsistence
Venues and facilities
Training and development
Other operating expenditure

Total

11825 5964

1553 2475

5.1 8103 5652
751 937

3 784 2860

5013 5943

52 33 145 17 801
2041 482 1515871

53 7 447 6872
2749 1967

5.4 214 953 56 671
48 844 35 650

55 15873 14 630
56 29 246 29 295
1474 2128

72 484 31118

5.7 2 563 1911
2501 289 1737745

The amount for consumables and minor assets was restated due to a prior period error. The amount adjusted relates to the CWP

assets which were not previously disclosed by the Department.
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5.1 Minor assets

_l

Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures = -
Biological assets - -
Heritage assets - -
Machinery and equipment 8103 5652
Transport assets = =
Specialised military assets = =

Total 8 103 5 652

The amount for machinery and equipment was restated due to a prior period error. The adjusted amount relates to the CWP
assets which were not previously disclosed by the Department.

5.2 Computer services

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
5

SITA computer services 17 240 7 300
External computer service providers 15905 10 501
Total 33145 17 801

The increase is mainly due to the updating of the IT infrastructure.

5.3 Audit cost - External

I O T
. | Roo0 || RO00 |

5
Regularity audits 7 447 6 488
Performance audits - -
Investigations - 384
Environmental audits - -
Computer audits - -
Total 7 447 6 872
5.4 Consumables
Nole 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
5
Consumable supplies 210985 51292
Uniform and clothing 121 861 292
Household supplies 181 259
Building material and supplies - -
Communication accessories - -
IT consumables 154 4112
Other consumables 88 789 46 629
Stationery, printing and office supplies 3968 5379
Total 214 953 56 671

The amount for consumables was restated due to a prior period error. The amount adjusted relates to the CWP assets which
were not previously disclosed by the Department.
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5.5 Property payments

_l

Municipal services 13717 9915
Property management fees - 2 426
Property maintenance and repairs - -
Other 2156 2289
Total 15 873 14 630

Other comprises of pest control, cleaning and gardening services.

5.6 Travel and subsistence

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
5

Local 26 326 21823
Foreign 2920 7472
Total 29 246 29 295

5.7 Other operating expenditure

I O T T
| | R000__|| RO00
5

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 29 2
Resettlement costs 359 313
Other 2175 1596
Total 2 563 1911

6 Payments for financial assets

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000

Theft - -
Other material losses - -
Purchase of equity

Extension of loans for policy purposes

Other material losses written off 6.1 235 262
Debts written off 6.2 678 -
Forex losses 6.3 1 -

Debt take overs - -
Losses on GFECRA

Total 914 262

6.1 Other material losses written off

1 S 7 T
| Rooo || RO000

6
Air Tickets 235 178
Car accidents - 84
S&T - -
Total 235 262
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6.2 Debts written off

_l

Irregular expenditure written off

Total

Recoverable revenue written off

Total

Other debt written off

Subsistence and Travelling Debt

678

Total

678

Total debt written off

678

6.3 Forex losses

I

Forex Losses

2015/16

|
| | RrRoOO || RO000
6

Total

Transfers and subsidies

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R'000 R’000

Provinces and municipalities 31, 32 64 799 161 56 901 350
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 484 949 481 822
Higher education institutions - -
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1E = 238
Public corporations and private enterprises - -
Non-profit institutions Annex 1F 6 286 9280
Households Annex 1G 528 349
Total 65 290 924 57 393 039
Unspent funds transferred to the above beneficiaries
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8 Expenditure for capital assets

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 46 079 21 059

Buildings and other fixed structures = =
Heritage assets - -
Machinery and equipment 28 46 079 21 059
Specialised military assets - -
Land and subsoil assets - -
Biological assets - -

Intangible assets
Software - -
Mastheads and publishing titles - -
Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks - -
Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models = =
Services and operating rights = =

Total 46 079 21059

The following amounts have been included as project costs in
Expenditure for capital assets

Compensation of employees

Goods and services

Total - -

The amount for machinery and equipment was restated due to a prior period error. The adjusted amount relates to the CWP
assets which were not previously disclosed by the Department.

8.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2015/16

.| RrRoO | R000 | RO000

Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures - - _
Heritage assets - - -
Machinery and equipment 46 079 - 46 079
Specialised military assets - - B,
Land and subsoil assets - - -
Biological assets - - _

Intangible assets
Software - - R
Mastheads and publishing titles - - -
Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks - - -
Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models - - -
Services and operating rights - - -

Total 46 079 - 46 079

The amount for machinery and equipment was restated due to a prior period error. The adjusted amount relates to the CWP
assets which were not previously disclosed by the Department.
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8.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2014/15

- | R0

Tangible assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Heritage assets
Machinery and equipment
Specialised military assets
Land and subsoil assets

Biological assets

Intangible assets
Software
Mastheads and publishing titles
Patents, licences, copyright, brand names, trademarks
Recipes, formulae, prototypes, designs, models
Services and operating rights

Total

21 059

21 059

The amount for machinery and equipment was restated due to a prior period error. The adjusted amount relates to the CWP

assets which were not previously disclosed by the Department.

8.3 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets

I O TR T
| | RrRoOO || RO000

Tangible assets

Buildings and other fixed structures
Heritage assets

Machinery and equipment
Specialised military assets

Land and subsoil assets

Biological assets

Total
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9 Unauthorised expenditure
9.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure

e T T
| | Roo0___| | _RO00 _ |

Opening balance 1123 1123
Prior period error - -
As restated 1123 1123
Unauthorised expenditure — discovered in current year (as ) .
restated)

Less: Amounts approved by Parliament/Legislature with funding - -
Less: Amounts approved by Parliament/Legislature without funding - -
Capital - -
Current - -
Transfers and subsidies - -
Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery - -

Closing balance 1123 1123

Unauthorised expenditure amounting to R1,123 million relates to prior years and it is not yet resolved. The matter has been
referred to National Treasury and Parliament.

9.2 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per economic classification

00000000 e [ o ]
- ______foo__Rwo

Capital - -
Current 1123 1123
Transfers and subsidies - -
Total 1123 1123

9.3 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type

2015/16 ‘ ‘ 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Unauthorised expenditure relating to overspending of the vote or a 1123 1123
main division within a vote
Unauthorised expenditure incurred not in accordance with the
purpose of the vote or main division

Total 1123 1123

9.4 Details of unauthorised expenditure - current year

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2015/16
| R0

Total "
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10  Cash and cash equivalents

_l

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 2795276 3972 322
Cash receipts - _
Disbursements -
Cash on hand 24 16

Investments (Domestic) -
Investments (Foreign) -

Total 2795 300 3972 338

An amount of R34 million is held in a separate Standard bank account. The amount is solely for the payment of CWP participants
which did not disburse of at 31 March 2016. The amount will be cleared in the subsequent months.

Prepayments and advances

_l

Staff advances

Travel and subsistence 34 76
Advances paid 111 3501 150
SOCPEN advances - -
Total 3577 226

Included in prepayments and advances is an advance made to the department of Government Communications for marketing
the local government elections.

11.1 Advances paid

_I
| 11 | R000__ R000

National departments 3501
Provincial departments 3
Public entities -
Other entities -

Total 3 501 150

12 Receivables

2015/16 2014/15

e T e e N TR

_ R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims recoverable 121 13 527 13 527 89 148 89 148
Staff debt 12.2 2559 87 2 646 2969 64 3033
Other debtors 12.3 2 460 - 2 460 2 405 - 2 405
Total 18 546 87 18 633 94 522 64 94 586
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12.1 Claims recoverable

T e e || s |
12 and ] ]

National departments 9703 13 811
Provincial departments 213 198
Public entities 3 469 2 652
Local governments 142 72 487
Total 13 527 89 148

12.2 Staff debt

| 12 | _RO000_ |l _R000___

Tax Debt 6 6
Car Accidents 1717 1717
Telephone Debt 95 448
Debt Account 825 850
Salary Reversal Account 3 =
Salary ACB Recalls - 12
Total 2 646 3033

Included in the staff debts are amounts not cleared on the suspense accounts which still need to be investigated or are under
investigation to determine liability. Car accidents’ invoices are paid directly from the suspense account pending the outcome of
their investigations.

12.3 Other debtors

I O T
| 12 | R000__|| RO000

VAT Input Account 2399 2399
Sal: Medical Aid 6 6
Sal: Pension Fund 38 -
Sal: Income Tax 17 -
Total 2 460 2 405

12.4 Impairment of receivables

I O TR T
| Rooo_ || RO000_

Estimate of impairment of receivables 3350 2 877
Total 3 350 2877

All receivables with balances outstanding for three years and longer are considered for impairment.
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Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

_l

Opening balance 4 067 337 2 056 685
Prior period error 131

As restated 4 067 337 2 056 685
Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) 2717 940 4 067 337
Add: Unauthorised expenditure for current year 9 - -
Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 - -
Paid during the year (3976 101) (2 056 685)
Closing balance 2809 176 4 067 337

13.1 Prior period error

e T s ™
- | || R0 |

Prior period adjustment of expenditure
Relating to 2014/15 [affecting the opening balance]

Relating to 2014/15

Transfer from statement of financial performance impacting on closing 91 236
balance

Total prior period errors 91 236

The amount relates to CWP wages that was previously included as expenditure but not yet paid to the participants.

14 Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

) ™ 73 T
_l

Opening balance
Prior period error
As restated 52 906
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 1116 1916
Own revenue included in appropriation - -
Transfer from aid assistance & 3
Transfer to voted funds to defray expenditure (Parliament/Legislatures

ONLY)
Paid during the year (928) (2 770)
Closing balance 240 52

15 Payables — current

O O T
. | Roo0o || RO00 |

Advances received - -

Clearing accounts 151 9 068 43
Other payables 15.2 149 841
Total 9217 884

CHAPTER 5 | PART E « FINANCIAL INFORMATION 183



DEPARTMENT OF COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE | VOTE 04
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

15.1 Clearing accounts

| 15 | R000__|| RO00
Sal: Deduction Disallowance
Sal: Reversal Control: CA

Disallowance Miscellaneous

Total

15.2 Other payables

22 22

- 21

9 046 =
9 068 43

| 5 | _R000_ ||

Debt Receivable Interest

Debt Receivable Income
Pension Recoverable Account
Sal: Income Tax

Sal: Pension Fund

Total

16 Net cash flow available from operating activities

2 -
120

4

27 36

- 769

32

149 841

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities
(Increase)/decrease in receivables — current
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of investments

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets

Expenditure on capital assets

Surrenders to Revenue Fund

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor

Voted funds not requested/not received

Own revenue included in appropriation

Other non-cash items

Net cash flow generated by operating activities

2015/16 014/15
R'000 R’000

2719 056 3978017

(3850 015) (1937 615)

75953 44037

(3 351) 52

8333 91563

- (83)

46 079 21059

(3977 029) (2 059 455)

- (34 818)

(1 130 959) 2 040 402

The expenditure on capital assets was adjusted with CWP assets amount that was not disclosed previously in the financial

statements of the Department.

17 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Note

Consolidated Paymaster General account
Fund requisition account

Cash receipts

Disbursements

Cash on hand

Cash with commercial banks (Local)
Cash with commercial banks (Foreign)

Total

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
2795276 3972 322
24 16
2795 300 3 972 338
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18 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

18.1 Contingent liabilities

2014/15

| | RO000__|| RO000 |

Liable toNature

Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 3A - -
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 3A 11 11
Other guarantees Annex 3A = =
Claims against the department Annex 3B 877 877
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 5 22 556
Environmental rehabilitation liability Annex 3B = =
Other Annex 3B - -
Total 910 1444

DML facilitators and consulting instituted action against the department claiming relief of R169,855.00 for additional services
rendered. LIMA Rural Development Foundation issued summons against the minister for breach of contract in the amount of

R706, 942.18.
The Department issued a housing loan guarantee of R11, 000.00 to Standard Bank for one of the officials.

19 Commitments

I O TR T
| | RrRoOO || RO000

Current expenditure

Approved and contracted EEINIDE 319 850

Approved but not yet contracted - 23 085
245 798 342 935

Capital expenditure

Approved and contracted - 40

Approved but not yet contracted

Total Commitments 245 798 342 975

The commitments relating to contracts that are more than 12 months’ amounts to R15 683 million. There are 6 contracts that are

running for more than 12 months.

20 Accruals and payables not recognised
20.1 Accruals

e
| R'000 | R'000

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
Goods and services 360 469 829 432 209
Interest and rent on land - - -
Transfers and subsidies - - - 24
Capital assets - - - 1071
Other - - - -
Total 360 469 829 433 304
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| | _R000__|l _R000

Programme 1: Administration 380 21 531
Programme 2: Policy, Research and Knowledge Management 92 91
Programme 3: Governance and International Relations 64 829
Programme 4: Disaster Response Management 58 5 553
Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal Government Systems 55 1283
Programme 6: Infra and Economic Development 180 403 017
Total 829 433 304

20.2 Payables not recognised

e N By (T N

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
Goods and services 26 703 8 787 35490 -
Interest and rent on land - -
Transfers and subsidies = 85 85 =
Capital assets = - - -
Other - - - -
Total 26 703 8 872 35 575 -
Programme 1: Administration 7 407 =
Programme 2: Policy, Research and Knowledge Management 223
Programme 3: Governance and International Relations 669 =
Programme 4: Disaster Response Management 476 -
Programme 5: Provincial and Municipal Government Systems 1280 -
Programme 6: Infra and Economic Development 25 520 -
Total 35 575 -

Included in payables not recognised for 2015/16 is an amount of R4 273 million relating to CWP participants not yet paid at
year end for work performed. The 2014/15 amount of R92 107 million for participants not yet paid at year end is included under
accruals which has been restated as a result of a prior period error.

21  Employee benefits

I O TR T
| | RrRooo || RO000 |

Leave entitlement 7 503 7741
Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 6 248 5641
Performance awards 4808 4077
Capped leave commitments 6 092 5867
Other -
Total 24 651 23 326

Included in the leave entitlement balance is a negative leave amount of R555 301.
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22 Lease commitments
22.1 Operating leases expenditure

Buildings and
other fixed
struclures

Machinery and
equipment

Specialised mili-
lary equipment

2015/16

Not later than 1 year - - 33 007 - 33 007
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years = = = =
Later than five years - - - - -

Total lease commitments - - 33 007 - 33 007

oy e Fernet] TR Buildings and Py
2014/15 bp(’(}dllss‘d mili- other fixed M:l(lll'll(’l_\ and Total
lary equipment B — equipment

Not later than 1 year - 31297 - 31297
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years = = 32797 = 32797
Later than five years - - - - -
Total lease commitments - - 64 094 - 64 094

The Department is currently leasing four buildings for office space and one parkade. The Department does not intend to renew
the contract as there is a plan of moving to a new building.

22.2 Finance leases expenditure**

Specialised mil- BT e
2015/16 Dpeciatise Land other fixed nery Tolal
ilary equipment siruetures equipment

Not later than 1 year - - 693 693
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 167 167
Later than five years - - -
Total lease commitments - - - 860 860
SR Buildings and PP
2014/15 BT Land other fixed | MAckinery and Total
itary equipment struclures equipment
Not later than 1 year - - - 1167 1167
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - - 743 743
Later than five years - - - - -
Total lease commitments - - - 1910 1910

The above note includes the leasing of photocopier machines and cell phone contracts that are in the Department’s name. The
lease agreement makes no provision for purchase or renewal of photocopier machines and cell phones.
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23 Irregular expenditure
23.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

1 ™ 7 A T
| | RrRooo || RO00_ |

Opening balance 550 055 417 073
Prior period error -
As restated 550 055 417 073
Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to prior year 39 825 -
Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to current year 442 458 155 375

Less: Prior year amounts condoned = =
Less: Current year amounts condoned = =
Less: Amounts not condoned and recoverable - =
Less: Amounts not condoned and not recoverable - (22 393)

Closing balance 1032 338 550 055

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year 442 458 132982
Prior years 589 880 417 073
Total 1032 338 550 055

23.2 Details of irregular expenditure - current year

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2015/16

R’000
CWP non-compliance with SCM Under investigation 429 555
Lease Expired Under investigation 5341
No approval for deviation Under investigation 1811
Minimum of Quotes not obtained Under investigation 490
other Under investigation 5 261
Total 442 458

Included in the irregular expenditure amount is an amount of R429 555 million relating to non-compliance with SCM processes.
All irregular expenditure incurred is under investigation.

24  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
24.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

I O TR T
| | R0o00__|| RO00

Opening balance 8 8
Prior period error
As restated 8 8

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure — relating to prior year - -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - relating to current year - -
Less: Amounts resolved - -
Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery - -

Closing balance 8 8

Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure relates to prior year interest on Telkom account
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25

Related party transactions

Entity

CRL Rights
Commission

The Commission is a Chapter 9
Constitutional Institution that promotes
and protects cultural, religious and
linguistic rights. The Commission focuses
on conflict resolution, research, advocacy
and community engagement on conflicts
pertaining cultural, religious and linguist
rights within communities.

The CRL Rights commission receives transfer payments from the
Department of Traditional Affairs. The Department of Traditional
Affairs and Department of Cooperative Governance report to the
same minister and DTA shares a vote with DCOG

Demarcation
Board

for determining municipal boundaries,
declare district management areas,
delimit wards for local elections and
assess the capacity of municipalities to
perform their functions.

The board is mandated to determine
municipal boundaries in accordance with
the act and other appropriate legislation
enacted in terms of chapter 7 of the
Constitution.

Department The Department of Traditional Affairs The Department of Traditional Affairs and Department of
of Traditional is mandated to oversee traditional and Cooperative Governance report to one Minister and share a Vote.
il Nl [l enel Communliies; Due to inadequate funding and limited human capacity, DCoG
provide for the establishment and ;
recognition of traditional councils by performs some of the corporate functions on behalf of DTA
i through a signed MOU by the two Accounting Officers.
establishing a statutory framework for 9 9 Y 9
leadership positions within the institution | The DCoG incurred cost on behalf of the DTA for shared services
of traditional leadership; and provide for | in terms of the Memorandum of Understanding. The nature of
dispute resolution and the establishment | the transactions resulted in difficulties in reliably determining the
of the commission on traditional value of the costs paid by DCoG on behalf of the DTA due to the
leadership disputes and claims. operational structure and functions between the two departments.
The shared services include the following areas:
. Human Resources Management
. Risk Management
0 Communication and Marketing Services
. ICT services
. Legal services
i Security management
. Facilities Management
. Labour relations
Travel expenditure incurred on behalf of DTA is claimed on a
monthly basis. DCOG also makes transfer payments to DTA.
Municipal Provides immediate support to the MISA falls under the same ministerial portfolio as DCOG.DCOG
Infrastructure Municipalities that are struggling with makes transfer payments to MISA. Expenditure incurred on their
Support Agency | infrastructure delivery by facilitating the behalf is claimed on a monthly basis.
deployment of engineers, scientists Expendi laimed rel ; i ¢ |
and technicians to Municipalities and penditure claimed relates to compensation of employees
oversees them. due to MISA employees who are being paid from DCOG payroll
system. MISA and DCOG share the same Travel Agency and
DCOG incurs travelling expenses on behalf of MISA and claim it
in return.
Municipal Is an independent authority responsible | MDB falls under the same ministerial portfolio as DCOG.DCOG

makes transfer payments to MDB.

SALGA (South
African Local
Government
Agency)

Is an association of municipalities
recognised by the organised
local government Act (1997) as a
representative of organised local

government.

SALGA falls under the same ministerial portfolio as DCOG.DCOG
makes transfer payments to SALGA
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Entity

Mandate

Relationship

SACN(South The South African Cities Network is an DCOG makes transfer payments to SACN .An amount of
African Cities established network of South African R300 000.00 was paid towards an event held by SACN for the
Network) cities and partners that encourages the | benefit of both SACN and the Department.
exchange of information, experience and
best practices on urban development
and city management.
The UCLG AFRICA is the umbrella DCOG makes transfer payments to UCLGA.
organization and the united voice and
United Cities representative of local government in
and Local Africa. It is an institution that gathers
Government of |40 national associations of local
Africa. (UCLG) |governments from all regions of Africa
as well as the 2000 cities that have more
than 100.000 inhabitants.

26 Key management personnel

No. of Individuals 2015/16 2014/15

R’000

R’000

Political office bearers (provide detail below)

Officials: 3 4193 5696
Level 15to 16 7 8398 10 688
Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 39 38 383 40 664
Family members of key management personnel - - -
Total 49 50 974 57 048

27 Provisions

_l

CWP implementing Agents retention Fee 16 988 8012

Total 16 988 8012

The Department agreed with the implementing Agents to retain 5% of their project management fees as security until the end of
their contracts. The retention fee will be paid at the end of the contract provided all the deliverables of the contracts are met.

27.1 Reconciliation of movement in provisions — 2015/16

T

Total provisions

- __R000______RO000_

Opening balance 8012 8012
Increase in provision 8976 8976
Settlement of provision - -
Unused amount reversed - -
Reimbursement expected from third party - -
Change in provision due to change in estimation of inputs - -

Closing balance
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27.2 Reconciliation of movement in provisions — 2014/15

Opening balance

Increase in provision

Settlement of provision

Unused amount reversed

Reimbursement expected from third party

Change in provision due to change in estimation of inputs

Closing balance

28 MovableTangible Capital Assets

R000 || R000
8012 8012
8012 8012

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Opening Value N . - :
adjustments Additions (losing Balance

. | R000 | _RO000_| RO000 | RO000 | R000 _

31 MARCH 2016

HERITAGE ASSETS

Heritage assets ‘

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS

Specialised military assets \

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Biological assets \

Capital Work-in-progress
(Effective 1 April 2016)

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

191 - - - 191
191 - . = 191 |
102 543 (159) 46 547 5383 143 527
10 492 _ 77 - 10 569
49 785 . 11338 4222 56 901
11658 ) 5328 865 16 112
30 608 (150) 29 783 296 59 945
102 734 (159) 46 526 5383 143718

Included in the assets above are the assets relating to CWP amounting to R57 461 million.
MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS UNDER INVESTIGATION

| | R0

Included in the above total of the movable tangible capital assets per the

asset register are assets that are under investigation:
Heritage assets

Machinery and equipment

Specialised military assets

Biological assets

2033

21 801

Included in total assets above are assets are under investigation and relates to assets that could not be verified at year end.
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28.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2016

Non-cash**

(Capital Work in
Progress current
costs and finance

lease payments)

Received current,
not paid
(Paid current year,
received prior year)

R0 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

HERITAGE ASSETS
Heritage assets

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS
Specialised military assets

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Biological assets

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

28.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Sold for cash

31 MARCH 2016

46 079 37 865 (455) 46 526
77 - - - 77
10 907 9 871 (449) 11338
5328 - - - 5328
29 767 28 ) 6) 29 783
- - - - -
- - - - -
46 079 37 865 (455) 46 526

Non-cash disposal

Total disposals I

Cash Received
Actual

| R0 R'000 R000 | | __R'000

HERITAGE ASSETS
Heritage assets

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
Transport assets

Computer equipment

Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS
Specialised military assets

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Biological assets

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL

ASSETS

The above note includes assets that were transferred to DTA.

5383 5383
4222 4222 -

865 865 -

296 296 -

| - B -
| - ; -
5 383 5383 -
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28.3 Movement for 2014/15
MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Opening
balance

Prior period
error

Additions

Disposals

(losing Balance

HERITAGE ASSETS 80 - 111 - 191
Heritage assets \ 80 - 111 - 191 |
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 69 561 18 477 19 318 4813 102 543
Transport assets 10 606 - 114 10 492
Computer equipment 43613 1123 8488 3439 49785
Furniture and office equipment 8 421 571 2730 64 11658
Other machinery and equipment 6 921 16 783 8100 1196 30 608
SPECIALISED MILITARY ASSETS

Specialised military assets - - - - -
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Biological assets \ = = = = -]
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 69 641 18 477 19 429 4813 102 734

The above note was restated to include CWP Assets not previously disclosed by the Department.

28.3.1 Prior period error

T T s ™
| || R0 |

Nature of prior period error

Relating to 2013/14

Capital assets that were previously recorded as consumables.

Relating to 2014/15

Capital assets that were previously recorded as consumables.

Total prior period errors

Prior year error relates to CWP assets that were previously not disclosed by the Department.

CHAPTER 5 | PART E « FINANCIAL INFORMATION

18 477

\ 18 477

3185

21 662



DEPARTMENT OF COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE | VOTE 04
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

28.4 Minor assets
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Machinery and

Intangible assets | Heritage assels Biological assels Total
S equipment
_ R’000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R’'000 R’'000
Opening balance - 1398 1188 24 319 - 26 905
Value adjustments - - - (102) - (102)
Additions - 86 - 8 244 - 8 330
Disposals - - - (1 594) (1 594)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - 1484 1188 30 867 - 33539
‘.s‘l.)“i“vlised Heritage assets l\‘lachi}lery and Biological assets
mililary assels = equipment =

Number of R1 minor assets - - - 3 - 3
‘l;lgsr?ber of minor assets at ) 17 20 13301 . 13338
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR

ASSETS - 17 20 13 304 - 13 341

The machinery and equipment closing balances were adjusted with the asset amount that was not disclosed previously in the
Financial Statements of the Department.

Minor Capital Assets under investigation

) ™ A
| __R000

Included in the above total of the minor capital assets per the asset register are

assets that are under investigation:

Specialised military assets - -
Intangible assets - -
Heritage assets

Machinery and equipment 7 046 8 003
Biological assets - -

Included in total assets above are assets are under investigation and relates to assets that could not be verified at year end.

Movement in minor assets per the asset register for the year ended as at 31 March 2015

Specialised Intangible _ Machinery and Biological
s e Heritage assets . = Total
military assels assels i qullplll?lll assels

_

1147 17 360 - 18 569
Opening balance - - - - -
Prior period error - 1292 - 2623 - 3915
Additions - 72 41 4 823 - 4 936
Disposals - (28) - (487) - (515)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - 1398 1188 24 319 - 26 905
Number of R1 minor assets - - 3 - 3
Number of minor assets at cost 17 20 13 188 - 13 225
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 17 20 13 191 - 13 228
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28.4.1 Prior period error
2014/15

R’000

Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2013/14

Minor assets previously recorded as consumables 3915
Relating to 2014/15

Minor assets previously recorded as consumables \ 2845 |
Total prior period errors 6 760

The machinery and equipment closing balance was adjusted with the asset amount that relates to CWP that was not disclosed
previously in the Financial Statements of the Department.

28.5 S42 Movable capital assets
MAJOR ASSETS SUBJECTED TO TRANSFER IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 31 MARCH 2016

?l.m.“!hsed Intangible assets | Herilage assels Ma(-ln}mry gl Biological assets
military assels i = equipment i
No. of Assets - - - 53 = 53
Value of the assets (R’000) - - - 704 - 704

MINOR ASSETS SUBJECTED TO TRANSFER IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 31 MARCH 2015

?]39131311@(] Heritage assets Ma('hl.n Eryiand Biological assets Total
military assels i equipment i
No. of Assets - - - 581 - 581
Value of the assets (R’000) - - - 815 - 815

The assets disclosed above relate to DTA assets that are still to be transferred to DTA during the 2016/17 financial year.
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29 Intangible Capital Assets
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Opening balance | Value adjustments Additions Disposals (losing Balance

| R0 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

SOFTWARE 2 866 2 866

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 2 866 = = = 866

29.1 Movement for 2014/15
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
Prior period
error
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’ 000 R’000

SOFTWARE 3625 2 866

Opening balance Additions Disposals (losing Balance

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 3625 = - 759 866

30 Prior period errors
30.1 Correction of prior period errors
2014/15

R’000

Expenditure:

Goods and Services(Consumables) (6 030)
Goods and Services (Minor Assets) 2845
Expenditure for Capital Asset(Tangible Assets) 3185
Goods and Services (Contractors: Casual Labourers) (91 236)
Net effect (91 236)

The CWP capital and minor assets were previously captured as consumables. CWP wages of R 91 236 million was erroneously
recorded as an expenditure, however this amount had not yet been paid to the participants for the time worked. The expenditure
has been reversed and recorded as payables not recognised.

e T ™
|| R0 |

Assets:

Receivables (Non-Current) (4 674)
Receivables (Current) 4674
Net effect I

The Current Receivables was erroneously recorded as Non-Current Receivables.

| | Ro000
Llabllltles
CWP Payables (91 236)
Voted Funds to be surrendered 91 236
Net effect -

CWP wages was erroneously recorded as an expenditure. The expenditure has been reversed and recorded as payables not
recognised.
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